
 

 

To, Date: 02nd September, 2025 

Deputy Manager 

The Corporate Relations Dept. 

BSE Limited 

P.J.Tower, Dalal Street, 

Mumbai 400 001 

 

Dear Sir/Ma’am, 

 

Ref No: - Company Code No. - 530407 

 

Sub: - Submission of Notice of 34th Annual General Meeting (AGM) and Annual Report 

for the year 2024-2025. 

 

This is to inform you that 34th Annual General Meeting (AGM) and Members of the Company 

will be held on Saturday, September 27, 2025 at 11 a.m. through Video Conferencing 

(VC)/Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM) inter alia, to transact the business as stated in the 

Notice convening the said Annual General Meeting of the Company. 

 

Further, Pursuant to Regulation 34 (1) and Regulation 30 and other applicable Regulation of 

SEBI (Listing obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 and any amendments 

made thereunder, we are submitting herewith Notice of 34th Annual General Meeting and 

Annual Report for the Financial year 2024-25. 

 

The Annual Report for the financial year 2024-25 is also available on the website of the 

Company i.e. www.epicenergy.in 

 

Kindly take the same on your records and oblige. 

Thanking you, 

Yours faithfully, 

 

FOR EPIC ENERGY LIMITED 

 

 

Sandipkumar Gupta 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

Membership No: A35730 

EPIC ENERGY LIMITED 
An: ISO 9001:2015 Company 

www.epicenergy.in  

Registered office: Office No.206, A- Wing, Gokul Arcade, Swami Nityanand Road,  

   Vile Parle (East), Mumbai 400 057, Maharashtra 

Email: info@epicenergy.in, Tel.: +91-22- 8419988262 
CIN: L67120MH1991PLC063103 

mailto:info@epicenergy.in
http://www.epicenergy.in/
http://www.epicenergy.in/
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Company Profile 
 

Providing sustainable green 
energy solutions across the world 
 

 

Epic Energy Limited is a leading Energy Service Company (ESCO) in India, specializing in Energy Efficiency and 

Renewable Energy Services since 2004. Recognized by the Bureau of Energy Efficiency, Government of India, we 

have served State Governments, Municipal Corporations, and major players in the Electrical Industry. Headquartered 

in Mumbai, with a branch in Ahmedabad, we also have affiliate offices in Pune, Hyderabad, Udaipur, and Goa. Our 

international affiliation with EnviroEn Inc., a prominent Renewable Energy Services company in Canada, further 

strengthens our expertise. At Epic Energy Limited, we are committed to sustainable energy solutions, optimizing 

consumption, and reducing carbon footprints.  
 
 
 
 

 

Vision 
 

One World. Green World. 

 

● Build an ecosystem where Clean Energy, Green 
Mobility and Circular Economy, converge to 
preserve and protect Planet Earth. 

 
● Make India truly “Atmanirbhar Bharat” by 

reducing its geo-political dependencies with a 
robust Circular Economy focused on recovery 
of Rare Earth Elements 

 

Mission 
 

● Drive India’s clean energy transition through 
 

Rooftop and Open-Access BESS integrated Solar 
Solutions 

 
● Power the future of Green Mobility with Smart 

EV Charging sourced from clean energy 
Solutions. 

 
● Create a tech-enabled Pan India network of 

Recycling facilities for Batteries and Solar 
Panels. 

 
● Equip customers with digital tools that turn 

data into Actionable Energy Intelligence  

 
 
 
 

 

Values 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 Value for  

 Money  

CUSTOMER  Industry 

FOCUS  Experience 

Knowledge and Green 
Speed 

Understanding Collaboration   
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Service & Product Profile 
 

Tailored solutions for clean energy projects 
 

 

We provide customized solutions, reliable support, expert consultation, and unbeatable value for your clean energy 
projects. Our dedicated team ensures smooth execution, delivering the best value for your investment. 
 

Projects & Services 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Rooftop Solar Solar EPC Energy Audit  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

LED Retrofitting EV Charging Battery Recycling  

 

Products 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

LED Lights Smart Meters Energy Power Saver Power Conditioners  
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Recent Projects 

 

55KWh, Farmnhouse in Alibaug 
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EV Chargers Installed in Coimbatore, Tamil Nadu 
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Corporate Information 
 

Board of Directors 
 
 

Mr Bharat Mehta - Independent Non-Executive Director 
 

Mr Harshal Gunde - Independent Non-Executive Director 
 

Mr Brian Dsouza - Independent Non-Executive Director 
 

Mrs Veena Morsawala - Non-Executive Director 
 

Ms Priya Joshi – Independent Non-Executive Director 
 

 

Key Management Personnel 
 
 

Mr Nikhil Morsawala – Group Chief Financial Officer 
 

Mr Bhalchandra Ramrao Kadam – Group Chief Commercial Officer 
 

Mr P Sivasubramaniam – Head – EV Chargers Division 
 

Mr Nikhil V Pandya – Group Head – Corporate Finance 
 

Ms Hetvi Patel – Head – Project Finance, Management Accounts and MIS 
 

Mr Atul Mishra – Head – Accounts and Taxation 
 

Mr Sandipkumar Gupta – Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

 

Key Managers and Team Leaders 
 
 

Mrs Aruna Joshi – Environment Manager  
Mr Satish Mahajan – Engineering Team Leader 
 

Mr Md Amanullah – Project Engineer 
 

Mr Aman Singh - Project Engineer 
 

Mr Sham Awari – Project Engineer 
 
 

Compliance and Financial Partners 
 
 

NGST & Associates, Chartered Accountants – Auditors  
Axis Bank & Bank of India – Bankers 

 

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent 
 
 

Adroit Capital Services Private Ltd 
 
Address: 18-20, Jafferbhoy Industrial Estate, Makhwana Rd, Marol 
Naka, Andheri East, Mumbai, Maharashtra 400059.  
Phone: 022-4227-0400 Email: info@adroitcorporate.com 
www.adroitcorporate.com    

 

mailto:Email:%20info@adroitcorporate.com
http://www.adroitcorporate.com/
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Investor Information Website  
www.epicenergy.in 
 
 

 

General Information 
 
 
 

 

Name  :      Epic Energy Limited  
 

            CIN       :     L67120MH1991PLC063103  
 

E-mail : info@epicenergy.in  
 

Website:  www.epicenergy.in  
 
 

 

Locations 
 

 

Registered Office Branch Office: Ahmedabad 

206, A Wing, 2nd Floor, Gokul 3, Poojan Apartment, Karnavati 
Arcade, Swami Nityanand Road, Vile Society, Opp. Ratilal Patel Hall, 
Parle-East, Mumbai-400057 Bhairavnath Road, Maninagar, 

 Ahmedabad, Gujarat -380008. 

Phone: 022 – 8419988262   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EV Chargers Plant: Coimbatore  
 

S.F.No.738/2-C, Avinashi Road, 
Goldwins, Backside of A.P.Kalayana 
Mandapam, Civil Aerodrome Post, 
Coimbatore-641014. 
 

Phone: 422 – 2975205. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

http://www.epicenergy.in/
http://www.epicenergy.in/
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From the Desk of the Promoter 
 

 

It gives me immense pleasure to share the performance highlights and the evolving journey of our company for the 
Financial Year 2024–25. This year has been one of steady growth, thoughtful partnerships, and new ideas taking 
shape. We closed the year with revenues of ₹426.55 lakh and net worth crossing ₹806.42 lakh, proof that our efforts 
are moving in the right direction. 
 

I am proud that in FY25, our company executed multiple rooftop and distributed solar projects, from small 3 kW 
rooftops to large 200+ kW institutional installations. Every one of these projects is more than just capacity; it is 
lower costs for our clients, cleaner air for our communities, and another step in building a greener tomorrow. 
 

What excites me most is how technology has started to shape the way we deliver. This year, we piloted AI-enabled 
monitoring, drone-based inspections, and predictive O&M tools. I see these as the early signs of what we call 
Energy Intelligence - clean energy made smarter, more reliable, and more valuable over time. 
 

We also laid the first stones for tomorrow. With subsidiaries incorporated in EV charging and battery recycling, we 
have started to prepare for our place in green mobility and the circular economy. These are early days, but I believe 
the future lies in connecting the dots where solar powers mobility, batteries are recycled back into the chain, and 
every unit of energy finds its highest purpose. 
 

As I look ahead, I see our company not just growing, but defining what a truly integrated clean energy platform can 
be. With a strong pipeline, a committed team, and the trust of our stakeholders, I am confident we will continue to 
scale both our impact and our responsibility. 
 
 

 

Let us continue this journey together — with courage, clarity, and conviction. 
 
 
 

Jai Hind! 
 
 
 

Warm regards, 
 

Nikhil Morsawala 
 

Promoter and CFO  
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
 

 

To,  
The Members of EPIC ENERGY LIMITED, 

 

Your Directors are pleased to present the 34th Annual Report together with the Company’s Audited 
Financial Statements for the Year ended on March 31, 2025. 

 

FINANCIAL RESULTS: 
 

The Company’s Standalone financial performance, for the year ended March 31, 2025, is summarised below: 
 

(INR in lakh except EPS)  

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 
   

Total Revenue 426.55 308.53 
   

Operating Profit before Depreciation & Tax 137.66 49.82 
   

Less: Depreciation 34.30 17.47 
   

Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and Tax 103.36 32.35 
   

Exceptional Items - - 
   

Profit before tax 103.36 32.35 
   

Less: Current Tax - - 
   

Less: Deferred Tax (28.37) (3.75) 
   

Net Profit after tax 131.73 36.10 
   

Other Comprehensive Income / Loss for the year (net of tax) - - 
   

Total Comprehensive Income 131.73 36.10 
   

Earnings per share (basic/diluted) 1.83 0.50 
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The Company’s consolidated financial performance, for the year ended March 31, 2025, is summarised below: 
 

(INR in lakh except EPS)  

 Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 
    

 Total Revenue 426.55 308.53 
    

 Operating Profit before Depreciation & Tax 134.85 49.82 
    

 Less: Depreciation 34.51 17.47 
    

 Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and Tax 100.34 32.35 
    

 Exceptional Items - - 
    

 Profit before tax 100.34 32.35 
    

 Less: Current Tax - - 
    

 Less: Deferred Tax (28.77) (3.75) 
    

 Add: Share or Loss From JV 0.80 36.10 
    

 Add: Share of loss Attributable to Non-Controlling Interest 0.63 36.10 
    

 Net Profit after tax 130.54 36.10 
    

 Other Comprehensive Income / Loss for the year (net of tax) - - 
    

 Total Comprehensive Income 130.54 36.10 
    

 Earnings per share (basic/diluted) 1.81 0.50 
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Financial highlights 
 

Performance 
 

Your Company posted a turnover of Rs. 426.55 lakh in the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025, compared to 
Rs. 308.53 lakh in the previous year registering a growth of over 38%. This robust performance reflects your 
Company’s continued focus and growing presence in the Solar Rooftop EPC segment. 

 

During the year, the Company successfully executed multiple rooftop Solar EPC projects across wide spectrum of 
customers including reputed educational institutions, prominent NGOs, premium real estate developers, 
corporate houses, and premium residential clients. The scale of projects executed ranged from 3 kWh to over 200 
kWh, underscoring Company’s versatility and execution strength. 

 

Backed by a healthy order pipeline, favourable policy support and growing awareness around clean energy, your 

Company remains confident of sustaining this growth momentum in coming years. During the year, the 

company’s subsidiary Epic EV Chargers Private Limited also commenced commercial production at its Coimbatore 

facility. We are pleased to share that we have made a promising start in the EV Charging space, recording sales of 

Rs. 2.20 lacs in the first quarter of the current year. We expect this segment to contribute significantly to your 

Company’s progress in the coming years. 

 

During the year, the Company successfully completed the Transfer of Technology of the HydroMetallurgy Process 
used in Battery Recycling in collaboration with C-MET, the Centre for Materials and Electronic Technology, 
Hyderabad, a GoI undertaking. This was done under the aegis of our Joint Venture Swachcha Urja Nirman LLP, and 
we expect to commence commercial production within a year. 

 

Profitability 
 

Your company delivered a significant turnaround in profitability during the year ended 31st March, 2025. Profit 
before Tax stood at Rs. 100.34 lakh, as compared to Rs. 32.35 lakh in the previous year. This growth reflects 
improved operating efficiencies, better project execution, and strategic cost management 
 

 

Earnings per share 
 

Earnings per Share improved to Rs. 1.81 for the year ended 31st March, 2025, as against Rs. 0.50 for the year 
ended 31st March, 2024 reflecting a significant improvement in your Company’s financial performance and 
profitability. 
 

 

Transfer to Reserves 
 
There is no proposed amount to be transferred to the General Reserve. 
 

 

Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures or Associate Companies 
 
During the year, your Company incorporated several new subsidiaries to expand operations in the renewable 
energy and allied sectors: 
 

● Epic Renewable Projects Private Limited (25th July 2024) 
 

● Solapur Green Park Private Limited (8th August 2024) 
 

● Epic EV Chargers Private Limited (24th September 2024)  
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● Epic Renewable Energy Turnkey Projects Private Limited (13th November 2024) 
 

● Epic Vighnaharta Renewable Energy Private Limited (22nd March 2025) 
 

All of the above are wholly owned subsidiaries, except Epic EV Chargers Private Limited which is a 76% subsidiary 
with 24% external participation. 
 

Further, the Company holds a 60% stake in Swachchha Urja Nirman LLP a Joint Venture, with the objective of 
collaborative development in the clean energy space. 
 

A statement containing the salient features of the financial statements of the subsidiaries and the joint venture, 
as required under Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, in Form AOC-1, is attached to the financial 
statements. The financial statements of these entities shall be available for inspection at the registered office of 
the Company during business hours. The Company does not have any associate company as on the date of this 
report. 
 
 
 

Net Worth 
 

The Company’s net worth as on 31st March, 2025, stood at Rs. 806.42 lakh, as compared to Rs. 674.12 lakh as on 
31st March, 2024 reflecting a substantial increase driven by strong profitability and improved retained earnings 
during the year. 

 

Dividend 
 
To conserve resources and maintain adequate liquidity for growth, your Directors have not recommended any 

dividend for Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2025. 
 

Future Prospects 
 

 

The financial year 2024–25 marked a period of strategic advancement for your Company in the Solar EPC 
segment. With a turnover of Rs. 426.55 lakh, the business witnessed robust growth led by the successful 
execution of multiple Rooftop Solar Projects across institutional, residential, and commercial segments. This scale 
and diversification underscore the Company’s growing technical capability, customer trust, and operational 
agility. With a strong order book and a favourable policy environment, your Company is now gearing up to scale 
its EPC footprint further in the coming years. 

 

With the successful commissioning of the EV Chargers facility in Coimbatore, your Company expects a major 
contribution from this segment during the current year. 
 
Your Company is also exploring new sustainability-driven verticals such as Battery Recycling and Solar Panel 
Recycling. The global push toward responsible e-waste management and resource circularity presents a significant 
opportunity. Recognizing this, your Company has already successfully transferred the Hydrometallurgy Recycling 
Process from C-MET with a team of engineers being trained on site at the C-MET facility in Hyderabad. We are 
now in the process of identifying the right equipment suppliers to set up our first Battery Recycling plant under 
our Joint Venture Swachcha Urja Nirman LLP. 

 

Listing of Securities 
 
The Company’s Equity Shares continues to be listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE). Listing fees for 
the year 2025-2026 have been duly paid to the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited.  
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Unclaimed Dividend Transfer to Investors Education and Protection 
Fund (IEPF) 
 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124 of the Act, Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority 
(Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 read with the relevant circulars and amendments thereto 
(‘IEPF Rules’), the amount of dividend remaining unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years from the due 
date is required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF), constituted by the Central 
Government. The company is yet to transfer unpaid dividend of an amount aggregating to Rs. 6.64 lakhs relating 
to Financial Years 2010-11 and 2011-12 from unpaid dividend account to Investor Education and Protection Fund 
(IEPF). 
 
Details of the unpaid / unclaimed dividend are uploaded under ‘’Investor Relations=> Shareholders Information 
=>Unclaimed Dividend’’ section on the Company’s investor information website viz. www.epicenergy.in 
 
In terms of the provisions of Section 124(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Investor Education and Protection 
Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Amendment Rules, 2017, the Company is required to 
transfer the shares in respect of which dividend remains unpaid and unclaimed for a period of seven consecutive 
years to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) Suspense Account. 
 

Change in nature of Business 
 

During the year under review, there was no change in the nature of the business of the Company. 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
 

Board of Directors 
 

The Board consisted of five members as on 31st March, 2025, four of whom were Independent Non-Executive 
Directors. The Board meets at least once every quarter to review the Company’s performance, approve financial 
results, and deliberate on key business policies and strategies. Additional meetings are convened as necessary. 
 
During the year under review, Board of Directors of the Company met four times, viz 18th May, 2024, 01st July, 
2024, 05th August, 2024, and 10th February, 2025. 

 

Committee of Board 
 

In line with best corporate governance practices and the requirements of applicable laws, your Company has  
Constituted the following Committees of the Board:  
The Company has following Committees of the Board: 
 

● Audit Committee  
● Nomination and Remuneration Committee  
● Stakeholders’ Grievances and Relationship Committee 

 

A detailed note on the committees with respect to composition, meeting, powers, and terms of reference is 
provided under the Corporate Governance Report section in this Annual Report.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

http://www.epicenergy.in/
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Details of Key Managerial Personnel 
 
 

 

● Mr Nikhil Morsawala – Group Chief Financial Officer  
● Mr Bhalchandra Ramrao Kadam – Group Chief Commercial Officer  
● Mr P Sivasubramaniam – Head – EV Chargers Division  
● Mr Nikhil V Pandya – Group Head – Corporate Finance  
● Ms Hetvi Patel – Head – Project Finance, Management Accounts and MIS  
● Mr. Atul Mishra – Head – Accounts and Taxation  
● Mr. Sandipkumar Gupta – Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

 
 

 

Nomination and Remuneration Policy 
 

The Company has a policy in place, framed in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, to attract and retain talent, harmonize employee aspirations with Company goals, 
and provide a framework for appointment and remuneration of Directors, KMPs, and senior management. 

 

Key points of the policy are: 

 

A. Appointment 
 

● Candidates for Director, KMP, and senior management roles are assessed on integrity, qualification, 
expertise, and experience. 

 
● Independent Directors are appointed only after the Committee satisfies itself with respect to their 

independence as defined under law.  
B. Remuneration  

● Remuneration is linked to individual performance, Company performance, and long-term value creation.  
● Compensation includes a mix of fixed pay, perquisites, allowances, and variable components.  
● Sitting fees to Directors are paid within the limits approved by the Board and shareholders. 

 

A. Policy on appointment of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and senior management personnel 

 

● The policy is formulated to identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of 
the person for appointment as Director, KMP and senior management personnel and recommend to the 
Board for his/her appointment. 

 

● A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the position he/she is 
considered for appointment. 

 

● In case of appointment of Independent Director, the Committee shall satisfy itself with regard to the 
independent nature of the Director vis-à-vis the Company so as to enable the Board to discharge its 
function and duties effectively. 

 

B. Policy on remuneration of Director, key managerial personnel and senior management personnel. The 
Company’s remuneration policy is driven by the success and performance of the Director, KMP and Senior 
Management Personnel vis-à-vis the Company. The Company’s philosophy is to align them and provide 
adequate compensation  
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with the Objective of the Company so that the compensation is used as a strategic tool that helps us attract, 
retain and motivate highly talented individuals who are committed to the core value of the Company. The 

Company follows a combination of fixed pay, benefits and performance-based variable pay. The Company pays 

remuneration by way of salary, benefits, perquisites and allowance. The remuneration and sitting fees paid by 
the Company are within the salary scale approved by the Board and Shareholders. 

 

Board Evaluation 
 

Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement mandates that the Board shall monitor and review the Board evaluation 
framework. The Companies Act, 2013 states that a formal annual evaluation needs to be made by the Board of 

its own performance and individual Directors. Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 states that the 

performance evaluation of Independent Directors shall be done by the entire Board of Directors excluding the 
Director being evaluated. A structured questionnaire was prepared after taking into consideration the various 

aspects of the Board’s functioning, composition of the Board and Committees, culture, execution and 
performance of specific duties, obligation and governance. 

 

The evaluation of all the Directors and the Board as a whole was conducted based on the criteria and 

framework adopted by the Board. The Board approved the evaluation results as suggested by the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee. The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was completed. For 

the year under review, the Independent Directors met on 28th May, 2025, inter alia, to discuss: 

 

● Performance evaluation of Independent Directors and Board of Directors as a whole; 
 

● Evaluation of the quality of the flow of information between the Management and Board for effective 
performance by the Board. The Board of Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process. 

 

 

PUBLIC DEPOSITS 
 

During the period under review, the Company has not accepted or renewed any deposits from shareholders 

and public falling within the ambit of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder. 
 

 

SHARE CAPITAL 
 

The paid-up equity share capital as at 31st March, 2025, stood at Rs. 7,21,15,000. 
 

 

POLICIES 
 

We seek to promote and follow the highest level of ethical standards in all our business transactions guided by 

our value system. The SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015 mandated the 

formulation of certain policies for all listed companies. The policies are reviewed periodically by the Board and 
updated based on need and new compliance requirements.  
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VIGIL MECHANISM 
 

The Company has established a vigil mechanism and accordingly framed a Whistle Blower Policy. The policy 

enables the employees to report instances of unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of 
Company’s Code of Conduct to the management. Further the mechanism adopted by the Company 

encourages the Whistle Blower to 

 
report genuine concerns or grievances and provide for adequate safeguards against victimization of the 

Whistle Blower who avails of such mechanism and also provides for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit 

Committee in exceptional cases. The functioning of vigil mechanism is reviewed by the Audit Committee from 

time to time. No whistle blower has been denied access to the Audit Committee of the Board. 

 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 
 

There were no incidences of sexual harassment reported during the year under review, in terms of the 
provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 

2013. 

 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 

Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, a separate report on Corporate 

Governance and a certificate from the Auditors of the Company are annexed to the Directors’ Report. 

 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 
 

Your attention is drawn to the perception and business outlook of your management for your company for 

current year and for the industry in which it operates including its position and perceived trends in near future. 

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report, as required under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with 
the Stock Exchange is attached and forms part of this Directors’ Report. 

 

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 
 

The Company has developed and implemented a risk management policy which identifies major risks which 
may threaten the existence of the Company. The same has also been adopted by your Board and is also 

subject to its review from time to time. 
 

 

OTHER DISCLOSURES AS PER SECTION 134 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 
 

● There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remark or disclaimer by the Statutory Auditor or by 
the Secretarial Auditor in their respective reports. 

 
● There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company which 

have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company, to which the financial statements 
relate and the date of the report. 

 
● Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with section 134(3)(a) of the Act, the Annual Return as on 31st March, 

2025 is available on the Company’s Website at https://epicenergy.in/financial-reports-and-presentations/  
 
  

https://epicenergy.in/financial-reports-and-presentations/


19  | Page                                                                                                                                                           ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 

 

KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS 
 

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 % Change 

Current Ratio (in times) 2.85 1.76 61.93 

Return on Equity (in %) 17.63 5.50 220.55 

Trade receivables Turnover Ratio (in times) 4.06 3.84             5.73 

Trade payables Turnover Ratio (in times) 10.44 11.09 (5.86) 

Net Capital Turnover Ratio (in times) 01.26 2.00 (37.00) 

Net Profit Ratio (in %) 30.60 11.70 (161.54) 

Return on Net worth    

The details of return on net worth are given below:    

    

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 % Change 

Return on capital employed (in %) 12.44 4.80 159.17 

 

Detailed Reason for change of 25% or more in Key Financial Ratios is given in notes to accounts. 
 

 

CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES 

 

All the related party transactions that were entered during the financial year were in the ordinary course of 
business of the Company and were on arm’s length basis. There were no materially significant related party 
transactions entered by the Company with its Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other persons 
which may have potential conflict with the interest of the Company. 
 
All Related Party transactions are placed before the Audit Committee for approval, wherever applicable. Prior 
omnibus approval for normal business transactions is also obtained from the Audit Committee for the related 
party transactions which are of repetitive nature and accordingly, the required disclosures are made to the 
Committee on a quarterly basis in terms of the approval of the Committee. 

 

All the related party transactions entered into by the Company were in the ordinary course of business and were 
on an arm’s length basis as provided in Annexure II. 
 
 
 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

 

Information relating to conservation of energy, technology and foreign earning and outgo, as required under 
Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 forms part of this Directors’ Report as Annexure III. 

 

PARTICULAR OF EMPLOYEES PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES PURSUANT TO SECTION 134(3) OF THE COMPANIES 
(AMENDMENT) ACT, 2017 READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF 
MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) AMENDMENT RULES, 2016 

 

The information required in terms of Section 134(3) of the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 read with Rule 5(1) 
of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Amendment Rules, 2016 is furnished 
hereunder:  
 
 

 



20  | Page                                                                                                                                                           ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 

 

i. The ratio of the remuneration of Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company: 
Not Applicable  

ii. The percentage increase in remuneration of CFO, CS during the financial year: NIL  
iii. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year is NIL 

 
iv. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the company at the end of the financial year 2024-25 is 

5.  
v. It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration of KMP’s are in accordance with the Remuneration Policy.  

 

Sr no Name Designation 
Remuneration Paid 

FY 2024-25 
Remuneration Paid 

FY 2023-24 

Percentage 
Increase in 

Remuneration 

Ratio per Median 
of Employee 

Remuneration 

1 Mr Nikhil Morsawala CFO - - - - 

2 Ms Hetvi Patel 

Head – Project 
Finance, 
Management 
Accounts and 
MIS 

5.37 - - - 

3 Mr Sandipkumar Gupta 
Company 
Secretary 

6.00 4.80 25 2 

4 Mr Atul Mishra 

Head – Accounts 
and Taxation 

 

6.00 6.00 - - 

 
INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

 

Your Company has laid down the set of standards, processes and structure which enables it to implement internal 
financial control across the organisation and ensure that the same are adequate and operating effectively. To 
maintain the objectivity and independence of internal audit, the Internal Auditor reports to the Chairman of the 
Audit Committee of the Board. 

 

The Internal Auditor monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of internal control systems in the 
Company, its compliance with the operating systems, accounting procedures and policies of the Company. 
 
Based on the report of the Internal Auditor, the process owners undertake the corrective action in their 
respective areas and thereby strengthen the control. Significant audit observation and corrective actions thereon 
are presented to the Audit Committee of the Board. 

 

AUDITORS 
 
The Shareholders at the 33rd Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on 26th August, 2024 had approved the 
appointment of M/s. NGST & Associates (FRN:135159W), Chartered Accountants, as Statutory Auditors of the 
Company, for a term of five years i.e. till the conclusion of AGM to be held in year 2029. 
 
The Report of the Auditors on the Accounts of the Company is attached herewith, and being self-explanatory, 
does not need further elaboration.  
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Secretarial Audit Report and Certificate 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, your Company had appointed Mr. Vijay Tiwari, Practicing 
Company Secretary to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the FY 2024-25. The Secretarial Audit 
Report for the FY 2024-25 is annexed to this Directors’ Report as Annexure-IV. 

 

Directors’ Qualification Certificate 

 

In terms of SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015, a certificate from Mr. Vijay Tiwari, Practicing Company Secretary has 
been received stating that none of the Directors on the board of the company have been debarred or disqualified 
from being appointed or continuing as directors of company by the Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any 
such statutory authority and the same is annexed to this report. 

 

Disclosure of transactions of the listed entity with any person or entity belonging to the promoter/promoter 
group which hold(s) 10% or more shareholding in the listed entity: 

 

During the financial year 2024-25, no such transaction took place with any person or entity belonging to the 
promoter/ promoter group which hold(s) 10% or more shareholding in the listed entity. 

 

Corporate Social Responsibility 

 

Subject to the provisions of Section 135 and Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2015, the Company is not mandatorily required to undertake CSR 
initiatives. The report of the CSR activities is not applicable to the Company. 

 

DONATION: 
 

During the year, the Company has not given donations to any charitable trust. 

 

DECLARATION ABOUT INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS UNDER SUB-SECTION 6 OF SECTION 149: 

 

The Company has received the declarations from Independent Directors that they meet the criteria of 
independence laid down under section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and under regulation 16(b) of SEBI 
(LODR) Regulations, 2015. 

 

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT  
As stipulated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, Directors subscribe to the “Directors’ Responsibility 
Statement” and confirm that: 

 

a) In preparation of annual accounts for the year ended 31st March 2025, the applicable accounting 
standards have been followed and no material departures have been made from the same;  

b) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made Judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of 
the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the Company for that year; 

 
c) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records 

in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;  
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d) The Directors have prepared the annual accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2025, on a going 
concern basis. 

 
e) The Directors have laid down the internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that 

such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and 
 

f) The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws 
and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively. 

 

AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
The Auditors’ Report on the accounts of the Company for the accounting year ended 31st March, 2025, is self-
explanatory and does not call for further explanations or comments that may be treated as adequate compliance 
of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

GENERAL 

 

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as there were no 
transactions on these items during the year under review:  

1. Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.  
2. Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any ESOS scheme. 

 
3. The Company does not have a Managing Director or any subsidiaries, and as such the question of the 

Managing Director of the Company receiving any remuneration or commission from any of its subsidiaries 
does not arise. 

 
4. No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact the 

going concern status and Company’s operations in future. 

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 

Your Directors express their appreciation for the assistance and cooperation received from its Bankers, various 
government authorities, customers, vendors and members during the year under review. Your Directors also wish 
to place on record their deep sense of appreciation for the committed services by the executives, staff and 
workers of the Company. 
 
 
 
 

Date: 2nd September, 2025                                                 By order of the Board 

Place: Mumbai                                                 Bharat Mehta 

                                                 Director  
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ANNEXURE I  
FORM NO. Aoc-2 

  
Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub-

section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third provision thereto. 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: There were no contracts or arrangements or 

transactions entered in to during the year ended on 31 March 2025, which were not at arm’s length basis. 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis 

a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship 

1. Nikhil Morsawala - (Group Chief Financial Officer) 

2. Bharat Mehta - (Independent Non-Executive Director) 

3. Brian Dsouza- (Independent Non-Executive Director) 

4. Veena Morsawala- (Non-Executive Director) 

5. Priya Joshi- (Independent Non-Executive Director) 

6. Hetvi Patel- (Head – Project Finance, Management 

Accounts and MIS) 

7. Sandipkumar Gupta - (Company Secretary and 

Compliance Officer) 

8. Atul Mishra - (Head – Accounts and Taxation) 

b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions 

1. Advance Taken & Repaid 

2. Director Fees  

3. Director Fees  

4. Director Fees  

5. Director Fees  

6. Salary paid 

7. Salary Paid 

8. Salary Paid 

c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions 

1. Perpetual 

2. Professional 

3. Professional 

4. Professional 

5. Professional 

6. Professional 

7. Professional 

8. Salary Paid 

d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or 

transactions including the value, if any Nil 

e) Justification for entering into such contracts or 

arrangements or Transactions Nil 

f) Date(s) of approval by the Board Nil 

g) Amount paid/repaid as advances, if any 

1. 167.72 lakh 

2. 0.56 lakh 

3. 0.28 lakh 

4. 0.28 lakh 

5. 0.28 lakh 

6. 5.37 lakh 

7. 6.00 lakh 

8. 6.00 lakh 

h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in 

general meeting as required under first proviso to 

section 188 
Nil 
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ANNEXURE II  
Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Research & Development and Foreign Exchange Earnings and  

Outgo  
[Pursuant to Section 134 (3) (m) of the Act read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014  

 
 

a)  Energy conservation measures taken Nil  
  

   

b) Additional investments and proposals if any, being implemented for reduction of   

consumption of energy Nil  
  

   

c)  Impact of the measures at (a) and (b) above for reduction of energy consumption and   

consequent impact on the cost of production of goods Nil  
  

   

d) Total energy consumption and energy consumption per unit of Production Nil  
  

   

e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or Transactions Nil  
  

   

f)  Date(s) of approval by the Board Nil  
  

   

g)  Amount paid as advances, if any Nil  
  

   

h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first   

proviso to section 188 Nil  
   

Form – A   

Form for Disclosure of Particulars with Respect to Conservation of Energy   
   

a)  Power and fuel consumption Nil  
  

   

b)  Consumption per unit of production Nil  
  

   

Form – B   

Form for Disclosure of Particulars with Respect to Technology Absorption etc. ,   
   

a)  Research and Development 5.69  
 lacs  

b)  Technology Absorption, Adaptation and Innovation Nil  
  

   

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo,   
   

a)  Earnings in Foreign Exchange during the year Nil  
  

   

b)  Foreign Exchange outgo during the year Nil  
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ANNEXURE III  
Form No. MR-3  

Secretarial Audit Report 
 
For the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025 (Pursuant to section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 

9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014)  

 

To,  
The Members,  
Epic Energy Limited 

 

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to 
good corporate practices by Epic Energy Limited (hereinafter called ‘the Company’). Secretarial Audit was 
conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 
compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

 

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and 
authorised representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the 
Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March 2025, generally complied 
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and 
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 
Company for the financial year ended on 31 March 2025, according to the provisions of: 

 

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the rules made there under as applicable;  
ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;  

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Byelaws framed there under; 
 
iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent 

of Foreign Direct Investment and Overseas Direct Investment;  
v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,  

1992 (‘SEBI Act’):- 
 

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 
Takeovers) Regulations,2011;  

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992; 
 

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

 
I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Listing Agreements entered into by the 
Company with Bombay Stock Exchange Limited. 
 
During the period under review the Company has generally complied with the all material aspects of applicable 
provisions of the Acts, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. 

 

During the Period under review, provisions of the following Acts, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. 
were not applicable to the Company: 
 

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2009;  

  



26  | Page                                                                                                                                                           ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 

 

ii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock 
Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share based 
employee benefits) Regulations,2014;  

iii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009;  
iv) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;  
v) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; 

 
vi) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent 

of External Commercial Borrowings; and  
vii) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

 

I further report that – 
 

- The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Non-Executive Directors 
and Independent Directors. 

 
- Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on 

agenda were sent generally in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information 
and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

 
- Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded as part 

of the minutes. 
 

I further report that – 
 

- There are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations of 
the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.  

- I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Listing Agreements entered into by the 
Company with Bombay Stock Exchange Limited. 

 
 
 

 

Vijay S. Tiwari  
Company Secretary  
ACS/FCS No: 33084 CP No: 12220 

 
 
 

 

Place: Mumbai  
Date: 28th August, 2025 

 
UDIN: A033084G001134723  
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ANNEXURE – A 

 

To,  
The Members,  
EPIC ENERGY LIMITED 

 

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

 

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit. 

 
2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about 

the correctness of the contents of secretarial records. The verification was done based on the records and 
documents provided, on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe 
that the processes and practices followed by me provide a reasonable basis for my opinion. 

 
3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the 

Company. 

 
4. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules 

and regulations and happening of events etc. 

 
5. The compliance of the provision of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 

responsibility of management. My examination was limited to verification of procedures on test basis. 

 
6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficacy 

or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 
 
 
 
 

 

Vijay S. Tiwari  
Company Secretary  
ACS/FCS No: 33084 CP No: 12220 

 
 
 
 

 

Place: Mumbai  
Date: 28th August, 2025 

 
UDIN: A033084G001134723  
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS  
For the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025  

[Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure  
Requirements) Regulations, 2015]  

 

To,  
The Members,  
EPIC ENERGY LIMITED 
 

Dear Sir, 
 

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Epic 

Energy Limited having CIN L67120MH1991PLC063103 and having registered office at Office No.206, A Wing, 2nd 

Floor, Gokul Arcade, Swami Nityanand Road, Vile Parle-East, Mumbai-400057 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the 

Company’), produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with 

the Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors 

Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations 

furnished to me by the Company and its officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the 

Company as stated below for the financial year ending on 31st March 2025 have been debarred or disqualified 

from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority.  
 

Sr No Name of Director DIN 
Date of Appointment in 

Company    

1 Veena Nikhil Morsawala 01310075 29/09/2015 
    

2 Brian Andre Dsouza 02176486 14/11/2017 
    

3 Priya Kishor Joshi 10590560 22/07/2024 
    

4 Harshal Appasaheb Gunde 10883967 26/08/2024 
    

5 Bharat Indravadan Mehta 00271878 17/06/2019 
    

 

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment/continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the 
management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on my verification. This 
certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness 
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 
 
 
 

 

Vijay S. Tiwari  
Company Secretary  
ACS/FCS No: 33084 CP No: 12220 

 
 
 

 

Place: Mumbai  
Date: 28th August, 2025 

 
UDIN: A033084G001134723  
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Management Discussion and Analysis 
 
 

Power Sector in India 
 

Energy Overview 
 

Total Installed Capacity (as on 30.06.2025)1 

 

Sector MW % of Total 
   

State Sector 111077.18 22.91 % 
   

Central Sector 108532.93 22.39 % 
   

Private Sector 265208.72 54.70 % 
   

Total 484818.82 100% 
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

(Source: Central Electricity Authority CEA)  
 
 

 

Total Installed Capacity 
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Installed Generation Capacity Category Wise (as on 31.05.2025)2 

 

Category  Installed Generation % of Share in Total 

   Capacity (MW)  
     

  Fossil Fuel  
     

Total Fossil Fuel  240060 50.5 % 
     

 Coal  212718 44.7 % 
     

 Lignite  6620 1.4 % 
     

 Gas  20132 4.2 % 
     

 Diesel  589 0.1 % 
    

 Non Fossil Fuel  
   

RES (Inclu.Hydro)   226751 47.7 % 
     

 Hydro  47928 10.1 % 
    

Wind Solar and other RE  178823 37.6 % 
      
 

 

1 https://cea.nic.in/installed-capacity-report/?lang=en 
2 https://powermin.gov.in/sites/default/files/uploads/power_sector_at_glance.pdf   
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Wind 51292  10.8 % 
    

Solar 110834  23.3 % 
    

BM Power/Cogen 10743  2.3 % 
    

Waste to Energy 851  0.2 % 
    

Small Hydro Power 5102  1.2% 
    

Nuclear  8780 1.8 % 
    

Total Non-Fossil Fuel  235531 49.5 % 
    

Total Installed Capacity  475590 100% 

(Fossil Fuel and Non-Fossil fuel)    
     
 

 

Fossil Fuel and Non Fossil Fuel Capacity 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 Coal Lignite Gas  

 Diesel Hydro Wind solar and other RE 

 wind solar BM Power/cogen 

 Waste to Energy Small Hydro power Nuclear 

 

Plan wise Growth Electricity Sector in India3 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
3 https://cea.nic.in/dashboard/?lang=en 
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India's overall installed power generation capacity significantly rose, reaching approximately 476 GW by mid-2025, a 
jump of about 56% from the 305 GW in 2015–16. This substantial growth was driven by strong demand, government 
policies, and increasing investment in both traditional and renewable energy. Notably, the non-fossil fuel capacity 
has also seen remarkable growth, becoming a key component of this expansion 

 

Power is among the most critical components of infrastructure, crucial for the economic growth and welfare of 
nations. The existence and development of adequate power infrastructure is essential for sustained growth of the 
Indian economy. This document details the performance and key developments in India's power sector during the 

first quarter (January–March) of 2025. India added a total power generating capacity of 13,495 megawatts (MW)4 
in 1Q 2025. Renewables accounted for 78.9% of all new capacity additions. With gas capacity retirement of 285MW, 
the net capacity added was 13,210MW. With these additions, India’s total cumulative power generation capacity 
reached 475.2 gigawatts (GW) as of March 31, 2025. 

 

Solar, coal, and wind power were the main contributors to this growth, accounting for 57.7%, 21.1% and 13.9%, 
respectively, of the total capacity added, reflecting the continuing emphasis on clean energy along with targeted 
thermal capacity additions to meet rising electricity demand. 

 

Key Capacity Achievements in 1Q 2025 

 

● Solar power capacity surpassed 100 GW in January 2025; total capacity stood at 105,646 MW by the end of March 
(an increase of 7,782 MW during the quarter). Solar installed capacity grew at a remarkable rate over a decade, 
from 2.82GW in 2014 to 100GW in 2025.  

● Wind power capacity crossed the 50 GW mark, reaching 50,038 MW (an increase of 1,875 MW). 
 
● Total non-fossil fuel power capacity reached 228GW in 1Q 2025, including contributions from hydro, biomass, 

waste-to-energy, and nuclear power.  
● Hydro capacity increased by 760 MW in Q1, with new stations commissioned in Himachal Pradesh and Kerala. 
● Waste-to-Energy capacity rose by 220 MW in the same period, and biomass-based capacity increased by 15 MW. 
 
● Coal capacity recorded a net increase of 2,843 MW during Q1, driven by project completions across multiple states, 

although coal’s share in total installed capacity continued to decline to 46.7%.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
4 https://www.pib.gov.in/FactsheetDetails.aspx?Id=149218 
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State-wise Renewable Capacity Additions 

 

● Rajasthan: 1,973 MW 

● Gujarat: 1,910 MW 

● Maharashtra: 1,780 MW 

● Karnataka: 1,316 MW 

● Andhra Pradesh: 940 MW 
 
 
 
 

Renewable Energy Investments 

 

Investments in India’s Renewable Energy Sector5 (US$ million) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Investments in India’s renewable energy sector reached record levels in 1Q 2025, driven by large-scale acquisitions 
and substantial debt financing deals. 

 

Key Investment Trends 

 

● Total investment reached US$9.84 billion in 1Q 2025, a 7.7-fold increase compared to US$1.279 billion in 1Q 2024. 
● Compared to the previous quarter (4Q 2024), investments increased by 2.6 times. 
● This was the highest quarterly investment in India’s renewable sector in the last three years. 

 

Foreign Trend and Prices of Energy Resources6 

 
Year-wise Foreign Trade in Coal, Crude Oil, Petroleum Products(total), Natural Gas and Electricity (million tonnes)  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
5 https://www.pib.gov.in/FactsheetDetails.aspx?Id=149218

 
 

6 
 

https://www.mospi.gov.in/sites/default/files/publication_reports/Energy_Statistics_2025/Energy%20Statistics%20India%20202 
5_27032025.pdf   
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Renewable Energy Status in India 

 

India's renewable energy sector has seen substantial growth in recent years, with a total installed capacity of 
226.79 GW by June 2025. This includes 105,646 MW of solar and 50,038 MW of wind power, (source: PIB). 
India ranks 4th globally in renewable energy installed capacity, 4th in wind power, and 3rd in solar power. The 
country is also making significant strides in expanding its manufacturing capacity for wind turbines and 
components. 

 

Physical Achievements in Renewable Energy in India7 
  

Sector    FY 2025-26 Achievements Cumulative Achievements (as on 

        31.7.2025) 

Installed RE Capacity (Capacities in MW)     

           
Solar Power*    13369.58  119016.54  

Wind Power    2102.28  52140.10  
           

Biomass (Bagasse) 0.00    9821.32    
cogeneration            
           

Biomass(non-    0.00    921.79    
bagasse)Cogeneration         
         

Waste to Energy   0.00    309.34    

Waste to Energy (off- 14.24   545.11    
grid)            
       

Small Hydro Power  8.16    5108.71    

Sub Total (Exe. Hydro) 15494.26 187862.91 

      
Large Hydro Power 1900.00   49628.17   

Total RE    17394.26 237491.08  
 

*Solar Power (Cumulative) : 119.02 GW  
● Ground Mounted Solar Plant : 90.99 GW  

 

7 https://mnre.gov.in/en/physical-progress/ 
  

https://www.pib.gov.in/FactsheetDetails.aspx?Id=149218
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● Grid Connected Solar Rooftop: 19.88 GW 

● Hybrid Projects (Solar Component) : 3.06 GW 

● Off-Grid Solar: 5.09 GW 
 
 

Renewable Energy Trends in India 

 

In recent years, renewable energy has gained significant momentum, driven by the rising consciousness to reduce 
carbon emissions. By 2025, the renewable energy landscape is expected to evolve further, with new trends emerging 
in renewable energy sources, technologies, and market dynamics. India alone, is projected to see robust growth in 
renewable energy, smart grids, and electric vehicles by 2025. 

 

India's energy demand is expected to increase more than that of any other country in the coming decades due to its 
size and enormous potential for development. The GOI aims to achieve net zero carbon emissions by 2070. To that 
effect, we must meet our bubbling energy demands by low-carbon resources. As of 2023, India ranked fourth in both 
wind and solar power capacity, and in total renewable energy capacity. The country’s renewable energy capacity has 
been growing quickly, with an annual growth rate of 15.4% from 2016 to 2023. By the end of FY23, India had 125.15 
GW of renewable energy capacity. It is the fastest-growing market for renewable electricity, and by 2026, it's 
expected that the country will add even more capacity, possibly doubling its current figures.  

 

With strong government support and improved 
economics, the renewable energy sector has become an 
appealing area for investors. As India’s energy demand is 

projected to reach 15,820 TWh8 by 2040, renewable 
energy will be key to meeting this growing need. 

 
 

 

Renewable energy and its global impetus 
 

The renewable energy sector has undergone significant 
transformations in recent years, primarily influenced by technological innovations, government incentives, and a 
growing global commitment to combat climate change. One of the most notable clean energy trends is the increasing 
efficiency of renewable energy technologies. Solar and wind energy have witnessed remarkable improvements in 
energy generation efficiency, making them more competitive with traditional fossil fuels. 

 

Another significant trend is the rise of decentralized energy systems, where energy generation and storage are 
localized. This shift allows for greater energy resilience and autonomy, especially in remote or off-grid areas. Solar 
panels, small-scale wind turbines, and home batteries are becoming more accessible to residences and offices, thus 
reducing dependence on centralized power grids. 

 

The renewable energy industry is also embracing digital transformation, with advanced data analytics and artificial 
intelligence (AI) playing crucial roles in optimizing energy production and distribution. Smart grids, which enable real-
time energy monitoring and dynamic adjustments, are being integrated into energy systems, resulting in better load 
management and enhanced grid stability. 

 

In addition, energy storage technologies have made considerable advancements. Batteries, particularly lithium-ion 
batteries, are now more affordable and efficient, enabling the storage of excess energy generated during peak 
production times for later use. This addresses one of the key challenges of renewable energy: intermittency.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

8 https://www.tatapower.com/blogs/renewable-energy-trends-in-2025 
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The tide of renewable energy trends in India 

 

India is poised to play a central role in the global transition to renewable energy. The country’s vast geographical 
diversity and abundant natural resources offer immense potential for renewable energy generation. In recent years, 
India has made significant strides in expanding its renewable energy capacity, particularly in solar and wind energy. 
 

One of the most notable recent trends in renewable energy in India is the country’s ambitious commitment to 
achieve 500 GW of non-fossil fuel capacity by 2030. To meet this target, India is focusing on scaling up solar power 
installations, wind energy projects, and green hydrogen production. The government’s incentives, such as tax 
rebates and subsidies for renewable energy projects, are helping to drive investments in the sector. 

 

India's total electricity generation capacity has reached 452.69 GW, with renewable energy making up a significant 
part of the mix. By October 2024, renewable energy capacity stood at 203.18 GW, which is over 46.3% of the 
country's total capacity. This shows a major shift in India’s energy use, as the country increasingly depends on 
cleaner, non-fossil fuel sources. 
 

Several renewable resources contribute to this growth. Solar power leads with 92.12 GW, making the most of India’s 
abundant sunlight. Wind power follows with 47.72 GW, thanks to the country’s large wind corridors. Hydroelectric 
power is another important source, with large hydro projects contributing 46.93 GW and small hydro adding 5.07 
GW, harnessing energy from India’s rivers. 
 

Additionally, India has seen a surge in rooftop solar installations, particularly in urban areas. With the decreasing 
cost of solar panels and the availability of financing options, residential and commercial buildings are increasingly 
adopting solar energy as a sustainable solution to meet their electricity needs. 
 

Biopower, which includes biomass and biogas, adds another 11.32 GW, using agricultural waste and other organic 
materials for power generation. These renewable energy sources are helping India reduce its reliance on fossil fuels, 
moving toward a more sustainable energy future. The country’s growing renewable energy market has attracted 
international investors, and India’s renewable energy sector is now one of the most attractive in the world. As of 
2023, India has become the world’s third-largest solar market and continues to be a leader in the deployment of 
large-scale solar and wind projects. 
 

Clean energy trends in 2025 

 

As we look ahead to 2025, several clean energy trends are expected to shape the future of the renewable energy 
industry. One of the most significant trends is the continued decrease in the cost of renewable energy production. 
 
1. Solar and wind energy, which have already become more affordable in recent years, are expected to 

become even cheaper, making them more accessible to both developed and developing nations. 
 
2. Another clean energy trend that is likely to dominate in 2025 is the widespread adoption of hydrogen as a clean 
fuel. Hydrogen, produced through renewable energy sources like wind or solar power, is seen as a promising 
solution for decarbonizing industries that are hard to electrify, such as heavy transportation, steel manufacturing, 
and chemical production. The development of hydrogen infrastructure and technologies will be crucial to realizing its 
potential as a mainstream energy source. 
 
3. Electric vehicles (EVs) will continue to grow in popularity, driving demand for renewable energy to charge the 
increasing number of EVs on the road. The integration of renewable energy sources with EV charging 
infrastructure will be a key component of reducing emissions from the transportation sector 
 
4. As renewable energy production, such as solar and wind, relies on intermittent sources, energy storage 
technologies will continue to evolve. By 2025, we will see more efficient and affordable energy storage solutions, 
particularly large-scale batteries, which will be critical to balancing supply and demand and ensuring grid stability in 
renewable-powered systems 
 
5. The interplay of solar power and electric vehicles (EVs) is expected to grow significantly in the next few years. By 
2025, we’ll see a surge in solar-powered EV charging stations, allowing drivers to charge their vehicles using clean, 
renewable energy    
In addition, as nations ramp up their commitment to achieving net-zero emissions by mid-century, the role of 
renewable energy will become even more prominent in national energy mixes. The integration of renewable energy   

https://www.tatapower.com/blogs/how-solar-energy-powers-electric-vehicles-for-a-sustainable-future
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into industries like agriculture, manufacturing, and construction will further contribute to the global transition to clean 
energy. 
 

Future Trends in Renewable Energy in India 

 

Looking towards 2025 and beyond, renewable energy trends in India are expected to continue on a positive trajectory. 

One key trend is the increased integration of renewable energy with electric mobility. With the government’s push for 

electric vehicles, India is investing in the development of renewable-powered EV charging infrastructure. This will not only 

reduce emissions from transportation but also provide a clean, sustainable energy source for the country’s growing fleet 

of electric vehicles. Another future trend is the development of energy storage systems to complement India’s renewable 

energy initiatives. As the country’s reliance on solar and wind power increases, efficient energy storage solutions will be 

crucial to balancing supply and demand, especially during periods of low generation. By 2025, India is expected to have 

made significant progress in large-scale battery storage projects, helping to stabilize the grid and reduce energy waste. 

India is also exploring the potential of green hydrogen as a key energy source. As part of its broader commitment to 

decarbonize its economy, India is investing in the production of green hydrogen using renewable energy, which could 

revolutionize sectors like heavy industry and transportation. 
 

Solar Energy Status in India  
 
 

 

In 2025, India ranks as the third-largest producer of solar 
power globally. This places India behind China and the 
United States in terms of solar energy generation. India's 
rapid growth in solar energy capacity has been driven by 
government initiatives and investments in solar power 
plants, including large-scale solar parks. 

 
India is steadily moving towards renewable energy while 
maintaining its focus on national energy goals and international 
climate commitments. As of March 2025, coal remains the 
largest source of electricity in the country, contributing 45.28% 
of the total installed power capacity. However, renewable 
energy sources, especially solar and wind, are growing at a fast 
pace, showing India’s commitment 

 
to cleaner and more sustainable energy solutions. By the end of March 2025, renewable energy accounted for 
36.27% of India’s total installed power capacity. Solar power was a major driver of this growth. India crossed 105.646 

GW9 in solar photovoltaic capacity by March 2025. The total renewable energy capacity, excluding large 
hydroelectric projects, reached 172.368 GW. Solar energy made up 61.29% of this renewable capacity and accounted 
for 22.23% of India’s overall installed power capacity. This marked a 29.13% increase compared to the previous year, 
reflecting the rapid growth in solar installations. In 2024 alone, India added over 24.5 GW of new solar capacity. In 
the first three months of 2025, India installed 7,781.77 MW of solar capacity. Government programs such as the 
Approved List of Models and Manufacturers for Solar Modules and Cells are promoting the use of high-quality 
products and encouraging domestic manufacturing.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

9 https://solarquarter.com/2025/04/28/indias-solar-surge-over-105-gw-installed-22-of-total-power-capacity-by-march-2025/
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Factors behind growth of Solar Energy in India  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Geographical Advantage: India receives abundant solar radiation, with ~300 sunny days per year and an average of 
4-7 kWh/m²/day, making most regions ideal for solar power generation.  

 

● Government Schemes:   

o Pradhan Mantri Kisan Urja Suraksha evam Utthaan Mahabhiyan (PM-KUSUM) Scheme targeting 30.8 GW10 
solar power in agricultural sector. 

 
o PM Surya Ghar: Muft Bijli Yojana enabling nearly 10.09 lakh rooftop solar installations (March 2025), 

establishment of National Institute of Solar Energy etc. The country added 1.2 GW of rooftop solar capacity in 
Q1 2025, with Gujarat, Maharashtra, and Uttar Pradesh leading installations. 

 

● Financial support and encouraging investment: India has allowed 100% of foreign direct investment (FDI) 
through the automated process. 

 
o Further, Interstate transmission system (ISTS) fees are waived for solar and wind energy sales across states 

for projects that are scheduled to be put into service by June 30, 2025. 
 

● Boost RE consumption: Renewable Purchase Obligation (RPO) trajectory has been announced till 2029-30 
including separate RPO for Decentralized Renewable Energy. 

 
● Indigenous manufacturing of solar components: Through initiatives like Solar Park Scheme, Production Linked 

Incentive (PLI) Scheme under National Programme on High Efficiency Solar PV Modules, etc. 
 

● Consumer awareness: Bureau of Energy Efficiency (BEE) launched Standards and Labelling (S&L) programs 
for both grid-connected solar inverters and solar photovoltaic (PV) modules in March 2024, aiming to help 
consumers make informed choices and improve energy efficiency. 

 
● Building infrastructure: Under the Green Energy Corridor Scheme, the government is laying new 

transmission lines and creating new sub-station capacity for evacuation of renewable power. 
 

● International Cooperation and Leadership: Initiatives like International Solar alliance, put India at the 
forefront of investing in clean energy technologies, by increasing energy access, guaranteeing energy 
security, and accelerating the energy transition among its member nations.  

 
o Further, Indo-German Solar Energy Partnership (IGSP) is developing market forces while introducing 

enabling mechanisms and facilitating investments in rooftop PV systems.  
 
 

 
10 https://visionias.in/current-affairs/monthly-magazine/2025-03-24/environment/solar-energy-in-india
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Wind Energy Status in India  
 
 

As of early to mid-2025, India's wind energy capacity exceeded 51 
GW, solidifying its position as the fourth-largest wind power market 
globally, driven by supportive government policies and a robust 
manufacturing base. Gujarat, Tamil Nadu, and Karnataka lead in 
installed capacity, while challenges remain in meeting the 
ambitious 2030 target of 140 GW, necessitating further 
infrastructure development, and exploring offshore wind energy. 

 

 

As the world marked World Wind Day 2025 on June 15, India has 
crossed a significant milestone, with wind power capacity 

surpassing 51 gigawatts (GW)11 as of May, consolidating its 
position as the fourth-largest wind energy market globally. 

 

Gujarat has emerged as the national frontrunner, with installed capacity rising to 12,677 MW by March 2025 from 
11,722 megawatts (MW) in March 2024 — an annual growth of 8.14 per cent. Tamil Nadu, long seen as India’s wind 
energy pioneer, maintained its second-place status, registering a steady 10.71 per cent growth to 11,739 MW from 
10,603 MW. 

 

Karnataka, however, stood out as the fastest-growing state, recording a striking 22.13 per cent increase to 7,351 
MW from 6,019 MW, underscoring its rise as a key player in India’s wind sector. 
 

Despite these gains, India’s wind energy ambitions face mounting challenges that could derail its target of 140 GW 
by 2030. Reaching that goal would require nearly 100 GW of new installations over the next five years. This is a 
formidable task, given persistent structural and systemic hurdles. India’s wind turbine manufacturing sector is 
marked by a striking paradox: While domestic capacity stands at a robust 18 GW annually across 14 original 
equipment manufacturers (OEM), only 4.15 GW was installed in 2024-25, less than a quarter of available capacity. 
The Union Ministry of New and Renewable Energy’s (MNRE) Revised List of Models and Manufacturers (RLMM), 
updated in May 2025, includes 33 approved turbine models. Indian firms account for 14 of these, led by Suzlon and 
Pioneer Wincon, while international players such as Siemens Gamesa, Senvion and Vestas dominate with 19 models. 
 

LED Market in India  
 

The India LED market is experiencing robust growth in 2025, with 

some reports valuing it at over $4.9 billion and projecting a 

significant increase by 2030. This expansion is driven by decreasing 

manufacturing costs, government energy-efficiency initiatives like 
the Smart Cities Mission, and the increasing demand for smart, 

connected (IoT) lighting systems. The residential sector currently 

dominates, fuelled by government programs and consumer 

preference for cost savings, but industrial and agricultural segments 

are also showing strong growth.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
11 https://www.downtoearth.org.in/renewable-energy/indias-wind-energy-soars-past-51-gw-but-2030-targets-face-
turbulence#google_vignette 
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The light emitting diode (LED) lighting market in India size is forecast to increase by USD 2.93 billion at a CAGR of 11.4% 

between 2024 and 202912. The LED lighting market is experiencing significant growth due to several key factors. 
 

One major trend is the declining manufacturing costs of LED lights, making them increasingly affordable for both 
residential and commercial applications. Another driving force is government initiatives aimed at promoting energy 
efficiency and reducing carbon emissions, which has led to a growth in demand for LED lights. Wi-Fi and IoT integration 
enable smart lighting systems, allowing for wireless communication and the implementation of occupancy sensors. 

 

India’s Energy Landscape 

 

India has made significant progress in strengthening its energy sector in recent years. The country is successfully 

balancing the twin goals of meeting rising electricity demand and promoting sustainability. According to the 

International Energy Agency (IEA), 85% of the increase in global electricity demand over the next three years will 

come from emerging and developing economies. As one of the fastest-growing major economies, India plays a 

central role in the global energy transition. Its energy demand is expected to grow at the fastest rate among major 

economies, driven by sustained economic growth. Consequently, India's share in global primary energy consumption 

is projected to double by 2035. 
 

Over the past decade, India’s power sector has seen robust expansion driven by rising demand, infrastructure 
development, and strong policy support for both conventional and renewable energy sources. Electricity generation 
has increased from 1,168 billion units (BU) in 2015–16 to an estimated 1,824 BU in 2024–25. Similarly, total installed 
capacity has grown from 305 gigawatts (GW) in 2015–16 to a projected 475 GW in 2024–25. 

 

Solar capacity has increased more than 39 times, from 2.82 GW in 2014 to 110.9 GW in 2025, including 
a record 23.83 GW added in 2024–25 alone. 

 

Manufacturing Boost (2014 to March 2025)13: 

 

o Solar PV module capacity surged from 2.3 GW to 88 GW, a 38-fold increase.   
o Solar PV cell capacity grew from 1.2 GW to 25 GW, a 21-fold increase. 

 

India’s Growing Power Sector in 2025 

 

India’s power sector, the sixth-largest globally, is continuously evolving to meet the pace of accelerated 
manufacturing, rapid urbanization, and expanding agricultural activities. Rising domestic energy demand has 
driven notable advancements in power generation, transmission, and distribution, with a dynamic shift towards 
renewable energy sources such as solar and wind. 

 

Power capacity expansion 

 

Coal-based power remains critical for India’s energy security, increasing from 211.86 GW in 2022-23 to 220.49 GW in 
2024-25. Renewable energy sources, particularly solar power, have witnessed the most rapid expansion, growing 

from 66.78 GW in 2022-23 to 100.33 GW14 in 2024-25. Wind energy has seen moderate growth, contributing 10.37 
percent to total capacity, while hydropower has remained relatively stable at 46.97 GW.  

 
 

 
12 https://www.technavio.com/report/led-lighting-market-industry-analysis

 
 

13 https://www.pib.gov.in/PressNoteDetails.aspx?id=154717&NoteId=154717&ModuleId=3 
 

14 https://www.india-briefing.com/news/indias-power-sector-in-2025-investor-outlook-36367.html/  
 
 
 

 

https://www.technavio.com/report/smart-lighting-market-industry-analysis
https://www.technavio.com/report/sensors-market-for-smartphones-market-industry-analysis
https://www.india-briefing.com/news/indias-power-sector-in-2025-investor-outlook-36367.html/
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COMPANY STRATEGY AND BUSINESS FOCUS 
 

FINANCIAL CONDITION 
 

1. Share Capital – 
 

At present we have only one class of Shares: Equity shares of par value Rs. 10/- each. Our authorized capital is 
Rupees Twelve Crores divided into One Crore Twenty Lakh shares of Rs. 10/- each. During the year under report, 
there was no change in the Share Capital of the company. 

 

2. Reserve & Surplus 
 

a. General Reserves 
 

There was no change in the General Reserves during the year 
 

b. Share Premium Account 
 

During the year under report, there was no change in the Share Premium of the Company. 
 

c. Profit and Loss Account 
 

The Company reported an Operating Profit of Rs. 132.48 lakh (previous year Operating Profit of Rs. 
47.15 lakh) before Extraordinary and non-recurring items. After accounting for tax expenses for earlier 

years, deferred tax, and current tax, the Profit after Tax stood at Rs. 129.28 lakh (previous year Profit 

after Tax Rs. 36.10 lakh). The book value per share as on 31st March, 2025, was Rs. 11.13 compared to 
Rs. 9.35 as of the previous year end. 

 
d. Special Reserve 

 
During the year under report, there was no change in the Share Premium of the Company. 

 
 
3. Fixed Assets  

Your company has added capital assets during the year under review. Capital work-in-progress at the end of 
the year was Rs. NIL. 

 
4. Inventories  

The inventories of finished goods comprise of Energy Savers and Solar Products assembled/purchased by the 
company. The inventories of stores and spare parts are the maintenance spares which the company keeps to 
ensure uninterrupted functioning of its equipment. 

 
5. Sundry Debtors  

Sundry Debtors are the receivables arising mainly from the Energy Saving & Solar EPC Business of the 
company.  
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Result of Operations 

 

1. Income 
 

Your company's main income is from the sales of Energy Efficiency Products & installation of such equipment 
on BOOT basis, and the Solar Rooftop Engineering, Procurement & Commissioning (EPC) Projects executed by 
the Company. During the year the Company also commenced production of its EV Chargers. 

 
2. Expenditure  

Purchases represent the cost of inputs for assembling the Energy Products and Solar Rooftop Plants. 
Maintenance Costs represent cost of spares consumed to keep the equipment & solar plants in running 
condition. Employee / Manpower Expenses consist mainly of outsourcing Expenses, since the Company 
outsources all of its production and maintenance functions. 

 
3. Net Profit/ (Loss) 
 

The Company reported a Net profit after tax of Rs. 129.28 lakh (Previous Year Net profit after tax of Rs. 36.10 
lakh). 

 
4. Provision for Tax  

The provision for tax has been made on the basis of extant Rules and Regulations. Current Tax expenses were 
Rs. 2.78 lakh (Previous Year: Rs. 5.05 lakh), and Deferred Tax expense was Rs. (0.63) lakh (Previous Year: Rs. 
3.75 lakh). Additionally, a MAT Credit Entitlement of Rs. 2.78 lakh (Previous Year: Rs. 5.05 lakh) has been 
recognised. 

 

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS 
 

The Company continues to strengthen its position as a leading Rooftop Solar EPC Company in India, with a 
robust pipeline of installations across multiple states. During FY 2024–25, the Company successfully executed 
several rooftop and small-scale ground-mounted solar projects, enhancing its credentials and customer base. 

 

Building upon last year’s strategy, the Company has made significant strides in the development of Ground-
Mounted Solar Plants under the Open Access mechanism, facilitated by progressive Government of India 
(GoI) policies and support from State DISCOMs. The Company remains committed to its vision of 
commissioning up to 100 MW of solar capacity by FY 2027, with several projects currently under 
implementation or advanced stages of planning. The Company currently has a committed pipeline of 4.1 
MWp, with another 6 MWp at an advanced stage of negotiations. 
 
The Companies entry in the EV Chargers market also comes at an opportune time. We expect this division to 
contribute significantly in the coming years. 
 
The Battery Recycling Project of the Company is expected to commence production within a year. 
 
Energy Efficiency remains a core business pillar. The Company has expanded its presence in Demand Side 
Energy Efficiency Solutions, successfully partnering with marquee clients in the commercial and industrial 
segments. This area is expected to grow significantly, supported by rising energy costs and ESG compliance 
pressures on businesses. 
 
On the technology front, the Company continues its focus on R&D-led innovation. Equipment with 
GSM/GPRS/IoT-based capabilities remains a strong differentiator. In FY 2024–25, the Company initiated 
internal development for next-generation solar monitoring solutions integrated with smart analytics and AI-
based fault detection systems, offering a competitive edge.  

  
 



44  | Page                                                                                                                                                           ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 

 

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 
 

Your company has in place adequate systems of internal control procedures covering all financial and 
operating functions. The Audit Committee periodically reviews the adequacy of these procedures. Your 
company renewed its ISO 9001:2015 certification during the year and is committed to maintaining the 
highest standards of quality control at all levels of operations. 

 
 

RISK CONCERNS AND RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

The Risk Management Function is overseen by the Audit Committee. Risk Management Policies are designed 
after discussions with various constituents and experts. The following Risk Concerns have been identified and are 
being dealt with as explained against each concern: 

 

Technology Risk Concentration Risk 

The Technology used in Energy Saving Devices is Your company has a reasonable spread in terms of the 
constantly evolving. The introduction of newer and various segments of Demand Side Management and 
better techniques could render our products obsolete. Solar Rooftop EPC. The company also has its business 
To address this risk, your company is constantly spread over a few States in India. During 2024-25, the 
researching and studying the application of various largest customer that the Company served contributed 
technologies across the world and has a separate team 27% of the Revenues. Moving forward the Company 
of people upgrading the technologies that we use. expects to have a wider spread of customers, thus 
Technological Evolution which gives the cutting edge reducing its dependence on any one customer. 
advantage to your company's equipment has been a  

key factor of your company's R&D efforts.  

Human Resources General Risk 

Your company depends to a large extent on trained Your company has adequate insurance policies in place 
engineers, both electronic and electrical. Whilst for its equipment and inventories. Medical and 
availability of manpower is not a concern, training and Accident Insurance Policies for its employees have also 
retention is a challenge. Your company has instituted been taken where required. 
various Employee Training and Retention schemes to  
mitigate this Risk. The Company outsources a major  
part of its work to dependable contractors who have  
deep experience of the subject matter project.  

  

 

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 
 

Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company's objectives, projections, 

estimates, expectations may be “forward looking” statements within the meaning of applicable securities laws 

and regulations. Actual results could differ materially from those expressed or implied. Important factors that 

could make a difference to the Company's operations include, among others, economic conditions, affecting 

demand, supply and price conditions in the markets in which the company operates, changes in the Government 

regulations, tax laws and other statutes and incidental factors.    
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Report on Corporate Governance 
 

Your Company has complied in all materials respect with the requirements of the Corporate Governance code as per 
Schedule V (c) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, (hereinafter referred as "SEBI LODR"). 

 

1. Company's philosophy on code of Governance 

 

Company is committed to good Corporate Governance. The Company fully realizes the rights of its shareholders 
to information on the performance of the Company and considers itself a trustee of its shareholders. The 
Company is of the view that good Corporate Governance is an optimum mix of regulatory compliances as well as 
voluntary disclosures and practices. 

 

The Company is focused on attaining the highest levels of transparency, fairness, accountability and integrity in its  
dealings with all the constituents of its business i.e. the stakeholders. Towards this end, substantial disclosures on  
the Board of Directors and its Committees, financial and stock performance have been made in this Annual 
Report. 

 

We believe that Corporate Governance is the key element in improving efficiency, growth and investors’ 
confidence. 

 

2. Board of Directors under Companies Act, 2013 and regulation 17 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 

2015 a. Composition of the Board of Directors as on 31st March, 2025, is as follows: 

 

The Board of Directors of the Company have an optimum combination of Independent Non-Executive Directors 
and Non-Executive Promoter Director who have an in-depth knowledge of business, in addition to the expertise 
in their areas of specialization. The Board of the Company comprises four Directors that include one Woman 
Director. 

 

The composition of the Board is in conformity with Regulation 17 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015 entered 

into with the stock exchanges. The Board has received confirmation from the Non-Executive and Independent 

Directors that they qualify to be considered as Independent as per the definition of ‘Independent Director’ 

stipulated in Regulation 16 (1)(b) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015 and Section 149(6) of the Companies 

Act, 2013 (hereinafter called “the Act”). None of the Directors hold Directorships in more than 20 companies. 

Further, any individual director’s directorships in public companies do not exceed 10. None of the Directors is 

serving as a member of more than ten committees or as the Chairman of more than five committees across all 

the public companies of which he is a Director. Necessary disclosures regarding committee positions in other 

public companies as on March 31, 2025 have been made by the Directors. 
 

Category No. of Directors % 

Independent Non-Executive Directors 4 80.00 
Non-Executive Director 1 20.00 

Total 5 100.00 

 

b. Particulars of Directorships & Committee Chairmanship/ Membership of other Companies & Attendance at 
the Board 

 
The Board normally meets once in a quarter. Additional meetings are held as and when required. 

 
The gap between any two meetings did not exceed four months. The agenda papers along with notes and other 
supporting were circulated in advance of the Board Meeting with sufficient information as required under section 
173 of Companies Act, 2013 and regulation 17 of SEBI (LODR). The Board meetings are generally held at the 
registered office of the Company.  
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During the year under review, Board of Directors of Epic Energy Limited met Four times, viz 18th May, 2024, 
01 July, 2024, 05th August, 2024, 07th November, 2024, and 10th February, 2025.  
 

Name of The 
Director’s, 

Designation & Age 

Category & 
Nature of 

Employment 

Date of 
Appointment 

No. of 
Director Ship 
held in all the 
companies in 

India 

No of 
Committees of 

which 
Member(M)/ 
Chairman (C) 

Board 
Meeting 
Attended 

Attendance at 
the Last AGM 

No of Shares 
held & 

Holding (%) 

Mr. Bharat Mehta 
Director 
66 Years 

ID & NED 17/06/2019 8 4 5 Present - 

Mr. Brian Dsouza 
Director 
60 Years 

ID & NED 14/11/2017 2 3 5 Present - 

Mrs Veena Nikhil 
Morsawala 
Director 
60 Years 

NED 29/09/2015 9 1 5 Present 
8,40,100 & 

11.65% 

Ms Priya Joshi  
Director 
47 Years 

ID & NED 22/07/2024 2 3 2 Present - 

Mr Harshal  Gunde 
Director 
49 Years 

ID & NED 26/08/2024 1 2 2 Present - 

 

Notes:  
- This number excludes the Directorships/Committee memberships held in private companies and also of the Company.   

Committee includes Audit Committee and Stakeholders’. 
 

- As required by the Companies Act, 2013 And Regulation 13 of Listing Agreement, none of the Directors hold Directorship in 

more than 15 public companies, membership of Board committees (audit / remuneration / investors grievance committees) 

in excess of ten and chairmanship of board committees as aforesaid in excess of five. 
 

- None of the Directors hold Directorships in more than 20 companies. Further, any individual director’s directorships in public 

companies do not exceed 10. None of the Directors is serving as a member of more than ten committees or as the Chairman 

of more than five committees across all the public companies of which he is a Director. Necessary disclosures regarding 

committee positions in other public companies as on March 31, 2025 have been made by the Directors. 
 

- None of the Directors has any pecuniary relationship with the Company, except receiving sitting fees for attending Board Meetings 

and Committee Meetings (except Share Transfer, CSR and management Committee). The details of sitting fees, commission and 

remuneration paid to each Director appear later under the disclosure relating to Remuneration to Directors. 
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Details of Directors seeking appointment/ re-appointment in forthcoming Annual General Meeting 
 

The information as required by Regulation 36 (3) of the Listing Regulation with the stock exchange in relation to 
appointment / reappointment of Directors of the Company is given in the notes to the Notice of the Annual 
General Meeting. 

 

Code of Conduct 
 

In Compliance with Regulation 26 (3) of the Listing Regulation, the Company has adopted a code of ethics for 
principal Executives and senior management personnel. The said code has been communicated to the Directors 
and members of the senior management. All the Board members and senior management personnel have 
affirmed compliance with the code of conduct for the year ended on 31st March 2025. The Code of Conduct is 
available on the website of the Company at www.epicenergy.in. A declaration to this effect, duly signed by the 
Chairman of the Company, is attached herewith and forms part of the Corporate Governance Report. 
 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

The Company has constituted the Audit Committee with the primary objective to monitor and provide effective 
supervision of the Management’s financial reporting process with the view to ensure accurate, timely and proper 
disclosures and transparency, integrity and quality of financial reporting. 

 

Composition 

 

The Audit Committee comprises three members, Ms Priya Joshi, Mr Bharat Mehta and Mr Brian Dsouza. 
 
Ms Priya Joshi is the Chairman of the Committee. 
 
The above composition meets all the requirements of Regulation 18 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulation 2015 and 
Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 
 
 

Meetings 
 

During the year under review, the Audit Committee met 4 times, viz 18th May, 2024, 05th August, 2024, 07th 
November, 2024, and 10th February, 2025. Subsequently, the Audit Committee at its Meeting held on 27th May, 
2025, reviewed the audited financial results for the year and quarter ended on 31st March, 2025, and 
recommended the accounts for approval by the Board of Directors. 
 

The Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors of the Company are invited to the meeting of the Committee 
wherever required. The Chairman of the Audit Committee had attended the last Annual General Meeting of the 
Company held on 26th August, 2024. 
 

Details of attendance of each member of the Audit Committee are as under: 
 

Name Designation Attendance 

Priya Joshi Chairman, ID Non Executive 2 

Bharat Mehta ID Non-Executive 4 

Brian Dsouza ID Non-Executive 4  
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The Committee has been authorised by the Board in the manner envisaged under Regulation 16 of the SEBI 
(LODR), 2015. The Committee has been assigned tasks as listed under Regulation 16 of the SEBI (LODR), 2015. The 
Committee reviews the information as listed under Regulation 16 of the SEBI (LODR), 2015, matters specified 
under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

Broad Terms of Reference 

 

1. Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to 
ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;  

2. Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the Company;  
3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors; 
 
4. Reviewing, with the management, the annual Financial Statements and Auditors’ report thereon before 

submission to the Board for approval, with particular reference to: 
 

a. Matters requiring inclusion in the Directors’ Responsibility Statement to be included in the Boards’ 
report in terms of Clause (c) of Sub-section 3 of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013.  

b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same.  
c. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management.  
d. Significant adjustments made in the Financial Statements arising out of audit findings.  
e. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to Financial Statements.  
f. Disclosure of any related party transactions.  
g. Qualifications in the draft audit report. 

 
5. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly Financial Statements before submission to the Board for 

approval; 
 
6. Reviewing, with the management the statement of uses/application of funds raised through an issue (public 

issue, right issue, preferential issue, etc.) the statement of funds utilised for purposes other than those stated 

in the offer document/prospectus/notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency, monitoring the 

utilization of proceeds of a public or right issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to 

take up steps in this matter; Review and monitor the Auditors’ independence and performance and 

effectiveness of the audit process;  
7. Review and monitor the Auditors’ independence and performance and effectiveness of the audit process;  
8. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties;  
9. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;  
10. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary;  
11. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems; 
 
12. Reviewing, with the management, the performance of statutory and internal auditors and adequacy of the 

internal control systems; 
 
13. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit 

department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and 

frequency of internal audit;  
14. Discussion with internal auditors about any significant findings and follow up there on;  
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15. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is 

suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the 

matter to the Board;  
16. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well. 
 
17. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, 

shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared Finance Director or any other person heading the finance 

function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience and background, etc. of 

the candidate;  
18. Reviewing the management letters/letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the Statutory Auditor.  
19. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee: 

 

STAKEHOLDERS’ GRIEVANCE & RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 
 

The Stakeholders’ Grievance & Relationship Committee as a committee of the Board has been constituted mainly to 
focus on the Redressal of Shareholders’ and Investors’ Grievances, if any, like transfer/transmission/demat of 
shares, loss of share certificates, non-receipt of Annual Report, Dividend Warrants and other grievances, and 
approve Share Transfers. 

 

Composition 
 

The Stakeholders’ Grievance & Relationship Committee comprises three members, Mr. Bharat Mehta, Mr. 
Harshal Gunde and Mr. Brian Dsouza. Chairperson of the Committee is Mr. Bharat Mehta. 

 

Meeting and attendance 
 

During the year under review, four meetings were held on 18th May, 2024, 05th August, 2024, 07th November, 
2024, and 10th February, 2025.  
Details of the attendance of each member of the Committee are as under: 
 

Name Designation Attendance 

Bharat Mehta ID Non Executive 4 

Harshal Gunde ID Non-Executive 2 

Brian Dsouza ID Non-Executive 4 
 

During the year, the Company had received no complaints from the shareholders and no complaints were 
pending as on 31st March, 2025. 
 

The following table summarises the status of investor complaints received during the period. These were 
attended within a reasonable period of time. 
 

Sr No Nature of Complaints / Requests 
Opening as on  

Received 
 

Resolved 
Pending as 

01.04.2024 
  

31.03.2025 
 

       

1 Non-receipt of dividend warrant - -  - -  

2 Non-receipt of Annual Reports/Sticker - -  - -  

3 Non-receipt of shares after transfer/ bonus/ -  -  - -  

 rights/ shares        

4 Letters received from SEBI/ ROC/ Stock - -  - -  

5 Others – Demat Credit - -  - -   
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Company Secretary & Compliance Officer Mr. Sandipkumar Gupta provides secretarial support to the committee 
as he was appointed as designated Company Secretary & Compliance Officer during the year under review. 

 

Broad Term of Reference 
 

The Stakeholders’ Grievance & Relationship Committee as a committee of the Board has been constituted mainly 

to focus on approving requests received for share transfers and on the Redressal of shareholders’/investors’ 

grievances, if any, like transfer, transmission, demat of shares, loss of share certificates, non-receipt of Annual 

Report, dividend warrants, etc. The equity shares of the Company are compulsorily traded in electronic form on 

the stock exchange and hence the handling of physical transfer of shares is minimal. The Board has delegated 

powers for approving transfer and transmission of shares and issue of duplicate shares to the Share Transfer 

Committee. The Company has no transfers pending at the close of the financial year. 

 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee as a committee of the Board has been constituted mainly to 

determine and recommend to Board, the Company’s policies on remuneration packages for Executive and Non-

Executive Directors and policies on Nomination for appointment of Director, KMPs and Senior Management 

Personnel Composition. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises three members - Ms Priya 

Joshi, Bharat Mehta and Mrs Veena Morsawala. 

 

Meetings and Attendance 
 

During the year, two meetings were held on 05th August, 2024, and 10th February, 2025. Details of attendance of 

each member of the Committee are as under: 

 

Name Designation Attendance 

Priya Joshi ID Non-Executive 2 

Bharat Mehta ID Non-Executive 2 

Veena Morsawala ID Non-Executive 2 

 

Broad terms of Reference 
 
 

The terms of reference of the Committee are, inter alia: 

 

1. To recommend to the Board, the remuneration packages of Company’s Managing/Whole time/Executive 
 

Directors, including all elements of remuneration package (i.e. salary, benefits, bonus, perquisites, 
commission, performance incentives, stock options, pension, retirement benefits, details of fixed component 
and performance linked incentives along with the performance criteria, service contracts, notice period, 
severance fees, etc).  

2. The Company’s policy on specific remuneration packages for Company’s Managing/Joint Managing/Executive  
Directors, including pension rights and any compensation payment.  

3. To implement, supervise and administer any share or stock option scheme of the Company. 
 
4. Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director 

and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the Directors, key managerial 
personnel and other employees.  

5. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board.  
6. Devising a policy on Board diversity 
 
7. Identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in senior management 

in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal.    
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Independent Directors Meeting 
 

Meeting and attendance 
 

During the financial year 2024-2025, one meeting of the committee was held on 10th February, 2025.Details of 
the attendance of each member of the Committee are as under: 

 

Name Designation Attendance 

Bharat Mehta ID & NED 1 

Priya Joshi ID & NED 1 

Brian Dsouza ID & NED 1 

Harshal Gunde ID & NED 1 

Veena Morsawala NED 1 

 

General Body Meetings: 
 

Details of the last three Annual General Meetings are as under: 

 

AGM Date Time Venue No of Special 

    Resolution 

33rd 26.08.2024 11.00 a.m. 
Through “Video Conferencing (Vc)/ Other Audio 

7 Visual Means (Oavm)” 
    

32nd 07.09.2023 11.00 a.m. 
Through “Video Conferencing (Vc)/ Other Audio 

Nil Visual Means (Oavm)” 
    

31st 24.09.2022 11.00 a.m. 
Through “Video Conferencing (Vc)/ Other Audio 

Nil Visual Means (Oavm)” 
    

30th 25.09.2021 11.00 a.m. 
Through “Video Conferencing (Vc)/ Other Audio 

Nil Visual Means (Oavm)” 
    

 

TRAINING OF BOARD MEMBERS AND INDUCTION 
 

At the Board Meetings, apart from the regular agenda items, it is ensured that the Board members are provided a 
deep and thorough insight into the business model of the Company and updates through detailed presentations 
of various business unit heads. The Board members get an open forum for discussion and share their experience. 
The Board undertakes a periodic review of various matters including risk management, forex, internal audit 
reports, etc. 

 

CEO/CFO Certification 
 

The Company is duly placing a certificate to the Board from the CFO & the Compliance Officer in accordance with 
the provisions of Regulation 17(8) read with Part B of Schedule II of the SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015. 
 

The aforesaid certificate, duly signed by the CFO and the Compliance Officer in respect of the financial year ended 
31st March, 2024, has been placed before the Board and given elsewhere in this Annual Report. 

 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report, as required under Regulation 34 (2) (e) read with Schedule VB 
of SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015, has been given elsewhere in this Annual Report.  
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DISCLOSURE 
 

Related Party Transaction 
 

All the transactions entered into with related parties as defined under the Companies Act, 2013, and Regulation 

23(1) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015 during the financial year were in the ordinary course of business and on 

arms’ length pricing basis and do not attract the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. Prior 

approval of the Audit Committee is obtained for all Related Party Transactions. There were no materially 

significant transactions with related parties during the financial year which were in conflict with the interest of 

the Company. Related Party Transactions during the year have been disclosed vide Note No. 19 (2.4) of notes on 

Financial Statements as per the requirement of “Accounting Standards 18- Related Party Disclosure” issued by 

ICAI. 

 

The Board has approved a policy for related party transactions which has been placed on Company’s website:  
www.epicenergy.in 

 

Disclosure of accounting treatment in the preparation of Financial Statements, 
 

Your Company has followed all relevant Accounting Standards laid down by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India (ICAI) while preparing Financial Statements. 
 

Details of non-compliance by the Company 
 

Your Company has complied with all the requirement of regulatory authorities. No penalty/strictures were 

imposed on the Company by stock exchanges or SEBI or any statutory authority on any matter related to capital 

markets, during the last three years. 
 

Risk Management 
 

Business risk evaluation and management is an ongoing process within the organisation. A detailed exercise 
on business risk management is yet to be carried out, covering all aspects of business operations. 
 

Proceeds from Public Issue/Rights Issue/Preferential Issue/ Warrant Conversion during the year, the Company 
has not raised any fund through Public Issue/Rights Issue/Preferential Issue/Warrant Conversion. 
 

Whistle Blower Policy 
 

The Company has implemented a Whistle Blower Policy covering the employees. The policy enables the employees 
to report to the management instances of unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the 

Company’s code of conduct. Employees can lodge their Complaints through anonymous e-mails besides usual means 

of communications like written complaints. No personnel has been denied access to the Audit Committee. The 
Whistle Blower Policy, as approved by the Board, is placed on the website of the Company: www.epicenergy.in 
 

 

Non-Mandatory Requirements 
 

- Shareholders’ Right: Half-yearly financial results, including summary of the significant events, are presently not 
being sent to shareholders of the Company. However, quarterly and half yearly financial results are published in 
the leading newspapers and are also available on the website of the Company: www.epicenergy.in 

 
- Audit Qualification: There is no qualification in the Auditors’ Report on the Statements to the shareholders of 

the Company. 
 

Means of Communication 
 

During the year, quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial results of the Company were submitted to the stock 
exchanges immediately after the conclusion of the Board meetings and were also published in two newspapers   

 

http://www.epicenergy.in/
http://www.epicenergy.in/
http://www.epicenergy.biz/
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namely, in The Free Press Journal (English) and Navshakti- Mumbai (Marathi). These results are also put on the 
Company’s website: www.epicenergy.in 
 

The Company also informs, by way of intimation, the stock exchanges all price-sensitive matters or such other 
matters which, in its opinion, are material and of relevance to the shareholders and subsequently issues a Press 
Release on the said matters. 
 
 
 

SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES) 
 

Securities Exchange Board of India introduced for quick resolution of Investors’ Grievances SEBI Complaints 

Redress System (SCORES). The investor complaints are processed in a centralised web-based complaints redress 

system. The salient features of this system are: centralised database of all complaints, online upload of Action 

Taken Reports (ATRs) by the concerned companies and online viewing by investors of actions taken on the 

complaint and its current status. 
 

Shareholders’ Information:  
 

 

Registered Office 

 

206, A Wing, 2nd Floor, Gokul 
Arcade, Swami Nityanand Road, 
Vile Parle-East,Mumbai-400057 

 

 

Phone: 022 - 8419988262 

 

 

Branch Office: Ahmedabad 
 

3, Poojan Apartment, Karnavati 

Society, Opp. Ratilal Patel Hall, 
Bhairavnath Road, Maninagar, 
Ahmedabad, Gujarat – 380008. 

 

 

Date, Time, Venue of Annual General Meeting: 
 

The 34th Annual General Meeting of the members of the company is scheduled to be held on Monday, 27th 
September, 2025, at 11.00 a.m. through video conferencing (VC) or other audio-visual. 
 

Financial Calendar: 
 

The financial results of the company were officially released in accordance with the schedule. 
 

Forwarded to Stock Exchange on Nature of Communication 

05th August, 2024 First quarter ended 2024-25 
 

  

07th November, 2024 Second quarter ended 2024-25 
 

  

10th February, 2024 Third quarter ended 2024-25 
 

  

27th May, 2025 Fourth quarter ended 2024-25 
 

 

All the members are invited to attend the meeting. The members and proxies who intend to attend the meeting 
are requested to bring the Attendance slip sent herewith duly filed in to the meeting. 

 

Book closure date: Sunday, 21st September, 2025 to Saturday, 27th September, 2025 (both days inclusive). 
 

Annual General Meeting: Saturday, 27th September, 2025 at 11.00 a.m.  
 
 

 
 

 

http://www.epicenergy.in/
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Stock Code 
 

Name of Stock Exchange:  
Code No: 

 

Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE)  
530407 

 

 
Details of Shares 
 

Types of shares:  
No. of Paid up shares:  
Market lot of shares:  

 

Equity Shares  
72,11,500  
1 Share 
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Listing 
 

The Company’s shares are listed and traded on Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) at Mumbai. 
 
 
 

Table 1 - Market Price Data 
 

High and Low of market price of the Company’s shares traded on Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd., Mumbai, during 
the financial year 2024-2025:  
 

Month      High (Rs.) Low (Rs.) Total No. of Shares Traded 
              

April – 2024     11.18   6.20    24,027 

May- 2024     10.68   5.97    46,416 

June – 2024     15.45   10.89    1,61,183 

July – 2024     23.75   15.75    5,59,916 

August – 2024     35.87   24.22    3,68,142 

September – 2024   54.25   36.58    1,03,170 

October – 2024     83.73   55.30    4,80,936 

November – 2024   119.50   82.06    5,68,032 

December – 2024   148.15   116.60    1,93,027 

January – 2025     114.30   62.70    6,76,260 

February – 2025     67.43   49.83    1,50,542 

March – 2025     51.28   36.48    4,10,608 

Table 2 - Distribution of shareholding as on 31-3-2025        
             

No. of Equity Shares  
No. of shares held 

 
% of total shares 

 
No. of Shareholders 

  % of total 
held        shareholders             

1 to 500    7,80,837  10.83    7,947  89.47 

500 to 1000   4,07,174  5.65    503  5.66 

1001 to 2000   3,24,790  4.50    217  2.44 

2001 to 3000   2,12,752  2.95    83  0.93 

3001 to 4000   73,583  1.02    21  0.24 

4001 to 5000   94,477  1.31    20  0.23 
5001 to 10000   3,62,305  5.02    48  0.54 

10001 to above   49,55,582  68.72    43  0.48 

Total    72,11,500  100    8,882  100 

Table 3 - Category wise distribution of shareholding as on 31-03-2025        
          

Sr No Category 
  No. of No. of Share 

% of total shares   Shareholders  held          

1 Promoters     2  16,78,065 23.27  

2 Institutions     -  - -  
 a) Mutual Funds/UTI          
            

 b) Banks / FI          
            

 c) Insurance Companies          
              

 d) Others             
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3 Non- Institutions    

 a) Bodies Corporate 34 77,223 1.07 
      

 b) NRI 30 63,735 0.88 
      

 c) HUF 87 3,54,689 4.92 
      

 d) Clearing Members 1 100 0.00 
      

 e) Trusts    
      

 f) NBFC registered with RBI    
     

4 Directors other than promoters and their - - - 
 relatives    

5 Resident Individuals 8,604 50,37,688 69.85 

 Total  8,758 72,11,500 100.00 
 

 

Table 4 - Break-up of shares in physical & electronic mode as on 31-03-2025 
 

 

Mode 
No. of % of total  

No of shares 
 % of the total 

shareholders Shareholders   shares     

Physical 669 7.53 3,75,500 5.21 

Electronic 8,213 92.47 68,36,000 94.79 

Total 8,882 100.00 72,11,500 100.00 
 

 

Share Transfer System 
 

Applications for transfer of shares in the physical form are processed by the Company’s Registrar Transfer Agent 

M/s. Adroit Corporate Services Private Limited. The Share Transfer Committee constituted for 

transfer/transmission of shares, issue of duplicate shares and allied matters considers and approves the share 

transfer once in ten days, subject to transfer instrument being valid and complete in all respects. The Company 

has obtained half-yearly certificates from the Company Secretary in practice for compliance of share transfer 

formalities as per the requirement of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015. 
 

Details of Dividend: 
 

The Board of Directors has not recommended any dividend for the year. 
 

PAN requirement for transfer of shares in the physical form 
 

The Securities & Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number 

(PAN) for securities market transactions and off-market/private transactions involving transfer of shares in the 

physical form of listed companies. Therefore, it shall be mandatory for PAN requirement for transfer of shares in 

the physical form. The Securities & Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent 

Account Number (PAN) for securities market transactions and off-market/private transactions involving transfer 

of shares in the physical form of listed companies. Therefore, it shall be mandatory for the transferee(s) to furnish 

a copy of the PAN Card to the Company/Registrar & Share Transfer Agents for Registration of such transfers. 
 

Members/Investors are therefore requested to make note of the same and submit their PAN Card copy to the 

Company Registrar and Share Transfer Agents. Members are also requested to use new Transfer Forms (Form No. 

SH-4) pursuant to Section 56 of the Company’s Act, 2013 and its applicable rules.  
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Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants/Any other convertible instruments 
 

The Company does not have any outstanding instruments of the captioned type. 
 
 

Nomination Facility 
 

It is in the interest of the shareholders to appoint a nominee for their investments in the Company. Those 

members who are holding shares in the physical mode and have not appointed a nominee or want to change the 

nomination are requested to send us the nomination form duly filled in and signed by all the joint holders. 
 
 

 

Change in shareholders’ details 
 

In case you are holding your shares in dematerialised form (e.g. in electronic mode), communication regarding 

change in address, bank account details, change in nomination, dematerialization of your share certificates or 

other inquiries should be addressed to your DP where you have opened your demat account, quoting your client 

ID number. In case of physical holding of shares, any communication for change of any details should be 

addressed to our R&T agent of the Company, M/s Adroit Corporate Services Private Ltd, as per the address 

mentioned below. 
 

Investors Communication 
 

Share transfers/Dematerialization or other queries relating to shares of the Company should be addressed to: 

 

M/s. Adroit Corporate Services Private Ltd. 
 

Unit: EPIC ENERGY LTD  
19/20, Jafferbhoy Industrial Estate,  
Marol Naka, Andheri (East)  
Mumbai 400 099  

Ph.: 022 42270422 /23  
Fax: 022 - 28590942  
E-mail: ganeshs@adroitcorporate.com  
Web: www.epicenergy.in 

 

DECLARATION UNDER CODE OF CONDUCT 
 

As required under Regulation 26 (3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015, it is hereby affirmed that all the Board members and senior management personnel have complied with the 

Code of Conduct of the Company. The Company has obtained confirmation for the compliance of Code of 

Conduct from the Board members and senior management personnel on an annual basis. The code is available on 

the website of the www.epicenergy.biz. 
 
 
 
 

 

Place: Mumbai Compliance Officer  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

mailto:ganeshs@adroitcorporate.com
http://www.epicenergy.in/
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CFO AND COMPLIANCE OFFICER CERTIFICATION 
 

To,  
The Members,  
EPIC ENERGY LIMITED 
 

Dear Sirs, 
 
Sub: Compliance Certificate as per Regulation 17(8) of the Listing Regulations 
 

We, Mr. Nikhil Morsawala, CFO and Mr. Sandipkumar Gupta Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of  
Epic Energy Limited, to the best of our knowledge and belief, certify that: 
 

1. We have reviewed the Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss account, its schedule and notes to the accounts and 
cash flow statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025, and that to the best of our knowledge and belief: 

 
a. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 

statements that may be misleading;  
b. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with  

existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 
 
2. We also certify that based on our knowledge and information provided to us, there are no transactions entered 

into by the Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violate the Company’s code of conduct. 
 
3. We accept the responsibilities for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that 

we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial 

reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or 

operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps taken or propose to take to 
rectify these deficiencies.  

4. We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee:  
a. Significant change in internal control over financial reporting during the year. 
 
b. Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in notes to the 

Financial Statements; and 
 
c. Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and involvement therein, if any, of the 

management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial  
reporting.  

5. 

 

Date: 28th August, 2025 
Place: Mumbai 

 

Mr. Nikhil Morsawala 
CFO 

 

Mr. Sandipkumar Gupta 
Company Secretary & 

Compliance Officer 

 

DECLARATION 
 

(As required under Regulation 26(3) and 34(3) read with Schedule V (D) of the Listing Regulations in 
relation to Code of Conduct) 

 

I, Mr. Nikhil Morsawala, CFO, Epic Energy Limited, hereby declare that to the best of my knowledge and belief, all 
Board members and senior management personnel have affirmed compliance with the Company’s code of 
conduct for the year ended 31st March, 2025. 
 
 

Date: 28th August, 2025 
Place: Mumbai  

 
 

Mr. Nikhil Morsawala 
CFO 
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Corporate Governance Compliance Certificate 
 
Registration No.: 63103 Nominal Capital: 72,11,500 

 

To,  
The Members,  
EPIC ENERGY LIMITED 

 

We have examined the compliance of conditions of corporate governance by Epic Energy Limited (‘the Company’) 
for the year ended 31st March, 2025, as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27, clauses to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of 
regulation 46 and paragraph C, D and E of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) with Stock Exchanges in India. 

 

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination 
was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of 
the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the Financial 
Statements of the Company. 

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that 
the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above-mentioned 
Listing Regulations, as applicable. 

 

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the 
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 
 
 
 

Vijay S. Tiwari  
Company Secretary  
ACS/FCS No: 33084 CP No: 12220 

 
 
 

Place: Mumbai  
Date: 28th August, 2025 

 
UDIN: A033084G001134723  
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Independent Auditors’ Certificate on 
Corporate Governance 
 

TO,  
The Member of  
EPIC ENERGY LIMITED 

 

1. We, NGST & Associates, Chartered Accountants, the Statutory Auditors of Epic Energy Limited (“the 
Company”), have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by the Company, for the 
year ended on 31st March 2025, as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) 
and para C and D of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,  
2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) as amended. 

 

Management’s Responsibility 

 

2. The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. This 
responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control and procedures to 
ensure the compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance stipulated in the SEBI Listing 
Regulations. 

 

Auditor's Responsibility 

 

3. Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the 
Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit 
nor an expression of opinion on the Financial Statements of the Company. 

 

4. We have examined the books of account and other relevant records and documents maintained by the 
Company for the purpose of providing reasonable assurance on the compliance with Corporate Governance 
requirements by the Company. 

 
3. We have carried out an examination of the relevant records of the Company in accordance with the 

Guidance 
 

Note on Certification of Corporate Governance issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 

(“the ICAI”), the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, in so far 
as applicable for the purpose of this certificate and as per the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for 

Special Purposes issued by the ICAI which requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code 

of Ethics issued by the ICAI. 

 

4. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, 
Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other 
Assurance and Related Services Engagements.  
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Opinion 

 

7. Based on our examination of the relevant records and according to the information and explanations 
provided to us and the representations provided by the Management, we certify that the Company has 
complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to 
(i) of regulation 46(2) and para C and D of Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations during the year ended 
31st March 2025. 

 
8. We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the 

efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 
 
 
 

For NGST & Associates  
Chartered Accountants  
Firm Regn No. 139159W 
 
 
 

 

BHUPENDRA S GANDHI  
Partner  
Membership No: 122296  
UDIN: 25122296BMIACQ9565  

 
 
 

 

Place: Mumbai  
Date: September 2, 2025 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 

To the members of  
M/s. Epic Energy Limited 

 

Opinion 
 
We have audited the accompanying IND AS Standalone Financial Statements of M/s. Epic Energy Limited (“the 

Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March 2025, and Statement of Profit and Loss (including 
Other Comprehensive Income), statement of changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then 

ended, and notes to the Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting 

policies and other explanatory information. 

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 

Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a 

true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs 
of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and Profit for the year ended on that date. 

 

Basis for Opinion 
 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of 

the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of 

the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 

responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Standalone Financial 

Statements. 

 

Emphasis of matter: 
 

1. Revenue from operations includes unbilled revenue from April 2024 to March 2025 amounting to Rs. 193.14 
Lakhs, primarily related to a claim of Rs. 703.72 Lakhs (including Rs. 297.82 Lakhs unbilled revenue) under 
arbitration with Godhra Nagarpalika, with an Expected Credit Loss (ECL) provision of Rs. 77.43 Lakhs as per 
Ind AS 109. 

 
2. Total other current assets of Rs. 316.51 Lakhs include unbilled revenue of Rs. 297.82 Lakhs related to the 

above arbitration.  
3. The Company is yet to transfer an unpaid dividend of Rs. 6.64 Lakhs relating to Financial Years 2010-2011 and 

2011-12 from the unpaid dividend account to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF). 

 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters. 

 

Key Audit Matters 

 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
Standalone Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of 
the IND AS Standalone Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide 
a separate opinion on these matters.  
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We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report:  

 

Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit  

 

Revenue Recognition and Unbilled Receivables  

 

The Company derives significant revenue from 
maintenance and replacement of streetlights with LED 
and SCADA-based switching points in Godhra 
Municipality on a ‘Pay from Savings’ basis. Revenue from 
energy savings, amounting to Rs. 193.14 Lakhs, is 
recognized as unbilled revenue due to delays in invoice 
submission caused by fund allocation limits at Godhra 
Municipality. This is currently under arbitration (claim of 
Rs. 703.72 Lakhs, including Rs. 297.82 Lakhs unbilled 
revenue). The recognition of unbilled revenue involves 
significant management judgment in assessing 
collectability and compliance with Ind AS 115.  

 

Our audit procedures included: 

 

-The revenue has been recognised in the books of 
accounts as "UNBILLED REVENUE" in respect of energy 
saved since the service has been rendered as per 
contract. Revenue was earned and accrued revenue is 
recorded as per accrual accounting as "UNBILLED 
REVENUE". 

 

- Evaluated the Company’s revenue recognition 
policies for compliance with the Ind AS 115, including 
identification of performance obligations and 
transaction price allocation. 

 
- Tested the design and operating effectiveness of 
internal controls over revenue recognition, focusing 
on the timing, occurrence, and valuation of unbilled 
revenue. 

 
- Verified the audited energy savings reports and 
contract terms with Godhra Municipality to 
substantiate revenue recognition. 

 
- Assessed the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) provision of 
Rs. 77.43 Lakhs under Ind AS 109 by reviewing the 
arbitration status and management’s collectability 
estimates. 

 
- Ensured adequate disclosures in the Standalone 
Financial Statements as per Ind AS 115. 

 

 

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements 

 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 

(“the Act”) with respect to the preparation and presentation of these Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements that give 

a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance(including the other comprehensive income), cash 

flows and Statement of Changes in Equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally 

accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Relevant 

Rules issued thereunder. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 

with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and 

other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that 

are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that 

were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
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preparation and presentation of the Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 

 

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 
 
 
 

 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial Statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of 
users taken on the basis of these Standalone Financial Statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. 

 

We also: 

 

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 

that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 

- Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
Procedures that is appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls 
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

 

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management. 

 

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists; we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the 

 
Standalone Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.  

  
  

 



66  | Page                                                                                                                                                           ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 

 

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial Statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 

- Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the 

Standalone Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative 

factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to 
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements. 

 

- We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 

that we identify during our audit. 

 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the IND AS Standalone Financial Statements of the current period and are 
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation 
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a 
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

 

1. As required by the companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the order’) issued by the Central Government 
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A”, a statement on 
the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the order to the extent applicable. 

 
2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that: 

 
i. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 

and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 
 

ii. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books. 

 
iii. The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash 

Flow Statement and the Statement of changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement 
with the books of account; 

 
iv. In our opinion, the aforesaid IND AS Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Indian 

Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Relevant Rules issued there 
under.  

v. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2025 taken 
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2025 from 
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

 
vi. With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the company and 

the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B”; and 
 

vii. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the 
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:    
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In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration 
paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act; 

 

viii. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us: 

 
i. The Company has disclosed a claim of Rs. 703.72 Lakhs under arbitration with Godhra 

Nagarpalika, which does not have a material impact on its financial position as an Expected 
Credit Loss provision of Rs. 77.43 Lakhs has been made. 

 
ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which 

there were any material foreseeable losses. 
 

iii. The company is yet to transfer unpaid dividend of an amount aggregating to Rs. 6.64 lakhs 
relating to Financial Years 2010-11 and 2011-12 from unpaid dividend account to Investor 
Education and Protection Fund (IEPF). 

 
iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 

(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or 
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) 
by the 

 
Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the 

understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, 

directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 

whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries 

 
(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 

(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from 

any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether 

recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or 

invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 

Funding 
 

Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

 
(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in 
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, 
contain any material misstatement. 

 
v. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year. 

 

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an accounting 

software for maintaining its books of account which has enabled feature of recording audit trail 

(edit log) facility. The same was not operational during the year for all relevant transactions 

recorded in the software. However, the Company has enabled the feature of recording audit 

trail post financial year and audit logs for the previous year are not available. Further, in absence 

of audit log we are unable to comment on any instance of audit trail feature being tampered 

with.  
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For NGST & Associates  
Chartered Accountants  
Firm Regn No. 139159W 
 
 
 

 

Bhupendra S Gandhi 

 
 
 

 

Place: Mumbai  
Partner 
 
Partner 

 
       Date: May 27, 2025 

Membership No: 122296  
UDIN: 25122296BMHZWX5213  
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report 
 

Annexure referred to in the Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of M/s. Epic Energy Limited on the Ind 
AS Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025, we report that: 

 

i. (a) (i) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details 
and situation of Property, Plant & Equipment. 

 
(ii) The Company does not have any intangible Asset. 

 
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 

records of the company, the Company has regular programme of physical verification of Property Plant & 

Equipment in a phased periodic manner, which in our opinion is reasonable having regard to the size of the 
company and nature of its assets. No Material physical discrepancies were noticed on such physical 

verification. 
 

(c) The Company does not hold any immovable properties, and hence, the requirement to confirm whether 
title deeds are held in the name of the Company is not applicable. 

 
(d) The Company has not Revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year. 

 
(e) According to the information and explanation given to us, no proceedings have been initiated during 

the year or are pending against the company as at March 31, 2025 for holding any benami property under 
the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. 

 
ii. (a) According to the information given to us and in our opinion, inventories were physically verified during 

the year by the management at reasonable intervals. The coverage and procedure of such verification by 
the management is appropriate having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its operations. 

No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventories were noticed on such 

physical verification of inventories when compared with books of account. 

 
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not been sanctioned 
working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate from the banks on the basis of security of 
current assets. 

 
iii. The company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or 

advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, and Limited Liability 
partnerships or other parties. 

 
(a) The Company has not provided any loans or provided advances in the nature loans, or stood guarantee, 
or provided security to any other entity. 

 
iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 

provided any loans, investments, guarantees and securities with regards to section 185 and 186 of the Act. 

 
v. The Company has not accepted any deposits during the year from the public within the meaning of the 

provisions of section 73 of “the Act” and hence directives issued by the reserve bank of India and the 
provisions of section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of “the Act” the Rules framed there under 
are not applicable to the Company at present. 

 
vi. The company is not covered under section 148(1) of the companies Act as per the rules prescribed by the 

central government for maintenance of cost records.  
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vii. According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues: 

 

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of the company 

examined by us, the company is regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues, including Provident 

Fund, Professional Tax, Customs Duty, Income-tax, Goods and Services Tax and other statutory dues, in 

arrears as at 31st March 2025 for a period of more than 6 months from the date they became payable 

except there are dues of income tax of amounts of Rs.128.17 lakhs being the aggregate of Income Tax 

demands for the Assessment 2009-10, 2010-11, 2012-13, 2013-14 and 2014-15. 
 

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of the company 
examined by us, there are no dues of Income Tax and any other major statutory dues which have not been 
deposited on account of any disputes, except as mentioned in (a) above. 

 

viii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of the company 
examined by us, there were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been 
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 
(43 of 1961). 

 
ix. a) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not 

obtained any loans from banks or financial institutions. 
 

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the company, the company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial 
institution or others. 

 
c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
books of the company, the company has not obtained any money by way of term loans during the year. 

 
d) On an overall examination of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company, the company has not 
raised any funds on short-term basis during the year. 

 
e) The company does not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies and hence, 
reporting under clause 3 (ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable. 

 
f) The company does not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies and hence, reporting 
under clause 3 (ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable. 

 
x. a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including 

debt instruments) during the year. 
 

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of 
shares or convertible debentures (fully or partially or optionally convertible) during the year. 

 

xi. a) Based on examination of books and records of the Company and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or 
reported during the year. 

 
b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as 
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, 
during the year and up to the date of this report. 

 
c) As represented to us by the management, there were no whistle-blower complaints received by the 
company during the year.    
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xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per section 406 of “the Act”. 

 

xiii. The Company has no transactions with related parties during the year to which the provisions of 

section188 applies and the company has complied with the provisions of sec 177 of the act. However, the 

details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the IND AS Standalone Financial Statements as 
required under Indian Accounting standard (Ind AS) 24, related party disclosures specified under section 

133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued there under. 

 
xiv. a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and the 

nature of its business. 

 
b) We have considered the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company during 
the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures. 

 

xv. According to information and explanations given to us, in our opinion during the year the Company has 
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or persons connected to its directors and 
hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act 2013 are not applicable to the Company. 

 
xvi. a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 

1934. 
 

(b) The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities. 
 

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the 
Reserve Bank of India. 

 
d) In our opinion, there is no Core Investment Companies (“CIC”s) in the Group (as defined in Core 

Investment  
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016). 

 
xvii. The Company has not incurred any cash losses during the year and immediately preceding financial year. 

 

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year. However, we 
were appointed statutory auditors in last AGM and we have considered issues, observations and concerns 
if any raised by outgoing auditors. 

 

xix. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and 

payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the Standalone Financial Statements and 

our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the 

evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that 

any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable 

of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of 

one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future 

viability of the Company, and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling 

due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and 

when they fall due. 
 

xx. In our opinion and according to the information, the Company is not covered under the provisions of 
Section 135 of the Act.  

 
 
 

  



72  | Page                                                                                                                                                           ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 

 

 
 

For NGST & Associates  
Chartered Accountants  
Firm Regn No. 139159W 
 
 
 

 

Bhupendra S Gandhi                                                 Place: Mumbai 

Partner Date: May 27, 2025 

Partner  

Membership No: 122296  

UDIN: 25122296BMHZWX5213   
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report 
 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 
2013 (‘the Act’) 

 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s. Epic Energy Limited (‘the 
Company’) as of 31st March, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements of 

the Company for the year ended on that date. 
 

 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on 

the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the 

design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively 

for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of 

the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the 
Companies Act, 2013. 
 
 
 

Auditors’ Responsibility 
 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting 

based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 

Controls Over Financial Reporting (the ‘Guidance Note’) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and 
deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit 

of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with 

ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 

internal financial controls over financial reporting were established and maintained and if such controls operated 

effectively in all material respects. 

 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls 

over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 

assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 

effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ 

judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS Standalone Financial 

Statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 



74  | Page                                                                                                                                                           ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 

 

 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
 

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Standalone Financial Statements 

for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles including Indian Accounting 
Standards. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 

that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions 
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of the Management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable 

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the 

Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the Standalone Financial Statements. 
 

 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility 

of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may 
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial 

reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may 

become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 
 

 

Opinion 
 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 

March 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 

Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
 
 

 

For NGST & Associates  
Chartered Accountants  
Firm Regn No. 139159W 
 
 
 

 

Bhupendra S Gandhi  
Partner 

 
 
 

 

Place: Mumbai  
Date: May 27, 2025 

 

Partner  
Membership No: 122296  
UDIN: 25122296BMHZWX5213  
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Standalone Balance sheet as at 31st March 2025 (rupees in Lakhs) 
 

Particular 
   

Notes 
 As at As at 

    

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024        

I. Asset       
         

 1) Non-Current Asset     
         

  a)   Property, Plant and Equipment 2  122.58 155.51 
         

  b) Capital WIP   24.03 - 
         

  c) Financial Assets     
         

   i. Investments 3  16.61.00 4.00 
         

   ii. Trade Receivables   - - 
         

   iii. Loans   - - 
         

   iv. Other Financial Assets 4  9.55 8.00 
         

  d) Deferred Tax Asset 5  42.82 14.45 
         

  e) Other Non-Current Asset 6  309.58 338.14 
         

         
 2) Current Asset     
         

  a) Inventories 7  7.11 20.42 
         

  b) Financial Assets   - - 
         

   i. Investments     
         

   ii. Trade Receivables 8  114.49 95.47 
         

   iii. Cash and Cash Equivalents 9  15.22 4.07 
         

   iv. Bank Balance other than above 10  9.14 9.14 
         

  c) Current Tax Asset (Net)     
         

  d) Other Current Asset 11  316.51 226.98 
         

         
   Total Asset  987.64 876.18 
      

         
II. Equity and Liabilities     

         

 Equity       

 a) Equity   12  721.15 721.15 
         

 b) Other Equity  13  84.70 (47.03) 
         

         
 3) Non-Current Liabilities     
         

  a) Financial Liabilities     
         

   i. Borrowings     
         

   ii. Trade Payables     
         

   ● Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small     

    enterprises     
            

 

- - 

 --

--
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  ● Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro    

   enterprises and small enterprises    
      

 b) Provision    
       

 c) Deferred Tax Liabilities    
       

     

4) Current Liabilities    
       

 a) Financial Liabilities    
       

  i. Trade Payable 14 6.05 14.85 
       

  ● Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small    

   enterprises    
       

  ● Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro    

   enterprises and small enterprises    
      

 b) Other Current Liabilities 15 47.87 53.99 
       

 c) Provisions 16 123.59 128.17 
       

 d) Current Tax Liabilities  4.28 5.05 
       

  Total Equity and Liabilities  987.64 876.18 
       

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.  
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements. As per our report of even date annexed
For NGST & Associates,  
Chartered Accountants, Firm Regn. No. For EPIC ENERGY LIMITED  
139159W    

Bhupendra S Gandhi 
Bharat Mehta Brian Dsouza Priya Joshi 

Partner 
Director Director Director 

Membership No: 122296 
DIN: 00271878 DIN: 02176486 DIN: 10590560 

UDIN: 25122296BMHZWX5213    

Date: 27th May, 2025 Harshal Gunde   
 Director    

DIN: 10883967 
Place: Mumbai  

 
 

 
 

 
Veena Sandipkumar  
Morsawala Gupta 
Director Company Secretary  
DIN: 01310075 

 
Date: 27th May, 2025  

Place: Mumbai 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 

 --

-- --

 -- --
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Statement of Standalone Profit and Loss for the Year ended 31st March 2025 
 
      (rupees in Lakhs) 

Particular Notes 
 As at As at 
 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024     

 Revenue from Operation 17  426.06  307.85 
    

       

 Other Income 18 0.49 0.68 
I. Total Income   426.55  308.53 

     

       

       

II. Expenses      
       

       
 a)   Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 19  109.12  158.91 
    

        
b) Changes in inventories of finished goods, work in progress and stock-in- 

   trade 20  13.31  2.87 
         

  c) Employee benefits expense 21  35.74  49.79 
      

         

  d)  Depreciation and amortisation expense 2  34.30  17.47 
      

         

  e) Other Expenses 22  130.72  47.14 
      

         

   Total Expenses   323.19  276.18 
       

         

 III. Profit/ (loss) before exceptional items and tax   103.36  32.35 
       

         

 IV. Exceptional Items   -  - 
       

         

 V. Profit/ (loss) before tax   103.36  32.35 
       

         

  a) Current Tax   4.28  5.05 
       

         

  b) Deferred Tax   (28.37)  (3.75) 
       

         

  c) MAT Credit Entitlement   4.28  5.05 
       

         

 VI. Profit/ (loss) for the period from continuing operations   131.73  36.10 
       

         

VII. Profit/ (loss) from discontinued operations   -  - 
       

         

  Tax expense of discontinued operations   -  - 

VIII. Profit/ (loss) from discounting operations (after tax)      
         

 IX. Profit/ (loss) for the period   131.73  36.10 
       

         

 X. Other comprehensive income      
         

  (A) i)  Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss      
         

   ii)  Income tax related to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss      
         

  (B) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss      
         

   i)  Income tax related to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss      

   ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Statement of      

  Profit & Loss      

 XI. Total Comprehensive Income for the period Comprising Profit (Loss) and Other      

  comprehensive Income for the period (IX + X)   131.73  36.10 
         

XII. Earnings per equity share (for continuing operations)      
         

  a. Basic   1.83  0.50 
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b.  Diluted 
1.83 0.50 

  

 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements. As per our report of even date annexed  

 
For NGST & Associates,  
Chartered Accountants,  
Firm Regn. No. 139159W 

 
Bhupendra S Gandhi  
Partner 
Membership No: 122296  
UDIN: 25122296BMHZWX5213 

 
Date: 27th May, 2025  
Place: Mumbai  

 

 
 

For EPIC ENERGY LIMITED    

Bharat Mehta Brian Dsouza Priya Joshi Veena Morsawala Sandipkumar Gupta 
Director Director Director Director Company Secretary 
DIN: 00271878 DIN: 02176486 DIN: 10590560 DIN: 01310075  
 
 
Harshal Gunde 

Date: 27th May, 2025 
Director 

                                          Place: Mumbai 
DIN: 10883967  
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Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2025 (rupees in 
 

Lakhs)  

Particular 
 As at As at 
 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024   

      
A.  Cash Flow from Operating Activities      

      

      
Net Profit before Tax 103.36 32.35 

Adjustments for:      

Depreciation and Amortisation expense 34.30 17.47 

Interest Income on Fixed Deposit (0.17) (0.02) 

Operating Profit before working capital changes 137.49 49.80 

Adjustments for:      

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories 13.31 2.87 

(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables (19.02) (30.11) 

(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets and Loans and Advances (89.53) (83.26) 

(Increase)/Decrease in Other financial assets (1.55) (1.61) 

(Increase)/Decrease in Current financial assets - - 

(Increase)/Decrease in Other non-current assets 28.56 76.52 

Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables (8.80) 1.04 

Increase/(Decrease) in Current Tax Liabilities 0.77 5.05 

Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities (6.12) (11.53) 

Operating Profit before working capital changes 55.11 8.77 

Income Tax Paid (4.58) - 

     

Net Cash from Operating Activities 50.53 8.77 

      

Cash Flow from Investing Activities      

B.      
      

(Additions)/Dilution of Fixed Assets (26.77) (1.08) 

(Additions)/Dilution of Investments (12.61) (4.00) 

Increase in Term Deposits - (2.50) 

Net Cash used in investing activities (39.38) (7.58) 

      

Cash Flow from Financing Activities      

C.      
      

Fresh Equity Capital Issued  - - 
      

Premium on Fresh Equity issued - - 

Movement in Working Capital Borrowing - - 

Long term borrowings - - 

Repayment of long term borrowings - - 

Interest and other Financial Charges - - 

     

Cash from Financing activities - - 

     

     

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ( A+B+C) 11.15  1.19  

     

Cash and Cash equivalents (Opening Balance) 4.07  2.88  

Cash and Cash equivalents (Closing Balance) 15.22  4.07     
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Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents 

   

Cash and Cheques on hand 15.01 3.74 

Bank Balances 0.21 0.33 

Cash and Cash Equivalents as above 15.22 4.07 

   

Cash and Cash Equivalents as per Note No.8 15.22 4.07 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.    
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements.  
As per our report of even date annexed  

 
 

For NGST & Associates,  
Chartered Accountants,  
Firm Regn. No. 139159W 

 
 

 

Bhupendra S Gandhi  
Partner 
Membership No: 122296  
UDIN: 25122296BMHZWX5213 

 
 

 

Date: 27th May, 2025  
Place: Mumbai  

 
 

 

For EPIC ENERGY LIMITED 
 
 
 

 

Bharat 
Brian Dsouza Priya Joshi Veena 

 

Mehta Sandipkumar Gupta 
Director Director Morsawala 

Director Company Secretary 
DIN: DIN: Director 

DIN:  

02176486 10590560 DIN: 01310075  

00271878  

    

Harshal Gunde     
Director     

DIN: 10883967    Date: 27th May, 2025 

    Place: Mumbai 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 



81  | Page                                                                                                                                                           ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 

 

Statement of Changes in Equity 
 

A. Equity Share Capital 
 
i. Current Reporting Period 

 
 
 
 
 
(rupees in Lakhs)   

 Balance as at Restated balance as at Changes in equity share capital Balance as at 

 April 1, 2024 April 1, 2024 during the current year March 31, 2025 
     

 721.15 721.15 - 721.15 
     

ii. Previous reporting period  (rupees in Lakhs) 
     

 Balance as at Restated balance as at Changes in equity share capital Balance as at 

 April 1, 2023 April 1, 2023 during the current year March 31, 2024 
     

 721.15 721.15 - 721.15 
     

 

B. Other Equity          

i. Current Reporting Period     (rupees in Lakhs)   
           

     Reserve and Surplus      
 

Particular 
       

Total 
 

  General Securities Retained   
      

   Reserve Premium Reserve Earnings    

Balance as at April 1, 2024  80.34  281.00 (408.37)   (47.03)  

Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors  -  - -   -  
Restated balance at the beginning of the current  

- 
 

- 131.73 
  

131.73 
 

reporting period 
     

         

Total Comprehensive Income for the period  80.34  281.00 (276.64)   84.70  

Dividends  -  - -   -  
Transfer to retained earnings  -  - -   -  

Any other change (to be specified)  -  - -   -  

Balance as at March 31, 2025  80.34  281.00 (276.64)   84.70  

ii. Previous Reporting Period     (rupees in Lakhs) 
           

     Reserve and Surplus      
 

Particular 
       

Total 
 

  General Securities Retained   
      

   Reserve Premium Reserve Earnings    

Balance as at April 1, 2023  80.34  281.00 (444.47)   (83.13)  

Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors  -  - -   -  

Restated balance at the beginning of the current  
- 

 
- (36.10) 

  
(36.10) 

 

reporting period 
     

         

Total Comprehensive Income for the period  80.34  281.00 (408.37)   (47.03)  

Dividends  -  - -   -  

Transfer to retained earnings  -  - -   -  

Any other change (to be specified)  -  - -   -  

Balance as at March 31, 2024  80.34  281.00 (408.37)   (47.03)   
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 
 

Note 1: Significant Accounting Policies 

 

1. Corporate Information 
 
The Company provides Sustainable Energy Solutions, including Rooftop Solar Power Plants, Solar EPC, Energy Audits, 
EV Charging infrastructure, and LED retrofitting, with end-to-end capabilities from design to maintenance. The 
Financial Statements were approved and adopted by Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on 
27th May 2025. 
 

 

2. Significant Accounting Policies 

 

2.1. Statement of Compliance 
 

These Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (referred 
to as “Ind AS”) as prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, as amended from time to time. The Board of Directors approved the Financial 
Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025 and authorised for issue on 27th May, 2025. 

 

2.2. Basis of Preparation and Presentation 
 

The Financial Statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and in accordance with the historical cost 

convention, unless otherwise stated. Historical cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair 

value of the consideration given to acquire assets at the time of their acquisition or the amount of proceeds 

received in exchange for the obligation, or at the amounts of cash or cash equivalents expected to be paid to 

satisfy the liability in the normal course of business. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an 

asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement 

date. 

 

These Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional 
currency. All amounts are rounded to nearest Lakh, unless otherwise indicated. 

 

2.3. Critical accounting estimates and judgments 
 

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, the management of the Company are required to 

make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are 

not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical 

experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these 
estimates. 

 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, 

or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. 

Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgments is included in relevant notes together 

with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the Financial Statements. 

 

The areas involving critical estimates or judgments are: 

 

—   Estimation of useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment 
 

—   Estimation of employee benefit obligations Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated.   
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— Estimations used for determination of tax expenses and tax balances (including Minimum 

Alternate Tax credit) 
 

—   Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and 
 

other factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the 

Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances 

 

2.4. Property, Plant and Equipment 
 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost is inclusive of freight, 

duties, levies and any directly attributable cost of bringing the assets to their present working condition. When 

significant parts of property, plant and equipments are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company 

derecognises the replaced part, and recognises the new part with its own associated useful life and it is 

depreciated accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying 

amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognisation criteria is satisfied. All other repair 

and maintenance costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. The present value of the 

expected cost for the decommissioning of the asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset 

if the recognition criteria for a provision are met. Capital wok-in-progress includes cost of property, plant and 

equipments under installation / development as at the balance sheet date. Property, plant and equipments 

are eliminated from financial statement, either on disposal or when retired from financial statement, either on 

disposal or retired from active use. Losses arising in the case of retirement of property, plant and equipments 

and gains or losses arising from disposal of property, plant and equipments are recognised in the statement of 

profit and loss in the year of occurrence. The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation 

are reviewed at each financial year and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 
 

Depreciation 
 

Depreciation on fixed assets has been provided on the basis and manner provided in Schedule II to the 
Companies Act 2013. In respect of Energy Saving Equipments offered on BOOT basis, depreciation is written 
off over BOOT period. Property, plant and equipments which are added/disposed off during the year, 
depreciation is provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the month of addition/ deletion. 

 

Derecognition 
 

An item of Property, Plant and Equipments is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic 
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or 
retirement of an item of Property, Plant and Equipments is determined as the difference between the sales 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

 

2.5. Impairment 
 

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If 

any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the company estimates the 

asset’s recoverable amount. An assets recoverable amount is the higher of an assets or cash –generating unit’s 

(CGU) net selling price and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, 

unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or 

groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is 

considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated 

future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current 

market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling 

price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, 

an appropriate valuation model is used. An assessment is made at each reporting date whether there is any 

indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. 
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2.6. Inventories 
 
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined on moving 

weighted average basis. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated 
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale. Cost of inventory includes cost of purchase and other 

costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Unserviceable/damaged stores and 
spares are identified and written down based on technical evaluation. 

 

2.7. Provisions 
 
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past 

event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made 

of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration 

required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and 

uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the 

present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value 

of money is material). 

 

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as provisions with charge to 
Statement of Profit and Loss. An onerous contract is considered to exist where the Company has a contract under 
which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits 
expected to be received from the contract. 

 

Restructuring provisions are recognised only when the Company has a constructive obligation, which is when: (i) a 
detailed formal plan identifies the business or part of the business concerned, the location and number of 
employees affected, a detailed estimate of the associated costs, and the timeline; and (ii) the employees affected 
have been notified of the plan’s main features. 

 

2.8. Contingent Liabilities 
 
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the 

occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a 

present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to 

settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot 

be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but 

discloses its existence in the Financial Statements. 

 

2.9. Contingent assets 
 
Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed in the Financial Statements when an inflow of economic 
benefits is probable. 

 

2.10. Cash and cash equivalents 
 
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an 
original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash and 
cash equivalents includes balance with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage. 

 

2.11. Revenue Recognition 

 

Revenue is the gross inflow of cash, receivables or other consideration arising in the course of the ordinary 
activities of an enterprise from the sale of goods, from the rendering of services, and from the use by others of 
enterprise resources yielding interest, royalties and dividends. Revenues from sale of goods.  
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i. Sale of Goods 
 

Revenue from the sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities is measured at the value of the 

consideration received or receivable, net of returns, trade discounts, rate differences and volume rebates. 

Revenue is recognized on the basis of audited report on energy saved on replaced Street lights, recovery of 

the consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible return of goods can be estimated reliably, 

there is no continuing effective control over the goods and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. 

The timing of transfer of control normally happens upon shipment. However, in case of consignment sales to 

agents’ revenues are recognized when the materials are sold to ultimate customers. 

 
Further, revenues are recognized at gross value of consideration of goods & processing of goods excluding 
Goods and Service Tax (GST). 

 
Revenue from sale of products is not recognized on the grounds of prudence, until realized in respect of 
delayed payments as recovery of amounts are not certain. 

 
ii. Sale of Services 

 
Revenue from the service contract is recognized when the related services are performed and revenue from 

the services at the end of the reporting period is recognized based on stage of completion method. When 

there is uncertainty as to the ultimate collection of the revenue, recognition is postponed until such 

uncertainty is resolved. Revenues from service contracts are measured based on the services performed to 

date as a percentage of total services to be performed. In case where the services are performed by an 

indeterminate number of acts over a specified period of time, revenue is recognized on a straight-line basis 

over the specified period. After the initial recognition, in respect of uncollectible amount, provisions are made 

in the period in which amount is identified as uncollectible. 

 
iii. Interest and Dividend Income 

 
Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder's right to receive payment has been 
established. 

 
Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to 

the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, 
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that 

exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's 

net carrying amount on initial recognition. 

 

2.12. Other Employee Benefits 
 

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified as Short-
term employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, performance incentives and Compensated 
absences which are expected to occur in next twelve months. 

 

2.13. Income Tax 
 

a) Current income tax 
 

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid 

to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted 

or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit 
or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax 

items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.  
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Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which 
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate. 

 
 
 

b) Deferred tax 
 

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets 

and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferred tax 

liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except when it is probable that the temporary 

differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible 

temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets 

are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the 

deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be 

utilized. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the 

extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the 

deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and 

are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred 

tax asset to be recovered. 

 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year the 
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

 
Deferred tax, in so far as it relates to items disclosed under other comprehensive income or equity, are 
disclosed separately under other comprehensive income or equity, as applicable. 

 
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current 
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same 
taxation authority. 

 

2.14. Earnings per share 
 

Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the 

Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings 

per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company by 

the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per equity share and 

also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive 

potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the 

equity shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average market value of the outstanding equity 

shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued 

at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented. The 

number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods 

presented for any share splits and bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior to the approval of 

the Standalone Financial Statements by the Board of Directors. 
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3. Other Significant Accounting Policies 

 

3.1. Foreign currency 

 

The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupee (₹). 

 

In the Financial Statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the functional currency are 

translated into the functional currency at the exchange rates ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary 

assets and liabilities denominated in other currencies are translated into the functional currency at exchange 

rates prevailing on the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in other currencies 

and measured at historical cost or fair value are translated at the exchange rates prevailing on the dates on 

which such values were determined. All exchange differences are included in the statement of profit and loss 

except any exchange differences on monetary items designated as an effective hedging instrument of the 

currency risk of designated forecasted sales or purchases, which are recognized in the other comprehensive 

income. 

 

3.2. Current versus non-current classification 

 

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current classification.  
An asset is treated as current when it is:  
- expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,  
- held primarily for the purpose of trading,  
- expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

 
- cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at 

least twelve months after the reporting period. 

 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

 

A liability is current when:  
- it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,  
- it is held primarily for the purpose of trading,  
- it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

 
- there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after 

the reporting period. 

 

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.  
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

 

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash 
and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle. 

 

3.3. Onerous contracts 

 

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as provisions. An onerous 
contract is considered to exist where the Company has a contract under which the unavoidable costs of 
meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received from the 
contract.  
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3.4. Financial Instruments 

 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or 
equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. 

 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from 

the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction 

costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities measured at fair value 
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss. 

 

3.5. Financial Asset 

 

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value, plus in case of financial assets not recorded at fair value 
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset is 
considered. However, trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at 
transaction price. 

 

a) Financial assets at amortised cost 

 

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method if 
these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is to hold these assets in order to 
collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates 
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

 
b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

 

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held 
within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and 
selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to 
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

 

On initial recognition, the Company makes an irrevocable election on an instrument-by-instrument basis 

to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income pertaining to investments 

in equity instruments, other than equity investment which are held for trading. Subsequently, they are 

measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other 

comprehensive income and accumulated in the 'Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive 

Income'. The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the investments. 

 
c) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 

 
Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company irrevocably elects on 

initial recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income for 

investments in equity instruments which are not held for trading. Other financial assets are measured at 
fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other 

comprehensive income.  
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d) Derecognition 
 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar 
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:  

—   the right to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 
 

— the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an 
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-

through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and 

rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the 

risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

 

When the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-

through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of 

ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the 

asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to 

the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an 

associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects 

the rights and obligations that the Company has retained. 

 

e) Impairment of financial assets 
 

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is 

impaired. Ind AS 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The Company 

recognises lifetime expected losses for all contract assets and / or all trade receivables that do not constitute a 

financing transaction. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to 

the 12 month expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the life time expected credit losses if the credit 

risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition. 

 

3.6. Financial liabilities and equity instruments 
 

a) Classification as debt or equity 

 

Debt and equity instruments issued by a Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity 
in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial 
liability and an equity instrument. 

 
 
 

b) Equity Instruments 
 

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after 
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the 
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. 

 
c) Financial liabilities 

 
Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or 

FVTPL. Gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised 

as well as through the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by 

taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of 
the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.  
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Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and 
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as FVTPL. Financial liabilities are classified as held 

for trading if these are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Financial liabilities at 

FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 

 

d) Derecognition 
 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or 

expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 

different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or 

modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The 

difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

 

3.7. Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities 

 

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial 

recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial 

liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change 

in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be 

infrequent. The Company’s senior management determines change in the business model as a result of 

external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s operations. Such changes are evident to 

external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to 

perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies 

the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next 

reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously 

recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest. 
 

 

3.8. Cash Flow Statement 

 

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, where by profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of 
transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or 
payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows 
from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated. 

 

3.9. Operating Cycle 

 

Considering the nature of business activities, the operating cycle has been assumed to have a duration of 12 
months. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the 
Company’s operating cycle and other criteria set out in Ind AS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ and 
Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

 

3.10. Maintenance of Books of Accounts under Section 128 of the Companies Act, 2013 

 

The Company has defined process to take daily back-up of books of account maintained electronically and 
complied with the provisions of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended). However, the Company  
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as a policy, has maintained logs of the daily back-up of such books of account only for 90 days and hence audit 
trail in relation to daily back up taken was not available for full year. 

 

3.11. Significant Events after the Reporting Period 

 

There were no significant adjusting events that occurred subsequent to the reporting period other than the 
events disclosed in the relevant notes. 

 

 

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 
 

Note 2: The changes in the carrying value of property, plant and equipment are as follows 
 
            (rupees in Lakhs) 
                

           Other     

Property, Plant and  Energy Saving   
Computers 

 Furniture  Office Intangible   
Total 

 
Equipment  Equipment    and Fixture  Equipment Assets-    

          

           Software     

Cost                

As At March 31, 2023  2,202.80   6.48 31.79 12.11 -   2,253.18  

Additions  -   - - 1.08 -   1.08  

Disposals     - - - -   -  

As At March 31, 2024  2,202.80   6.48 31.79 13.19 -   2,254.26  

Additions  -   0.69 -   0.68   1.37  

Disposals  -   - - - -   -  

As At March 31, 2025  2,202.80   7.17 31.79 13.19 0.68   2,255.63  

                

Depreciation                

As At March 31, 2023  2,037.37   6.37 26.16 11.38 -   2,081.28  

Additions  16.46   0.08 0.83 0.10 -   17.47  

Disposals  -   - - - -   -  

As At March 31, 2024  2,053.83   6.45 26.99 11.48 -   2,098.75  

Additions  32.91   0.09 0.83 0.25 0.22   34.30  

Disposals  -   - -      -  

As At March 31, 2025  2,086.74   6.54 27.82 11.73 0.22   2,133.05  

                

Net Block                

As At March 31, 2025  116.06   0.63 3.97 1.46 0.46   122.58  

As At March 31, 2024  148.97   0.03 4.80 1.71 -   155.51  
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Note 3: Investments 
 
    (rupees in Lakhs) 
      

Particular 
 As at  As at 
 

31 March, 2025 
 

31 March, 2024    

Non- Current Investments      

Investment in Limited Liability Partnership (LLP)      

Swachchha Urja Nirman LLP  6.00  4.00  

      

Investment in Private Limited Company (Pvt. Ltd)      

Epic EV Chargers Private Limited  7.60  -  

Epic Renewable Energy Turnkey Projects Private Limited  1.00    

Epic Vighnaharta Renewable Energy Private Limited  0.01    

Epic Renewable Projects Private Limited  1.00    

Solapur Green Park Private Limited  1.00    

Total non-current Investments  16.61  4.00  

Note 4: Other Financial Assets      
    (rupees in Lakhs) 
     

Particular 
 As at  As at 
 

31 March, 2025 
 

31 March, 2024    

Non- Current      

Security Deposits  8.00  8.00  

Retention Money Receivable  1.55  -  

Total non-current other financial assets  9.55  8.00  

Note 5: Deferred Tax Asset      
    (rupees in Lakhs) 
     

Particular 
 As at  As at 
 

31 March, 2025 
 

31 March, 2024    

Opening DTA  14.45  10.70  

Credit to P & L  28.37  3.75  

Closing DTA  42.82  14.45  

Total  42.82  14.45  
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Note 6: Other Non-Current Assets  
    (rupees in Lakhs) 
      

Particular 
 As at  As at 
 

31 March, 2025 
 

31 March, 2024    

Non-Current      
Advances other than capital advances      

      

(a) advances against supply of goods and services  303.47  333.07  
    

(b) Accrued Interest on Deposits with Bank  0.19  0.02  
    

(c) MAT Credit Entitlement  
5.92 

 
5.05 

 
    

Total  309.58  338.14  
      

 

Note 7: Inventories  
    (rupees in Lakhs) 
      

Particular 
 As at  As at 
 

31 March, 2025 
 

31 March, 2024    

Finished Goods  6.91  20.21  

Store & Spares  0.20  0.21  

Total  7.11  20.42  
      

 

Note 8: Trade Receivables  
         (rupees in Lakhs) 
           

Particular 
    As at   As at 
   

31 March, 2025 
 

31 March, 2024       

Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured    114.49   95.47  

           

Total     114.49   95.47  

Trade receivables ageing schedule for the year ended as on March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024:   

As at 31st March, 2025      (rupees in Lakhs) 
    

  Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Particular 
         

Less than 6 6 months  1 year to 2 years to More than   
   Total   months to 1 year  2 years 3 years  3 years       

           

           
i. Undisputed Trade receivables —          

 considered good 39.18 4.42 70.89 - - 114.49   
 

ii. Undisputed Trade Receivables — 
which have significant increase 
in credit risk 

 
iii. Undisputed Trade Receivables 

— credit impaired 
 
iv. Disputed Trade Receivables 

— considered good  
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v. Disputed Trade Receivables — 
which have significant increase 
in credit risk 

 
vi. Disputed Trade Receivables 

— credit impaired  
 

Total 39.18 4.42 70.89 - - 114.49 
      

As at 31st March, 2024     (rupees in Lakhs) 
    

  Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment  

Particular 
      

Less than 6 6 months 1 year to 2 years to More than  
  Total   months to 1 year 2 years 3 years 3 years    

        

        
i. Undisputed Trade receivables —       

 considered good 50.84 5.42 - 3.75 35.46 95.47  
 

ii. Undisputed Trade Receivables — 
which have significant increase 
in credit risk 

 
iii. Undisputed Trade Receivables 

— credit impaired 
 
iv. Disputed Trade Receivables 

— considered good 
 
v. Disputed Trade Receivables — 

which have significant increase 
in credit risk 

 
vi. Disputed Trade Receivables 

— credit impaired  
 

Total 50.84 5.42 - 3.75 35.46 95.47  

 

Note 9: Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
    (rupees in Lakhs) 
      

Particular 
 As at  As at 
 

31 March, 2025 
 

31 March, 2024    

      

Balances with Banks (of the nature of cash and cash equivalents)  0.21  0.33  

Cash on hand  15.01  3.74  

Total  1522  4.07  
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Note 10: Other Bank Balances  
    (rupees in Lakhs) 
      

Particular 
 As at  As at 
 

31 March, 2025 
 

31 March, 2024    

Unpaid Dividend  6.64  6.64  

Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity  2.50  2.50  

Total  9.14  9.14  
      

 
 
 

 

Note 11: Other Current assets 
 
     (rupees in Lakhs) 
       

Particular 
 As at  As at 
 

31 March, 2025 
 

31 March, 2024     

Current Assets      
a) Advance to suppliers  1.97  18.41  

     

       

b) Tax deducted at source  13.49  7.17  
       

c) Advance-Others  -  7.39  
       

d) Unbilled Revenue  297.82  188.63  
       

e) Prepaid Expenses  3.23  1.13  
       

f) Project W-I-P  -  4.25  
       

Total  316.51  226.98  
       

 

 

Note 12: Equity Share Capital 
 
    (rupees in Lakhs) 
      

Particular 
 As at  As at 
 

31 March, 2025 
 

31 March, 2024    

Authorized      
1,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each ((Previous year  

1,500.00 
 

1,200.00 
 

1,20,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each)    

     

      
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up      

      

72,11,500 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each  721.15  721.15  
      

 

Terms / rights attached to equity shares 

 

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ` 10/- per share. Each shareholder is 
eligible for one Vote per Share. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the 
remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion of their 
shareholding.  
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Details of shareholding of promoters as at 31st March 2025 is as follows:  

 

Promoter name No. of shares % of Total Shares 
% Change during 

the year    
    

Mrs Veena Nikhil Morsawala 8,40,100 11.65 - 
 

    

Mr  Nikhil Champaklal Morsawala 8, 37,965 11.62 - 
 

    

 

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% Equity Shares in the Company:  

 

Promoter name No. of shares % of Total Shares 
% Change during 

the year     
     

Mrs Veena Nikhil Morsawala 8,40,100 11.65 - 
 

     

Mr Nikhil Champaklal Morsawala 8,37,965 11.62 - 
 

     

Mr Behram Mehta 10,00,000 13.87 - 
     

Mr Chandrashekhar Lad 6,93,188 9.61 0.01 
     

 

The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding and the amount of share capital as at March 31, 2025 and  
March 31, 2024 is set out below:  

 

Promoter name 
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 

    

No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount  
     

As at the beginning of the period 72,11,500 721.15 7211500 721.15 
    

     

As at the end of the period 72,11,500 721.15 7211500 721.15 
    

     

 

 

Note 13: Other Equity 
 
     (rupees in Lakhs) 
       

Particular 
 As at  As at 
 

31 March, 2025 
 

31 March, 2024     

a) Securities Premium  281.00  281.00  
     

       

b) General Reserve      
       

 Opening balance  80.34  80.34  
       

 Add : Transfer during the year      
       

 Closing Balance  80.34  80.34  
      

c)  Profit and Loss/ Retained Earnings      
       

 Opening balance  (408.37)  (444.47)  
       

 Add : Transfer during the year  131.73  36.10  
       

 Closing Balance  (276.64)  (408.37)  
       

 Total  84.70  (47.03)  
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Note 14: Trade Payables 
 
    (rupees in Lakhs) 
      

Particular 
 As at  As at 
 

31 March, 2025 
 

31 March, 2024    

Outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and  
6.05 

 
14.85 

 

small enterprises    

     

Total  6.05  14.85  
      

 

Trade receivables ageing schedule for the year ended as on March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024: 

 

As at 31st March, 2025 (rupees in Lakhs)  
 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment   

Particular  
 

 

Undisputed Trade receivables — considered 
good 

 
 

Less than 1 1 year to 2 years to More than 3 
Total 

year 2 years 3 years years  

     

- - - - -   
i. MSME - - - - -  

   

        

ii. Others 6.05 - - - 6.05  
        

iii. Disputed dues-MSME - - - - -  
   

        

iv. Disputed dues - Others - - - - -  
   

        

v. (iii) Disputed dues-MSME - - - - -  
   

        

vi. (iv)Disputed dues - Others - - - - -  
   

       

Total 6.05 - - - 6.05  
       

As at 31st March, 2024    (rupees in Lakhs)   
    

  Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment    

Particular  
 

 

Undisputed Trade receivables — considered 
good 

 
 

Less than 1 1 year to 2 years to More than 3 
Total 

year 2 years 3 years years  

     

- - - - -   
i. MSME - - - - - 

  

       

ii. Others 14.85 - - - 14.85 
       

iii. Disputed dues-MSME - - - - - 
  

       

iv. Disputed dues - Others - - - - - 
  

       

v. (iii) Disputed dues-MSME - - - - - 
  

       

vi. (iv)Disputed dues - Others - - - - - 
  

      

Total 14.85 - - - 14.85 
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Note 15: Other Current liabilities  
    (rupees in Lakhs) 
      

Particular 
 As at  As at 
 

31 March, 2025 
 

31 March, 2024    

Current Liabilities      
Statutory dues  6.54  3.70  

      

Salary Payable  20.04  21.07  
      

Unclaimed Dividend  6.64  6.64  
      

Other payables  14.65  19.96  
      

Advance from Customers  -  2.62  
      

Total  47.87  53.99  
      

 

Note 16: Provisions 
 
    (rupees in Lakhs) 

Particular 
 As at  As at  
 

31 March, 2025 
 

31 March, 2024    

Short term provisions      

Tax payable  123.59  128.17  

Total non-current other financial assets  123.59  128.17  
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 
 

 

Note 17: Revenue from operations 
 
    (rupees in Lakhs) 
      

Particular 
 As at  As at 
 

31 March, 2025 
 

31 March, 2024    

Energy Solution Division      

Income from Energy Saving  193.14  64.93  

Income from Energy Maintenance  -  48.49  

Income from Renewable Energy Solutions  232.92  194.43  

Total  426.06  307.85  
      

 

Note 18: Other Income 
 
    (rupees in Lakhs) 
      

Particular 
 As at  As at 
 

31 March, 2025 
 

31 March, 2024    

Income not payable written back  0.08  0.66  

Interest Income on Fixed Deposit  0.18  0.02  

Excess Provision written Back  0.23  -  

Total  0.49  0.68  
      

 

Note 19: Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 
 
    (rupees in Lakhs) 
      

Particular 
 As at  As at 
 

31 March, 2025 
 

31 March, 2024    

Material Purchased  83.74  143.79  

Maintenance Cost  25.38  15.12  

Total  109.12  158.91  
      

 

Note 20: Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade  
    (rupees in Lakhs) 
      

Particular 
 As at  As at 
 

31 March, 2025 
 

31 March, 2024    

Opening Stock  20.42  23.29  

Less: Closing Stock  7.11  20.42  

Total  13.31  2.87  
      

*Cost of Materials Consumed is arrived on derived consumption of Inventories  
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Note 21: Employee benefits expense 
 
    (rupees in Lakhs) 
      

Particular 
 As at  As at 
 

31 March, 2025 
 

31 March, 2024    

a) Salaries, wages and Bonus      

Contribution to Provident Fund  1.60  0.11  

Employee Overtime Exps  0.40  0.33  

Salaries Expense including Outsourcing  31.62  43.62  

b) Staff Welfare Expenses      

Staff Welfare  2.12  5.73  

Total  35.74  49.79  
      

 

Note 22: Other Expenses 
 
    (rupees in Lakhs) 
      

Particular 
 As at  As at 
 

31 March, 2025 
 

31 March, 2024    

a) Communication Expenses  4.13  0.73  
      

b) Sales Promotion Expenses  2.96  1.70  
      

c) Repair & Maintenance  0.53  0.60  
      

d) Rent, Rates & Taxes  7.93  5.31  
      

e) Travelling Expenses  6.86  4.42  
      

f) Electricity Charges  0.93  2.08  
      

g) Auditor Fees  1.80  1.80  
      

h) Other Expenses      
      

Legal & Professional Fees  10.23  10.39  
      

Project Expected Credit Loss  77.43  -  
      

Misc Exps  0.09  -  
      

Printing & Stationery  1.51  0.40  
      

Annual Custodian Fees  0.48  0.45  
      

Annual Listing Fees  3.25  3.25  
      

Cleaning Charges  0.78  0.67  
      

Commission Charges  -  0.98  
      

Courier Charges  0.20  0.03  
      

Director Sitting Fees  1.39  0.30  
      

Diwali Expenses  1.06  0.25  
      

Hospital Expenses  -  0.73  
      

Insurance Charges  -  0.10  
      

Interest on GST/ TDS  0.27  0.12  
      

Interest & Late Fees-Other  0.03  0.01  
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Late Fee-GST/TDS 0.26 0.26 
   

Certification Charges 0.30 - 
   

License Fee-Software Renewal 0.55 0.07 
   

Misc Exps Write Off - 2.13 
   

Bank Charges 0.23 0.23 
   

Office Expenses 1.16 1.03 
   

Postage & Stamp Duty 0.03 0.01 
   

Repair & Maintenance - 0.22 
   

R.O.C Charges 5.43 0.17 
   

Round Off - (0.02) 
   

Registrar and Share Transfer Agents Charges 0.80 1.68 
   

Project Exps - 6.69 
   

Technical Charges - 0.35 
   

Training Expenses 0.81 - 
   

Prior Period Expenses 0.17 - 
   

Project Expenses written off 0.12 - 
   

Total 130.72 47.14 
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 
 

Note 23: Earnings per share (EPS) 
 
     (rupees in Lakhs) 

Particular *** 
 As at  As at 
 

31 March, 2025 
 

31 March, 2024     

Net Profit as per Statement of Profit and Loss ₹ in lakh  131.73  36.10 
      

Weighted average number of equity shares in 
Nos. 

 72,11,500  72,11,500 
calculating basic EPS     

     

Nominal value of each share ₹  10  10 
      

Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share ₹  1.83  0.50 
      

 

Note 24: Dividend 

 

Board of directors has not recommended any dividend for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025. 

 

Note 25: Gratuity Plan 
 

The Company does not have a defined benefit gratuity plan for its employees. 

 

Note 26: 

 

As per information and records available with the Company, there are no reportable amounts of dues on account of 
principal and interest or any such payments during the year as required by Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006, in respect of Micro Enterprises and small Enterprises as defined in the Act. As a result, no 
disclosure in this respect is made in the Financial Statements. 

 

Note 27: Segment Information 

 

The Company’s business activity falls within two reportable segments VIZ. Power conditioners & savers and 

Renewable Energy and energy saving appliances. Hence, additional disclosures other than those already made in the 

Financial Statements are required under IND AS “Operating Segments”. Segments have been identified and reported 

taking into account the nature of products and services, the differing risks and returns and the internal business 

reporting systems. The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policy of 

the company with following additional policies for segment reporting. Revenue and expenses have been identified to 

a segment on the basis of relationship to operating activities of the segment. Revenue and expenses which relate to 

the enterprise as a whole and are not allocable to a segment on a reasonable basis have been disclosed as 

“Unallocable”. 

 

Segment assets and segment liabilities represent assets and liabilities in respective segments. Investments, tax 
related assets and other assets and liabilities that cannot be allocated to a segment on reasonable basis have been 
disclosed as “Unallocable”.  
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     (Rupees in Lakhs) 
       

Particular 
 As at  As at 
 

31 March, 2025 
 

31 March, 2024     

       

Segment Revenue      
       

Gross Income from Operations      
       

1. Power Saving Solutions  193.14  119.66  
       

2. Renewable Energy Solutions  232.92  188.19  
       

3. Unallocated  0.49  0.68  
       

 Total  426.55  308.53  
       

       
Segment Result before Tax and Interest      

       

1. Power Saving Solutions  45.19  1.64  
       

2. Renewable Energy Solutions  57.68  30.03  
       

3. Unallocated  0.49  0.68  
       

 Total  103.36  32.35  
       

       
Segment Capital Employed      

       

1. Power Saving Solutions  493.78  448.30  
       

2. Renewable Energy Solutions  256.62  170.86  
       

3. Unallocated  55.45  54.96  
       

 Total  805.85  674.12  
       

 

 

Note 28: Capital Commitment and Contingent Liabilities 

 

    (rupees in Lakhs) 

Particular 
 As at  As at  
 

31 March, 2025 
 

31 March, 2024    

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on  
- 

 
- 

 
capital contract and not provided for (Net of Advances)    

     

     

Contingent Liabilities  -  -  
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Note 29: Related Party Disclosures 

 

1)  Names of related parties  

 

Particular 
As at 

31 March, 2025   
    

 Mr. Bharat Mehta — Director 
    

 Mr. Brian Dsouza — Director 
    

 Ms. Priya Joshi — Director 
    

 Mrs Veena Morsawala — Director 
    

 Mr. Harshal Gunde — Director  
 

 Mr. Nikhil Morsawala – Group  

 Chief Financial Officer  

 Mr Bhalchandra Ramrao Kadam  
 – Group Chief Commercial  

 Officer  

 Mr P Sivasubramaniam – Head –  
 EV Chargers Division  

Key Management Personnel Mr Nikhil V Pandya – Group  
  

 Head – Corporate Finance  
 

Ms Hetvi Patel – Head – Project 
— 

  

 Finance, Management Accounts  

 and MIS  

 Mr. Atul Mishra – Head –  
 Accounts and Taxation  

 Mr. Sandipkumar Gupta –  
 Company Secretary &  

 Compliance Officer   
 
 

 
—  

 
—  

 

Relatives of Key Management 
- 

Personnel   
Enterprise owned or significantly 
influenced by key Management - 

Personnel or their relatives  
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2)  Particulars of Transactions during the year ended 31st March, 2025 

 

Particular 
 Key Management Personnel  Associate / Enterprise where 
 

(INR in lakhs) 
 

Control exists (INR in lakhs)    

Remuneration  17.37  - 
     

Balance outstanding at the year  
- 

 
24.34 (As on 31/03/2025) 

end – Receivable   

    
    

Balance outstanding at the year  167.72 (As on 31/03/2025)  
3.46 (As on 31/03/2025) 

end – Payable  85.59  (As on 31/03/2024)  

   
     

 

 

Note 30: Fair Value 

 

The carrying value and fair value of financial instrument by categories as at 31st March, 2025, is as follows: 

 

a. Fair Value of financial assets and financial liabilities  
The carrying value and fair value of financial instrument by categories as at 31st March, 2025, is as follows:  

     (rupees in Lakhs) 
      

 Fair Value Fair value 
Amortised 

Total 
Total Fair 

Particular Hierarchy through Profit Carrying 
Cost Value  

Level and Loss Value    

Asset      

Cash and Cash Equivalents Level 3 - 15.22 15.22 15.22 

Other Bank Balances Level 3  9.14 9.14 9.14 

Trade Receivables Level 3  114.49 114.49 114.49 

Investment in Financial Assets Level 3  16.61 16.61 16.61 

Other Financial Assets Level 3  9.55 9.55 9.55 

Total   165.01 165.01 165.01 
      

Liabilities      
      

Trade Payables Level 3  6.05 6.05 6.05 

Other Financial Liabilities Level 3  - - - 

Total   6.05 6.05 6.05 

 

The carrying value and fair value of financial instrument by categories as at 31st March, 2024, is as follows: 
 
     (rupees in Lakhs) 
      

 Fair Value Fair value 
Amortised 

Total 
Total Fair 

Particular Hierarchy through Profit Carrying 
Cost Value  

Level and Loss Value    

Asset      

Cash and Cash Equivalents Level 3 - 4.07 4.07 4.07 

Other Bank Balances Level 3  9.14 9.14 9.14 
Trade Receivables Level 3  95.47 95.47 95.47 
Investment - Share Application Level 3  4.00 4.00 4.00 
Money Pending Allotment      

Other Financial Assets Level 3  8.00 8.00 8.00  
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Total 
 120.68 120.68 120.68 

     

Liabilities     
     

Trade Payables Level 3 14.85 14.85 14.85 

Other Financial Liabilities Level 3 - - - 

Total  14.85 14.85 14.85 
 

 

Fair Value of financial assets and financial liabilities 
 
 

The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value that 
are either observable or unobservable and consists of the following three levels: 

 

Leverl-1 Inputs are prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or  liabilities. 
 

Leverl-2 Inputs are other than prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (i.e. 
as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices) 

 

Level-3 Inputs are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair value is determined in 
whole or in part using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from 
observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data. 

 

b. Valuation techniques and key inputs 
 

Leverl-1 At present the company has no such financial assets or financial liabilities which are required 
to measure by this level of hierarchy. 

 
Leverl-2 At present the company has no such financial assets or financial liabilities which are required 
to measure by this level of hierarchy. 

 
Leverl-3 Investment in share application money, cost has been considered as an appropriate estimate of fair 
value because of a wide range of possible fair value measurements and cost represents the best estimate of 
fair value within that range. 

 

Note 31: Financial Risk Management Objective and Policies 
 

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables only. The main purpose of these 
financial liabilities is to finance the company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include 
investments at fair value, trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents. 
 

The Company is exposed to market risk and credit risk. The Company’s senior management monitors these risks and 

is supported by professional managers who advise on financial risks and assist in preparing the appropriate financial 

risk governance framework. It provides assurance to the senior management that the financial risk activities are 

governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in 

accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and approves policies for 

managing each of these risks which are summarized below: 
 

a) Market risk 
 

Market risks are the risk when the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate because 
of changes in market prices.  
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b) Credit risk 
 

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or Customer 
Contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities 
(primarily trade receivables). The Company only deals with parties which has sound worthiness based on the 
internal assessment. 

 

Note 32: Capital Management 

 

The Company’s objective for capital management is to maximise shareholder value, safeguard business 
continuity and support the growth. The Company determines the capital requirement based on annual operating 
plans and long-term and other strategic investment plans. The Company is not subject to any externally imposed 
capital requirements. 

 

Note 33:  
Revenue from Operations includes Unbilled Revenue from April 2024 to March 2025 amounting to Rs. 218.14 lakhs. 

 

Note 34:  
Total other current assets of Rs. 316.51 Lakhs Includes Unbilled revenue of Rs.297.82 Lakhs. 

 

Note 35: 
 
The company is yet to transfer unpaid dividend of an amount aggregating to Rs. 6.64 Lakhs relating to Financial Years 
2010-11 and 2011-12 from unpaid dividend account to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) 

 

Note 36: Additional Regulatory Information 
 

i. The Company does not have any immovable properties. 

 
ii. The company does not have any intangible assets under development. 

 

iii. No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the company as at March 31, 
2023 for holding any Benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 
1988) and rules made thereunder. 

 
iv. The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of ₹5 crores, in aggregate, at any 

points of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets 
and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

 
v. The Company does not have any transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of Companies 

Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956. 

 
vi. There were no charges or satisfaction which were yet to be registered with Roc beyond the statutory period.  
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vii. Ratio Analysis  
          (rupees in Lakhs) 
           

          Reason of 
Particular Numerator Denominator  2023-24  2022-23  Variance  Variance (If more 

          than 25%) 

           
          Improved due to 
          higher current 

Current ratio 
Current Assets Current Liabilities 

   
1.76 

   assets, mainly 

(in times) 
 2.85   61.93  

cash & equivalents        

          and lower current 
          liabilities. 
  

Average 
       Increase driven by 

Return on Equity Net Profit after        higher profitability 
Shareholder's    5.50%    

(in %) Taxes 
 17.63%   220.55  

with unchanged Equity      
         

equity base.           

Trade Receivables 
Net Credit Average Trade 

   

3.84 
   

Stable, indicating 
Turnover Ratio       

Sales Receivables 
 4.06   5.73  

efficient collection 
(in times)      

          

Trade Payables 
         Slight dip, 

Net Credit Average Trade      -  reflecting 
Turnover ratio    11.09   

Purchases Payables 
 10.44   5.86  

marginally higher (in times)      
         payables.           

Net Capital 
         Decline due to 
       -  higher capital 

Turnover ratio Net Sales Working Capital    2.00   

 1.26   37.00  

employed relative (in times)        
         

to turnover.           

          Rise attributable 

Net Profit Ratio Net Profit after 
        to improved 

Net Sales    11.70%    margins, cost 
(in %) Taxes 

 30.60%   161.54  

      efficiency, and           

          profitability. 

 Earnings         Growth led by 
Return on capital Before 

Capital Employed 
 

12.44 
 

4.80 
 

(159.17) 
 higher EBIT with 

employed (in %) Interest and     stable capital         

 taxes         employed. 

           
 

 

Note: Debt-Equity, Debt Service Coverage and Return on Investment (ROI) are not applicable to the company. 
 

 

viii. (A) The company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium 
or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
(Intermediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary 
shall: 

 
Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or 
on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

 
(ii) Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.  

 

(B) The company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
(Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall:  
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(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by 
or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

 
(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

 
 
 

ix. Undisclosed income: 

 
There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered or disclosed as 
income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) during the year. 

 
x. The Company does not come under the requirements of section 135 of the Act. 

 

Note 37: PREVIOUS YEAR FIGURES 
 

Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified, where necessary to confirm to the year’s classification  

 

As per our report of annexed 

 

For NGST & Associates,  
Chartered Accountants,  
Firm Regn. No. 139159W 

 

Bhupendra S Gandhi  
Partner 
Membership No: 122296  
UDIN: 25122296BMHZWX5213 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Date: 27th May, 2025  
Place: Mumbai  

 
 
 

 

For EPIC ENERGY LIMITED  
 
 

 

Bharat Mehta Brian Dsouza  
Director Director 
DIN: 00271878 DIN: 02176486 
 

 

Priya Joshi Veena Morsawala  
Director Director  
DIN: 10590560 DIN: 01310075 
 

Harshal Gunde  
Director  

DIN: 00271878 Date: 27th May, 2025 

 Place: Mumbai 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 

To the members of  
M/s. Epic Energy Limited 

 

Opinion 
 
We have audited the accompanying IND AS Consolidated Financial Statements of M/s. Epic Energy Limited (“the 

Parent”) and its subsidiaries (the Parent and its subsidiaries together referred to as ‘the Group’), which comprise the 

balance sheet as at 31st March 2025, and Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), 

statement of changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS 

Consolidated Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 

information (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Consolidated Financial Statements’). 

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, this consolidated 
financial information:  
a. include the financial information of the following entities:  
i. EPIC Energy Limited (Parent)  
ii. EPIC EV Chargers Pvt Ltd (Subsidiary, 76% shareholding)  
iii. Swachchha Urja Nirman LLP (Joint Venture, 60% holding) 

 

b. give a true and fair view in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in the 
applicable Indian Accounting Standards and other accounting principles generally accepted in India of the 
consolidated net profit and other comprehensive income and other financial information of the Group and its joint 
venture for year ended March 31, 2025 

 

Basis for Opinion 
 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the 

Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of 

the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 

together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements under 

the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 

responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence 

obtained by us, along with the consideration of audit reports of other auditors, as applicable we have obtained is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements. 
 

 

Emphasis of matter: 
 

4. Revenue from operations includes unbilled revenue from April 2024 to March 2025 amounting to Rs. 193.14 
Lakhs, primarily related to a claim of Rs. 703.72 Lakhs (including Rs. 297.82 Lakhs unbilled revenue) under 
arbitration with Godhra Nagarpalika, with an Expected Credit Loss (ECL) provision of Rs. 77.43 Lakhs as per 
Ind AS 109. 

 
5. Total other current assets of Rs. 348.01 Lakhs include unbilled revenue of Rs. 297.82 Lakhs related to the 

above arbitration. 
 
6. The Parent is yet to transfer an unpaid dividend of Rs. 6.64 Lakhs relating to Financial Years 2010-2011 and 

2011-12 from the unpaid dividend account to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF).  
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Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters. 

 

Other Matter 

 

The consolidated financial results include loss of Rs. 2.62 lakhs of Subsidiary for the quarter ended 31st March, 2025, 

and for the year from 01-04-2024 to 31-03-2025, as considered in the consolidated financial results. In respect of 

joint venture, whose financial statements have been accounted for using the equity method in accordance with Ind 

AS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures. The results include share of profit of Rs. 0.80 lakhs from Joint 

Venture. The financial results of subsidiary and joint venture are reviewed by us and volume of the transactions are 

not material to the group. 

 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters. 
 
 

 

Key Audit Matters 

 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit 
of the IND AS Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 
provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

 

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report:  

 

Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit  
 

Revenue Recognition and Unbilled Receivables  

 

The Group derives significant revenue from maintenance 
and replacement of streetlights with LED and SCADA-
based switching points in Godhra Municipality on a ‘Pay 
from Savings’ basis. Revenue from energy savings, 
amounting to Rs. 193.14 Lakhs, is recognized as unbilled 
revenue due to delays in invoice submission caused by 
fund allocation limits at Godhra Municipality. This is 
currently under arbitration (claim of Rs. 703.72 Lakhs, 
including Rs. 297.82 Lakhs unbilled revenue). The 
recognition of unbilled revenue involves significant 
management judgment in assessing collectability and 
compliance with Ind AS 115. Additionally, consolidation 
requires elimination of intercompany transactions, which 
increases the complexity of revenue recognition.  

 

Our audit procedures included: 

 

- The revenue has been recognised in the books of 
accounts as "UNBILLED REVENUE" in respect of energy 
saved since the service has been rendered as per 
contract. Revenue was earned and accrued revenue is 
recorded as per accrual accounting as "UNBILLED 
REVENUE". 

 
- Evaluated the Group’s revenue recognition policies 
for compliance with the five-step model of Ind AS 115, 
including identification of performance obligations 
and transaction price allocation. 

 
- Tested the design and operating effectiveness of 
internal controls over revenue recognition, focusing 
on the timing, occurrence, and valuation of unbilled 
revenue, including controls over intercompany 
eliminations. 
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- Verified the audited energy savings reports and 
contract terms with Godhra Municipality to  
substantiate revenue recognition. 

 

- Assessed the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) provision of 
Rs. 77.43 Lakhs under Ind AS 109 by reviewing the 
arbitration status  and management’s  collectability 
estimates. 

 

- Reviewed the consolidation process to ensure proper 
elimination of intercompany transactions and 
compliance with Ind AS 110. 

 

- Ensured adequate disclosures in the Consolidated 
Financial Statements as per Ind AS 115 and Ind AS 110.  

 

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements 

 

The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 

(“the Act”) with respect to the preparation and presentation of these Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements that 

give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance(including the 

other comprehensive income), Consolidated cash flows and Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity of the 

Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting 

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Relevant Rules issued thereunder. This responsibility also 

includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding 

the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application 

of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for 

ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of 

the Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error. 

 

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 

 

The Parent’s Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 
 
 
 

 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole are 

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 

opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 

with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 

decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated Financial Statements. 
 

 
 

 



113  | Page                                                                                                                                                           ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 

 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. 

 

We also: 

 

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 

that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 

- Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit Procedures 
that is appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

 
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 

related disclosures made by management. 

 
- Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on 

 
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 

significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 

uncertainty exists; we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 

Consolidated Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions 

are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or 

conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Financial Statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation and compliance with Ind AS 110 for consolidation 
procedures. 

 

- Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Consolidated Financial Statements that, individually or in 

aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative 

factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to 
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

 

We communicate with those charged with governance of the parent and such other entities included in the 
Consolidated Financial Statements regarding the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the IND AS Standalone Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore 
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public   
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disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 

3. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that: 
 

i. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

 
ii. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 

appears from our examination of those books. 
 

iii. The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow 
Statement and the Statement of changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the 
books of account; 

 
iv. In our opinion, the aforesaid IND AS Consolidated Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting 

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Relevant Rules issued there under. 
 

v. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Parent as on 31st March, 
2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors of the Group Companies is 
disqualified as on 31st March, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the 
Act. 

 
vi. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Parent 

Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India and the operating effectiveness of such 

controls, please refer to our separate reports issued on the standalone financial statements of the 
respective entities. Our report on the consolidated financial statements does not include an opinion on 

the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls of the Group taken as a whole.  
vii. The provisions of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central 

 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, are applicable to the audit of 
standalone financial statements of each company covered under the Order. Accordingly, reporting under 
the said Order is not applicable to the consolidated financial statements of the Group. 

 
viii. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the 

requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 
 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
remuneration paid by the Parent to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of 
section 197 of the Act; 

 
ix. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us: 

 
vii. The Group has disclosed a claim of Rs. 703.72 Lakhs under arbitration with Godhra Nagarpalika, 

which does not have a material impact on its consolidated financial position as an Expected Credit 
Loss provision of Rs. 77.43 Lakhs has been made. 

 
viii. The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there 

were any material foreseeable losses. 
 

ix. The Parent is yet to transfer unpaid dividend of an amount aggregating to Rs. 6.64 lakhs relating to 
Financial Years 2010-11 and 2011-12 from unpaid dividend account to Investor Education and 
Protection Fund (IEPF).  
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x. (a) The Management of the Parent has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and 

belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or 

loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of 

funds) by the Group to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), 

with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, 

whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 

whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, 

security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries 
 

(b) The Management of the Parent has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 

funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Group from 

any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether 

recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Group shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in 

other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
 

Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of 
the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

 
(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, 
contain any material misstatement. 

 
xi. The Group has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year. 

 

xii. Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an accounting 

software for maintaining its books of account which has enabled feature of recording audit trail 

(edit log) facility. The same was not operational during the year for all relevant transactions 

recorded in the software. However, the Company has enabled the feature of recording audit trail 

post financial year and audit logs for the previous year are not available. Further, in absence of 

audit log we are unable to comment on any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. 
 
 
 
 

 

For NGST & Associates  
Chartered Accountants  
Firm Regn No. 139159W 
 
 
 

 

Bhupendra S Gandhi  
Partner 

 
 
 

 

Place: Mumbai  
Date: May 27, 2025 

 

Partner  
Membership No: 122296  
UDIN: 25122296BMHZWY7907  
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Consolidated Balance sheet as at 31st March 2025 (rupees in Lakhs) 
 

Particular 
   

Notes 
 As at As at 

    

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024        

III. Asset       
         

 5) Non-Current Asset     
         

  a)   Property, Plant and Equipment 2  145.17 155.51 
         

  b) Capital WIP   24.03 - 
         

  c) Financial Assets     
         

   v. Investments 3  9.80 4.00 
         

   vi. Trade Receivables   - - 
         

   vii. Loans   - - 
         

   viii. Other Financial Assets 4  11.05 8.00 
         

  d) Deferred Tax Asset 5  43.22 14.45 
         

  e) Other Non-Current Asset 6  309.57 338.14 
         

         
 6) Current Asset     
         

  a) Inventories 7  7.11 20.42 
         

  b) Financial Assets   - - 
         

   v. Investments     
         

   vi. Trade Receivables 8  114.49 95.47 
         

   vii. Cash and Cash Equivalents 9  43.14 4.07 
         

   viii. Bank Balance other than above 10  9.14 9.14 
         

  c) Current Tax Asset (Net)     
         

  d) Other Current Asset 11  348.01 226.98 
         

         
   Total Asset  1064.73 876.18 
      

         
IV. Equity and Liabilities     
         

 Equity       

 c) Equity  12  721.15 721.15 
         

 d) Other Equity  13  85.27 (47.03) 
         

         
 7) Non-Current Liabilities     
         

  d) Financial Liabilities     
         

   iii. Borrowings 14  75.23 - 
         

   iv. Trade Payables     
         

   ● Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small     

    enterprises     
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  ● Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro    

   enterprises and small enterprises    
      

 e) Provision    
       

 f) Deferred Tax Liabilities    
       

     

8) Current Liabilities    
       

 e) Financial Liabilities    
       

  ii. Trade Payable 15 6.05 14.85 
       

  ● Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small    

   enterprises    
       

  ● Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro    

   enterprises and small enterprises    
      

 f) Other Current Liabilities 16 49.16 53.99 
       

 g) Provisions 17 123.59 128.17 
       

 h) Current Tax Liabilities  4.28 5.05 
       

  Total Equity and Liabilities  1064.73 876.18 
       

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.  
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements. As per our report of even date 
For NGST & Associates,  
Chartered Accountants, Firm Regn. No. For EPIC ENERGY LIMITED  
139159W    

Bhupendra S Gandhi Partner Bharat Mehta Brian Dsouza Priya Joshi 
Membership No: 122296 Director Director Director 

UDIN: 25122296BMHZWY7907 DIN: 00271878 DIN: 02176486 DIN: 10590560 

Date: 27th May, 2025 Harshal Gunde   
 Director    

DIN: 10883967 
Place: Mumbai  

 
annexed 
 
 

 
Veena Sandipkumar  
Morsawala Gupta 
Director Company Secretary  
DIN: 01310075 

 
Date: 27th May, 2025  

Place: Mumbai 
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Statement of Consolidated Profit and Loss for the Year ended 31st March 2025 
 
       (rupees in Lakhs) 

 
Particular Notes 

 As at As at 
  

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024      

  Revenue from Operation 18  426.06  307.85 
     

        

  Other Income 19 0.49 0.68 
XIII. Total Income   426.55  308.53 
      

        

        

XIV. Expenses      
        

        
  a)   Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 20  109.12  158.91 
     

         
b) Changes in inventories of finished goods, work in progress and stock-in- 

   trade 21  13.31  2.87 
         

  c) Employee benefits expense 22  36.56  49.79 
      

         

  d) Finance cost 23  0.23  - 
      

         

  e)   Depreciation and amortisation expense 2  34.51  17.47 
      

         

  f) Other Expenses 24  132.48  47.14 
      

         

   Total Expenses   326.21  276.18 
       

         

XV. Profit/ (loss) before exceptional items and tax   100.34  32.35 
       

         

XVI. Exceptional Items   -  - 
       

         

VII. Profit/ (loss) before tax   100.34  32.35 
       

         

  d) Current Tax   4.28  5.05 
       

         

  e) Deferred Tax   (28.77)  (3.75) 
       

         

  f) MAT Credit Entitlement   4.28  5.05 
       

         

  g)   Add: Share of Loss From JV   0.80  - 
       

         

  h)   Share of loss Attributable to Non-Controlling Interest   0.63  - 
       

         

VIII. Profit/ (loss) for the period from continuing operations   130.54  36.10 
       

         

XIX. Profit/ (loss) from discontinued operations   -  - 
       

         

  Tax expense of discontinued operations   -  - 

 XX. Profit/ (loss) from discounting operations (after tax)      
         

XXI. Profit/ (loss) for the period   130.54  36.10 
       

         

XII. Other comprehensive income      
         

  (C) i)  Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss      
         

   ii)  Income tax related to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss      
         

  (D) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss      
         

   i)  Income tax related to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss      

   ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Statement of       
Profit & Loss  

  
 

- -
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XIII. Total Comprehensive Income for the period Comprising Profit (Loss) and Other     

  comprehensive Income for the period (IX + X)  130.54  36.10 
        

XIV. Earnings per equity share (for continuing operations)     
        

  c. Basic  1.81  0.50 
      

        

  d. Diluted  1.81  0.50 
      

        

 
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.  
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements. As per our report of even date annexed  

 
For NGST & Associates,  
Chartered Accountants, 
Firm Regn. No. 139159W 

 
Bhupendra S Gandhi  
Partner 
Membership No: 122296 
UDIN: 25122296BMHZWY7907 

 

Date: 27th May, 2025 
 

Place: Mumbai  

 

 
 

For EPIC ENERGY LIMITED    

Bharat Mehta Brian Dsouza Priya Joshi Veena Morsawala Sandipkumar Gupta 
Director Director Director Director Company Secretary 
DIN: 00271878 DIN: 02176486 DIN: 10590560 DIN: 01310075  

 

Harshal Gunde 

 

DIN: 10883967 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 

Director
Date: 27th May, 2025 

Place: Mumbai 
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2025 (rupees in 
 

Lakhs)  

Particular 
 As at As at 
 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024   

       
D.  Cash Flow from Operating Activities       

       

       
Net Profit before Tax 100.34  32.35 

Adjustments for:       

Depreciation and Amortisation expense 34.51  17.47 

Interest Income on Fixed Deposit (0.17)  (0.02) 

Operating Profit before working capital changes 134.68  49.80 

Adjustments for:       

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories 13.31  2.87 

(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables (19.02)  (30.11) 

(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets and Loans and Advances (121.03)  (83.26) 

(Increase)/Decrease in Other financial assets (3.05)  (1.61) 

(Increase)/Decrease in Current financial assets -  - 

(Increase)/Decrease in Other non-current assets 28.57 76.52 

Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables (8.80)  1.04 

Increase/(Decrease) in Current Tax Liabilities 0.77  5.05 

Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities (4.83)  (11.53) 

Operating Profit before working capital changes 20.60  8.77 

Income Tax Paid (4.58)  - 

      

Net Cash from Operating Activities 16.02  8.77 

       

Cash Flow from Investing Activities       

E.       
       

(Additions)/Dilution of Fixed Assets 28.85  (1.08) 

(Additions)/Dilution of Investments (5.80)  (4.00) 

Increase in Term Deposits -  (2.50) 

Net Cash used in investing activities 23.05  (7.58) 

       

Cash Flow from Financing Activities       

F.       
       

Fresh Equity Capital Issued  -  - 
   

       

Premium on Fresh Equity issued -  - 

Movement in Working Capital Borrowing -  - 

Long term borrowings -  - 

Repayment of long-term borrowings -  - 

Interest and other Financial Charges -  - 

      

Cash from Financing activities -  - 

      

      

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ( A+B+C) 39.07   1.19  

      

Cash and Cash equivalents (Opening Balance) 4.07   2.88  

Cash and Cash equivalents (Closing Balance) 43.14   4.07     
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Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents 

   

Cash and Cheques on hand 17.41 3.74 

Bank Balances 25.73 0.33 

Cash and Cash Equivalents as above 43.14 4.07 

   

Cash and Cash Equivalents as per Note No.9 15.22 4.07 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.    
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements.  
As per our report of even date annexed  

 
 

For NGST & Associates,  
Chartered Accountants,  
Firm Regn. No. 139159W 

 
 

 

Bhupendra S Gandhi  
Partner 
Membership No: 122296  
UDIN: 25122296BMHZWY7907 

 

 

Date: 27th May, 2025  
Place: Mumbai  

 
 

 

For EPIC ENERGY LIMITED 
 
 
 

 

Bharat 
Brian Dsouza Priya Joshi Veena 

 

Mehta Sandipkumar Gupta 
Director Director Morsawala 

Director Company Secretary 
DIN: DIN: Director 

DIN:  

02176486 10590560 DIN: 01310075  

00271878  

    

 

Harshal Gunde 

 

DIN: 10883967
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Date: 27th May, 2025 
Place: Mumbai 

Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 
 

C. Equity Share Capital  
iii. Current Reporting Period 

 
 
 
 
 
(rupees in Lakhs)   

 Balance as at Restated balance as at Changes in equity share capital Balance as at 

 April 1, 2024 April 1, 2024 during the current year March 31, 2025 
     

 721.15 721.15 - 721.15 
     

iv. Previous reporting period  (rupees in Lakhs) 
     

 Balance as at Restated balance as at Changes in equity share capital Balance as at 

 April 1, 2023 April 1, 2023 during the current year March 31, 2024 
     

 721.15 721.15 - 721.15 
     

 

D. Other Equity             

iii. Current Reporting Period       (rupees in Lakhs)   
              

    Reserve and Surplus         
              

 Particular  General  Securities Retained   Non-  Total  
    Premium   Controlling    

   Reserve  Earnings      

    
Reserve 

  
Interest 

   

           

Balance as at April 1, 2024  80.34  281.00 (408.37)   -   (47.03)  
Changes in accounting policy or prior period  

- 
 

- - 
  

- 
  

- 
 

errors        

            

Restated balance at the beginning of the  
- 

 
- 130.54 

  
- 

  
130.54 

 

current reporting period 
       

            

Total Comprehensive Income for the period  80.34  281.00 (277.83)   -   83.51  

Dividends  -  - -   -   -  
Transfer to retained earnings  -  - -   -   -  

Any other change (to be specified)  -  - -   -   -  

Minority Interest  -  - -   1.77   1.77  

Balance as at March 31, 2025  80.34  281.00 (277.83)   1.77   85.27  
 

iv. Previous Reporting Period     (rupees in Lakhs) 
           

     Reserve and Surplus      
 

Particular 
       

Total 
 

  General Securities Retained   
      

   Reserve Premium Reserve Earnings    

Balance as at April 1, 2023  80.34  281.00 (444.47)   (83.13)  

Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors  -  - -   -  

Restated balance at the beginning of the current  
- 

 
- (36.10) 

  
(36.10) 

 

reporting period 
     

         

Total Comprehensive Income for the period  80.34  281.00 (408.37)   (47.03)  

Dividends  -  - -   -  

Transfer to retained earnings  -  - -   -  

Any other change (to be specified)  -  - -   -  

Balance as at March 31, 2024  80.34  281.00 (408.37)   (47.03)   
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 
31, 2025 
 

Note 1: Significant Accounting Policies 

 

4. Corporate Information 
 
The Company provides Sustainable Energy Solutions, including Rooftop Solar Power Plants, Solar EPC, Energy Audits, 
EV Charging infrastructure, and LED retrofitting, with end-to-end capabilities from design to maintenance. The 
Financial Statements were approved and adopted by Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on 
27th May 2025. 

 

The Consolidated Financial Statements relate to Group, which comprises the company and its interest in 
subsidiaries or Joint Ventures companies/ entities. The details of which is given below: 

 

Sr. Name of Subsidiary and Joint venture Companies/ entities % of Shareholding in Subsidiary 
No  Companies 

1 Epic EV Chargers Private Limited (Subsidiary) 76% 

2 Swachchha Urja Nirman LLP (JV) 60% 
 

 

5. Significant Accounting Policies 

 

5.1. Statement of Compliance 
 

These Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (referred 
to as “Ind AS”) as prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, as amended from time to time. The Board of Directors approved the Financial 
Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025 and authorised for issue on 27th May, 2025. 

 

5.2. Basis of Preparation and Presentation 
 

The Financial Statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and in accordance with the historical cost 

convention, unless otherwise stated. Historical cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair 

value of the consideration given to acquire assets at the time of their acquisition or the amount of proceeds 

received in exchange for the obligation, or at the amounts of cash or cash equivalents expected to be paid to 

satisfy the liability in the normal course of business. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an 

asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement 

date. 

 

These Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional 
currency. All amounts are rounded to nearest Lakh, unless otherwise indicated. 

 

5.3. Critical accounting estimates and judgments 
 

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, the management of the Company are required to 

make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are 

not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical 

experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these 
estimates.  
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The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 

accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only 

that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future 

periods. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgments is included in relevant notes 

together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the Financial 

Statements. 

 

The areas involving critical estimates or judgments are: 

 

—   Estimation of useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment 
 

—   Estimation of employee benefit obligations Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated. 
 

— Estimations used for determination of tax expenses and tax balances (including Minimum Alternate 

Tax credit) 
 

—   Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and 
 

other factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the 

Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances 

 

5.4. Property, Plant and Equipment 
 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost is inclusive of freight, 

duties, levies and any directly attributable cost of bringing the assets to their present working condition. When 

significant parts of property, plant and equipments are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company 

derecognises the replaced part, and recognises the new part with its own associated useful life and it is 

depreciated accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying 

amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognisation criteria is satisfied. All other repair 

and maintenance costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. The present value of the 

expected cost for the decommissioning of the asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset 

if the recognition criteria for a provision are met. Capital wok-in-progress includes cost of property, plant and 

equipments under installation / development as at the balance sheet date. Property, plant and equipments 

are eliminated from financial statement, either on disposal or when retired from financial statement, either on 

disposal or retired from active use. Losses arising in the case of retirement of property, plant and equipments 

and gains or losses arising from disposal of property, plant and equipments are recognised in the statement of 

profit and loss in the year of occurrence. The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation 

are reviewed at each financial year and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 
 

Depreciation 
 

Depreciation on fixed assets has been provided on the basis and manner provided in Schedule II to the 
Companies Act 2013. In respect of Energy Saving Equipments offered on BOOT basis, depreciation is written 
off over BOOT period. Property, plant and equipments which are added/disposed off during the year, 
depreciation is provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the month of addition/ deletion. 

 

Derecognition 
 

An item of Property, Plant and Equipments is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic 
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or 
retirement of an item of Property, Plant and Equipments is determined as the difference between the sales 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.  
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5.5. Impairment 
 

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If 

any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the company estimates the 

asset’s recoverable amount. An assets recoverable amount is the higher of an assets or cash –generating unit’s 

(CGU) net selling price and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, 

unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or 

groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is 

considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated 

future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current 

market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling 

price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, 

an appropriate valuation model is used. An assessment is made at each reporting date whether there is any 

indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. 

 

5.6. Inventories 
 
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined on moving 
weighted average basis. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated 

costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale. Cost of inventory includes cost of purchase and other 

costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Unserviceable/damaged stores 
and spares are identified and written down based on technical evaluation. 

 

5.7. Provisions 
 
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past 

event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made 

of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration 

required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and 

uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the 

present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value 

of money is material). 

 

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as provisions with charge to 
Statement of Profit and Loss. An onerous contract is considered to exist where the Company has a contract under 
which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits 
expected to be received from the contract. 

 

Restructuring provisions are recognised only when the Company has a constructive obligation, which is when: (i) a 
detailed formal plan identifies the business or part of the business concerned, the location and number of 
employees affected, a detailed estimate of the associated costs, and the timeline; and (ii) the employees affected 
have been notified of the plan’s main features. 

 

5.8. Contingent Liabilities 
 
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the 

occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a 

present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to 

settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot 

be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but 

discloses its existence in the Financial Statements.  
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5.9. Contingent assets 
 
Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed in the Financial Statements when an inflow of economic 
benefits is probable. 

 

5.10. Cash and cash equivalents 
 
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an 
original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash and 
cash equivalents includes balance with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage. 

 

5.11. Revenue Recognition 

 

Revenue is the gross inflow of cash, receivables or other consideration arising in the course of the ordinary 
activities of an enterprise from the sale of goods, from the rendering of services, and from the use by others of 
enterprise resources yielding interest, royalties and dividends. Revenues from sale of goods. 

 

iv. Sale of Goods 
 

Revenue from the sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities is measured at the value of the 

consideration received or receivable, net of returns, trade discounts, rate differences and volume rebates. 

Revenue is recognized on the basis of audited report on energy saved on replaced Street lights, recovery of 

the consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible return of goods can be estimated reliably, 

there is no continuing effective control over the goods and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. 

The timing of transfer of control normally happens upon shipment. However, in case of consignment sales to 

agents’ revenues are recognized when the materials are sold to ultimate customers. 

 
Further, revenues are recognized at gross value of consideration of goods & processing of goods excluding 
Goods and Service Tax (GST). 

 
Revenue from sale of products is not recognized on the grounds of prudence, until realized in respect of 
delayed payments as recovery of amounts are not certain. 

 
v. Sale of Services 

 
Revenue from the service contract is recognized when the related services are performed and revenue from 

the services at the end of the reporting period is recognized based on stage of completion method. When 

there is uncertainty as to the ultimate collection of the revenue, recognition is postponed until such 

uncertainty is resolved. Revenues from service contracts are measured based on the services performed to 

date as a percentage of total services to be performed. In case where the services are performed by an 

indeterminate number of acts over a specified period of time, revenue is recognized on a straight-line basis 

over the specified period. After the initial recognition, in respect of uncollectible amount, provisions are made 

in the period in which amount is identified as uncollectible. 

 
vi. Interest and Dividend Income 

 
Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder's right to receive payment has been 
established. 

 
Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to 

the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, 

by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that 

exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's 

net carrying amount on initial recognition.  
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5.12. Other Employee Benefits 
 

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified as Short-
term employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, performance incentives and Compensated 
absences which are expected to occur in next twelve months. 

 

5.13. Income Tax 
 

c) Current income tax 
 

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid 

to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted 

or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit 

or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax 

items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. 

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which 

applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate. 

 
d) Deferred tax 

 
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets 

and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferred tax 

liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except when it is probable that the temporary 

differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible 

temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets 

are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the 

deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be 

utilized. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the 

extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the 

deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and 

are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred 

tax asset to be recovered. 

 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year the 
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

 
Deferred tax, in so far as it relates to items disclosed under other comprehensive income or equity, are 
disclosed separately under other comprehensive income or equity, as applicable. 

 
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current 
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same 
taxation authority. 

 

5.14. Earnings per share 
 

Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the 

Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings 

per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company by 

the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per equity share and 

also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive 

potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the 

equity shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average market value of the outstanding equity 

shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued   
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at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented. The 
number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods 
presented for any share splits and bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior to the approval of 
the Standalone Financial Statements by the Board of Directors. 

 

6. Other Significant Accounting Policies 

 

6.1. Foreign currency 

 

The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupee (₹). 

 

In the Financial Statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the functional currency are 

translated into the functional currency at the exchange rates ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary 

assets and liabilities denominated in other currencies are translated into the functional currency at exchange 

rates prevailing on the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in other currencies 

and measured at historical cost or fair value are translated at the exchange rates prevailing on the dates on 

which such values were determined. All exchange differences are included in the statement of profit and loss 

except any exchange differences on monetary items designated as an effective hedging instrument of the 

currency risk of designated forecasted sales or purchases, which are recognized in the other comprehensive 

income. 
 

 

6.2. Current versus non-current classification 

 

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current classification.  
An asset is treated as current when it is:  
- expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,  
- held primarily for the purpose of trading,  
- expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

 
- cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at 

least twelve months after the reporting period. 

 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

 

A liability is current when:  
- it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,  
- it is held primarily for the purpose of trading,  
- it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

 
- there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after 

the reporting period. 

 

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.  
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

 

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash 
and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.  
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6.3. Onerous contracts 

 

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as provisions. An onerous 
contract is considered to exist where the Company has a contract under which the unavoidable costs of 
meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received from the 
contract. 

 

6.4. Financial Instruments 

 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or 
equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. 

 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly 

attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from 

the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction 
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities measured at fair value 

through profit or loss are recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss. 

 

6.5. Financial Asset 

 

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value, plus in case of financial assets not recorded at fair value 
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset is 
considered. However, trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at 
transaction price. 

 

f) Financial assets at amortised cost 

 

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method if 
these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is to hold these assets in order to 
collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates 
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

 
g) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

 

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held 
within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and 
selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to 
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

 

On initial recognition, the Company makes an irrevocable election on an instrument-by-instrument basis 

to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income pertaining to investments 

in equity instruments, other than equity investment which are held for trading. Subsequently, they are 

measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other 

comprehensive income and accumulated in the 'Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive 

Income'. The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the investments.  
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h) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 

 
Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company irrevocably elects on 
initial recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income for 

investments in equity instruments which are not held for trading. Other financial assets are measured at 

fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other 
comprehensive income. 

 
i) Derecognition 

 
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar 
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:  

—   the right to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 
 

— the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an 
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-

through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and 

rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the 
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

 

When the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-

through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of 

ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the 

asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to 

the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an 

associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects 

the rights and obligations that the Company has retained. 

 

j) Impairment of financial assets 
 

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is 

impaired. Ind AS 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The Company 

recognises lifetime expected losses for all contract assets and / or all trade receivables that do not constitute a 

financing transaction. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to 

the 12 month expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the life time expected credit losses if the credit 

risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition. 

 

6.6. Financial liabilities and equity instruments 
 

e) Classification as debt or equity 

 

Debt and equity instruments issued by a Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity 
in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial 
liability and an equity instrument. 

 
 
 

f) Equity Instruments 
 

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after 
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the 
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.  
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g) Financial liabilities 
 

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or 

FVTPL. Gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised 
as well as through the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by 

taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of 

the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and 
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as FVTPL. Financial liabilities are classified as held 

for trading if these are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Financial liabilities at 

FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 

 
h) Derecognition 

 
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or 

expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 

different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or 

modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The 

difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

 

6.7. Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities 

 

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial 

recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial 

liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change 

in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be 

infrequent. The Company’s senior management determines change in the business model as a result of 

external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s operations. Such changes are evident to 

external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to 

perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies 

the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next 

reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously 

recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest. 
 

 

6.8. Cash Flow Statement 

 

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, where by profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of 
transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or 
payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows 
from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated. 

 

6.9. Operating Cycle 

 

Considering the nature of business activities, the operating cycle has been assumed to have a duration of 12 
months. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the  
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Company’s operating cycle and other criteria set out in Ind AS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ and 
Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
 
 

6.10. Maintenance of Books of Accounts under Section 128 of the Companies Act, 2013 

 

The Company has defined process to take daily back-up of books of account maintained electronically and 
complied with the provisions of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended). However, the Company 
as a policy, has maintained logs of the daily back-up of such books of account only for 90 days and hence audit 
trail in relation to daily back up taken was not available for full year. 

 

6.11. Significant Events after the Reporting Period 

 

There were no significant adjusting events that occurred subsequent to the reporting period other than the 
events disclosed in the relevant notes. 

 
 
 
 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 
31, 2025 
 

Note 2: The changes in the carrying value of property, plant and equipment are as follows 
 
                (rupees in Lakhs) 
                    

        
Furniture 

      Other     

Property, Plant and  Energy Saving      Office  Plant &   Intangible     

   Computers  and       Total  

Equipment  Equipment     Equipment  Machinery   Assets-    

     Fixture         

              Software     

                   

Cost                    

As At March 31, 2023  2,202.80   6.48 31.79 12.11 -  -   2,253.18  

Additions  -   - - 1.08 -  -   1.08  

Disposals     - - - -  -   -  

As At March 31, 2024  2,202.80   6.48 31.79 13.19 -  -   2,254.26  

Additions  -   0.69 - 0.31 22.18  0.68   23.86  

Disposals  -   - - - -  -   -  

As At March 31, 2025  2,202.80   7.17 31.79 13.50 22.18  0.68   2,278.12  

                    

Depreciation                    

As At March 31, 2023  2,037.37   6.37 26.16 11.38 -  -   2,081.28  

Additions  16.46   0.08 0.83 0.10 -  -   17.47  

Disposals  -   - - - -  -   -  

As At March 31, 2024  2,053.83   6.45 26.99 11.48 -  -   2,098.75  

Additions  32.91   0.10 0.83 0.26 0.19  0.22   34.51  

Disposals  -   - -          -  

As At March 31, 2025  2,086.74   6.55 27.82 11.74 0.19  0.22   2,133.26  

                    
 

Net Block  
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As At March 31, 2025 116.06 0.62 3.97 1.76 21.99 0.46 144.86 

As At March 31, 2024 148.97 0.03 4.80 1.71 - - 155.51 
        

 

Note 3: Investments 
 
    (rupees in Lakhs) 

Particular 
 As at  As at  
 

31 March, 2025 
 

31 March, 2024    

Non- Current Investments      

Investment in Limited Liability Partnership (LLP)      

Swachchha Urja Nirman LLP  6.00  4.00  

      

Investment in Private Limited Company (Pvt. Ltd)      

Epic EV Chargers Private Limited  7.60  -  

Epic Renewable Energy Turnkey Projects Private Limited  1.00  -  

Epic Vighnaharta Renewable Energy Private Limited  0.01  -  

Epic Renewable Projects Private Limited  1.00  -  

Solapur Green Park Private Limited  1.00  -  

      

Investment in Subsidiaries (Eliminated on consolidation)      

Epic EV Chargers Private Limited  (7.60)  -  

Share or Loss From JV  0.80  -  

Total non-current Investments  9.80  4  

Note 4: Other Financial Assets      

    (rupees in Lakhs) 

Particular 
 As at  As at  
 

31 March, 2025 
 

31 March, 2024    

Non- Current      

Security Deposits  9.50  8.00  

Retention Money Receivable  1.55  -  

Total non-current other financial assets  11.05  8.00  

Note 5: Deferred Tax Asset      
    (rupees in Lakhs) 
     

Particular 
 As at  As at 
 

31 March, 2025 
 

31 March, 2024    

Opening DTA  14.45  10.70  

Credit to P & L  28.77  3.75  

Closing DTA  43.22  14.45  

Total  43.22  14.45  
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Note 6: Other Non-Current Assets  
    (rupees in Lakhs) 
      

Particular 
 As at  As at 
 

31 March, 2025 
 

31 March, 2024    

Non-Current      
Advances other than capital advances      

      

(a) advances against supply of goods and services  303.46  333.07  
    

(b) Accrued Interest on Deposits with Bank  0.19  0.02  
    

(c) MAT Credit Entitlement  
5.92 

 
5.05 

 
    

Total  309.57  338.14  
      

 

Note 7: Inventories  
    (rupees in Lakhs) 
      

Particular 
 As at  As at 
 

31 March, 2025 
 

31 March, 2024    

Finished Goods  6.91  20.21  

Store & Spares  0.20  0.21  

Total  7.11  20.42  
      

 

Note 8: Trade Receivables  
    (rupees in Lakhs) 
      

Particular 
 As at  As at 
 

31 March, 2025 
 

31 March, 2024    

Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured  114.49  95.47  

      

Total  114.49  95.47  
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Trade receivables ageing schedule for the year ended as on March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024: 

 

 As at 31st March, 2025     (rupees in Lakhs)  
     

   Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment  
 

Particular 
      

 Less than 6 6 months 1 year to 2 years to More than  
   Total    months to 1 year 2 years 3 years 3 years     
        

         
vii. Undisputed Trade receivables —       

  considered good 39.18 4.42 70.89 - - 114.49  
 

viii. Undisputed Trade Receivables — 
which have significant increase 
in credit risk 

 
ix. Undisputed Trade Receivables 

— credit impaired 
 

x. Disputed Trade Receivables 
— considered good 

 
xi. Disputed Trade Receivables — 

which have significant increase 
in credit risk 

 
xii. Disputed Trade Receivables 

— credit impaired  
 

 Total 39.18 4.42 70.89 - - 114.49 
       

 As at 31st March, 2024     (rupees in Lakhs) 
     

   Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment  
 

Particular 
      

 Less than 6 6 months 1 year to 2 years to More than  
   Total    months to 1 year 2 years 3 years 3 years     
        

         
vii. Undisputed Trade receivables —       

  considered good 50.84 5.42 - 3.75 35.46 95.47  
 

viii. Undisputed Trade Receivables — 
which have significant increase 
in credit risk 

 
ix. Undisputed Trade Receivables 

— credit impaired 
 

x. Disputed Trade Receivables 
— considered good 

 
xi. Disputed Trade Receivables — 

which have significant increase 
in credit risk  
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xii. Disputed Trade Receivables —       

  credit impaired       
        

 Total 50.84 5.42 - 3.75 35.46 95.47 
         

 

Note 9: Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
    (rupees in Lakhs) 
      

Particular 
 As at  As at 
 

31 March, 2025 
 

31 March, 2024    

      

Balances with Banks (of the nature of cash and cash equivalents)  25.73  0.33  

Cash on hand  17.41  3.74  

Total  43.14  4.07  
      

 

 

Note 10: Other Bank Balances 
 
    (rupees in Lakhs) 
      

Particular 
 As at  As at 
 

31 March, 2025 
 

31 March, 2024    

Unpaid Dividend  6.64  6.64  

Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity  2.50  2.50  

Total  9.14  9.14  
      

 

Note 11: Other Current assets 
 
    (rupees in Lakhs) 
      

Particular 
 As at  As at 
 

31 March, 2025 
 

31 March, 2024    

Current Assets      

a) Advance to suppliers  1.97  18.41  

b) Tax deducted at source  13.49  7.17  
     

     

c) Advance-Others  27.96  7.39  
     

     

d) Unbilled Revenue  297.82  188.63  
      

e) Prepaid Expenses  3.23  1.13  
      

f) Project W-I-P  -  4.25  
      

g) Balance with Revenue Authorities 
 3.54  -  
     

Total  348.01  226.98  
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Note 12: Equity Share Capital  
    (rupees in Lakhs) 
      

Particular 
 As at  As at 
 

31 March, 2025 
 

31 March, 2024    

Authorized      
1,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each ((Previous year  

1,500.00 
 

1,200.00 
 

1,20,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each)    

     

      
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up      

      

72,11,500 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each  721.15  721.15  
      

 

Terms / rights attached to equity shares 

 

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ` 10/- per share. Each shareholder is 
eligible for one Vote per Share. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the 
remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion of their 
shareholding. 

 

Details of shareholding of promoters as at 31st March 2025 is as follows:  

 

Promoter name No. of shares % of Total Shares 
% Change during 

the year    
    

Mrs Veena Nikhil Morsawala 8,40,100 11.65 - 
 

    

Mr.  Nikhil Champaklal Morsawala 8, 37,965 11.62 - 
 

    

 

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% Equity Shares in the Company:  

 

Promoter name No. of shares % of Total Shares 
% Change during 

the year     
     

Mrs Veena Nikhil Morsawala 8,40,100 11.65 - 
 

     

Mr. Nikhil Champaklal Morsawala 8,37,965 11.62 - 
 

     

Mr. Behram Mehta 10,00,000 13.87 - 
     

Mr. Chandrashekhar Lad 6,93,188 9.61 0.01 
     

 

The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding and the amount of share capital as at March 31, 2025 and  
March 31, 2024 is set out below:  

 

Promoter name 
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 

    

No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount  
     

As at the beginning of the period 72,11,500 721.15 7211500 721.15 
    

     

As at the end of the period 72,11,500 721.15 7211500 721.15 
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Note 13: Other Equity  
     (rupees in Lakhs) 
       

Particular 
 As at  As at 
 

31 March, 2025 
 

31 March, 2024     

d) Securities Premium  281.00  281.00  
     

       

e) General Reserve      
       

 Opening balance  80.34  80.34  
       

 Add : Transfer during the year      
 Closing Balance  80.34  80.34  
       

f)  Profit and Loss/ Retained Earnings      
       

 Opening balance  (408.37)  (444.47)  
       

 Add : Transfer during the year  130.54  36.10  
       

 Closing Balance  (277.83)  (408.37)  
      

(g) Minority Interest  1.77  -  
       

 Total  85.27  (47.03)  
       

 
 
 

Note 14: Non-Current financial Liability 
 
    (rupees in Lakhs) 
      

Particular 
 As at  As at 
 

31 March, 2025 
 

31 March, 2024    

Other Financial Liabilities  75.23  -  

Total  75.23  -  
      

 
 

 

Note 15: Trade Payables 
 
    (rupees in Lakhs) 

Particular 
 As at  As at  
 

31 March, 2025 
 

31 March, 2024    

Outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and  
6.05 

 
14.85 

 

small enterprises    

     

Total  6.05  14.85  
      

 

Trade receivables ageing schedule for the year ended as on March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024:  
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As at 31st March, 2025 (rupees in Lakhs)   
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment   

Particular  
 

 

Undisputed Trade receivables — considered 
good 

 
 

Less than 1 1 year to 2 years to More than 3 
Total 

year 2 years 3 years years  

     

- - - - -   
vii. MSME - - - - -  

    

         

viii. Others 6.05 - - - 6.05  
         

 ix. Disputed dues-MSME - - - - -  
    

         

 x. Disputed dues - Others - - - - -  
    

         

 xi. (iii) Disputed dues-MSME - - - - -  
    

         

xii. (iv)Disputed dues - Others - - - - -  
    

        

 Total 6.05 - - - 6.05  
        

 As at 31st March, 20234    (rupees in Lakhs)   
     

   Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment    

Particular  
 

 

Undisputed Trade receivables — considered 
good 

 
 

Less than 1 1 year to 2 years to More than 3 
Total 

year 2 years 3 years years  
     

- - - - -   
vii. MSME - - - - - 

   

        

viii. Others 14.85 - - - 14.85 
        

 ix. Disputed dues-MSME - - - - - 
   

        

 x. Disputed dues - Others - - - - - 
   

        

 xi. (iii) Disputed dues-MSME - - - - - 
   

        

xii. (iv)Disputed dues - Others - - - - - 
   

       

 Total 14.85 - - - 14.85 
        

 

 

Note 16: Other Current liabilities  
    (rupees in Lakhs) 
      

Particular 
 As at  As at 
 

31 March, 2025 
 

31 March, 2024    

Current Liabilities      
Statutory dues  6.54  3.70  

      

Salary Payable  20.54  21.07  
      

Unclaimed Dividend  6.64  6.64  
      

Other payables  15.44  19.96  
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Advance from Customers - 2.62 
   

Total 49.16 53.99 
   

 

Note 17: Provisions 
 
    (rupees in Lakhs) 
      

Particular 
 As at  As at 
 

31 March, 2025 
 

31 March, 2024    

Short term provisions      

Tax payable  123.59  128.17  

Total non-current other financial assets  123.59  128.17  
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 
31, 2025 
 

Note 18: Revenue from operations 
 
    (rupees in Lakhs) 
      

Particular 
 As at  As at 
 

31 March, 2025 
 

31 March, 2024    

Energy Solution Division      

Income from Energy Saving  193.14  64.93  

Income from Energy Maintenance  -  48.49  

Income from Renewable Energy Solutions  232.92  194.43  

Total  426.06  307.85  
      

 

Note 19: Other Income 
 
    (rupees in Lakhs) 
      

Particular 
 As at  As at 
 

31 March, 2025 
 

31 March, 2024    

Income not payable written back  0.08  0.66  

Interest Income on Fixed Deposit  0.18  0.02  

Excess Provision written Back  0.23  -  

Total  0.49  0.68  
      

 

Note 20: Purchases of Stock-in-Trade  
    (rupees in Lakhs) 
      

Particular 
 As at  As at 
 

31 March, 2025 
 

31 March, 2024    

Material Purchased  83.74  143.79  

Maintenance Cost  25.38  15.12  

Total  109.12  158.91  
      

 

Note 21: Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade 
 
    (rupees in Lakhs) 

Particular 
 As at  As at  
 

31 March, 2025 
 

31 March, 2024    

Opening Stock  20.42  23.29  

Less: Closing Stock  7.11  20.42  

Total  13.31  2.87  
      

*Cost of Materials Consumed is arrived on derived consumption of Inventories  
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Note 22: Employee benefits expense 
 
    (rupees in Lakhs) 
      

Particular 
 As at  As at 
 

31 March, 2025 
 

31 March, 2024    

a) Salaries, wages and Bonus      

Contribution to Provident Fund  1.60  0.11  

Employee Overtime Expenses  0.40  0.33  

Salaries Expense including Outsourcing  31.62  43.62  

b) Staff Welfare Expenses      

Staff Welfare  2.12  5.73  

Total  35.74  49.79  
      

 

Note 23: Finance Charges  
    (rupees in Lakhs) 
      

Particular 
 As at  As at 
 

31 March, 2025 
 

31 March, 2024    

Finance Charges  0.23  -  

Total  0.23  -  

Note 22: Other Expenses      

    (rupees in Lakhs) 
     

Particular 
 As at  As at 
 

31 March, 2025 
 

31 March, 2024    

a) Communication Expenses  4.13  0.73  
      

b) Sales Promotion Expenses  2.96  1.70  
      

c) Repair & Maintenance  0.53  0.60  
      

d) Rent, Rates & Taxes  8.54  5.31  
      

e) Travelling Expenses  7.51  4.42  
      

f) Electricity Charges  1.11  2.08  
      

g) Auditor Fees  2.05  1.80  
      

h) Other Expenses      
      

Legal & Professional Fees  10.23  10.39  
      

Project Expected Credit Loss  77.43  -  
      

Miscellaneous Expenses  0.09  -  
      

Printing & Stationery  1.51  0.40  
      

Annual Custodian Fees  0.48  0.45  
      

Annual Listing Fees  3.25  3.25  
      

Cleaning Charges  0.78  0.67  
      

Commission Charges  -  0.98  
      

Courier Charges  0.20  0.03  
      

Director Sitting Fees  1.39  0.30  
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Diwali Expenses 1.06 0.25 
   

Hospital Expenses - 0.73 
   

Insurance Charges - 0.10 
   

Interest on GST/ TDS 0.27 0.12 
   

Interest & Late Fees-Other 0.03 0.01 
   

Late Fee-GST/TDS 0.26 0.26 
   

Certification Charges 0.30 - 
   

License Fee-Software Renewal 0.55 0.07 
   

Misc Exps Write Off - 2.13 
   

Bank Charges 0.25 0.23 
   

Office Expenses 0.21 1.03 
   

Postage & Stamp Duty 0.03 0.01 
   

Repair & Maintenance - 0.22 
   

R.O.C Charges 5.43 0.17 
   

Round Off - (0.02) 
   

Registrar and Share Transfer Agents Charges 0.80 1.68 
   

Project Exps - 6.69 
   

Technical Charges - 0.35 
   

Training Expenses 0.81 - 
   

Prior Period Expenses 0.17 - 
   

Project Expenses written off 0.12 - 
   

Total 132.48 47.14 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 
31, 2025 
 

Note 23: Earnings per share (EPS) 
 
     (rupees in Lakhs) 
      

Particular *** 
 As at  As at 
 

31 March, 2025 
 

31 March, 2024     

Net Profit as per Statement of Profit and Loss ₹ in lakh  130.54  36.10 
      

Weighted average number of equity shares in 
Nos. 

 72,11,500  72,11,500 
calculating basic EPS     

     

Nominal value of each share ₹  10  10 
      

Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share ₹  1.81  0.50 
      

 

Note 24: Dividend 

 

Board of directors has not recommended any dividend for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025. 

 

Note 25: Gratuity Plan 
 

The Company does not have a defined benefit gratuity plan for its employees. 

 

Note 26: 

 

As per information and records available with the Company, there are no reportable amounts of dues on account of 
principal and interest or any such payments during the year as required by Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006, in respect of Micro Enterprises and small Enterprises as defined in the Act. As a result, no 
disclosure in this respect is made in the Financial Statements. 

 

Note 27: Segment Information 

 

The Company’s business activity falls within two reportable segments VIZ. Power conditioners & savers and 

Renewable Energy and energy saving appliances. Hence, additional disclosures other than those already made in the 

Financial Statements are required under IND AS “Operating Segments”. Segments have been identified and reported 

taking into account the nature of products and services, the differing risks and returns and the internal business 

reporting systems. The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policy of 

the company with following additional policies for segment reporting. Revenue and expenses have been identified to 

a segment on the basis of relationship to operating activities of the segment. Revenue and expenses which relate to 

the enterprise as a whole and are not allocable to a segment on a reasonable basis have been disclosed as 

“Unallocable”. 

 

Segment assets and segment liabilities represent assets and liabilities in respective segments. Investments, tax 
related assets and other assets and liabilities that cannot be allocated to a segment on reasonable basis have been 
disclosed as “Unallocable”.  
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     (Rupees in Lakhs) 

Particular 
 As at  As at  
 

31 March, 2025 
 

31 March, 2024     

       

Segment Revenue      
       

Gross Income from Operations      
       

4. Power Saving Solutions  193.14  119.66  
       

5. Renewable Energy Solutions  232.92  188.19  
       

6. Unallocated  0.49  0.68  
       

 Total  426.55  308.53  
       

       
Segment Result before Tax and Interest      

       

4. Power Saving Solutions  45.19  1.64  
       

5. Renewable Energy Solutions  54.66  30.03  
       

6. Unallocated  0.49  0.68  
       

 Total  100.34  32.35  
       

       
Segment Capital Employed      

       

4. Power Saving Solutions  493.78  448.30  
       

5. Renewable Energy Solutions  257.19  170.86  
       

6. Unallocated  55.45  54.96  
       

 Total  806.42  674.12  
       

 

 

Note 28: Capital Commitment and Contingent Liabilities 
 

    (rupees in Lakhs) 
      

Particular 
 As at  As at 
 

31 March, 2025 
 

31 March, 2024    

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on  
- 

 
- 

 
capital contract and not provided for (Net of Advances)    

     

     

Contingent Liabilities  -  -  
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Note 29: Related Party Disclosures 

 

1)  Names of related parties  

 

Particular 
As at 

31 March, 2025   
    

 Mr. Bharat Mehta — Director 
    

 Mr. Brian Dsouza — Director 
    

 Ms. Priya Joshi — Director 
    

 Mrs Veena Morsawala — Director 
    

 Mr. Harshal Gunde — Director  
 

 Mr. Nikhil Morsawala – Group  

 Chief Financial Officer  

 Mr Bhalchandra Ramrao Kadam  
 – Group Chief Commercial  

 Officer  

 Mr P Sivasubramaniam – Head –  
 EV Chargers Division  

Key Management Personnel Mr Nikhil V Pandya – Group  
  

 Head – Corporate Finance  
 

Ms Hetvi Patel – Head – Project 
— 

  

 Finance, Management Accounts  

 and MIS  

 Mr. Atul Mishra – Head –  
 Accounts and Taxation  

 Mr. Sandipkumar Gupta –  
 Company Secretary &  

 Compliance Officer   
 
 

 
—  

 
—  

 

Relatives of Key Management 
- 

Personnel   
Enterprise owned or significantly 
influenced by key Management - 

Personnel or their relatives 
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2) Particulars of Transactions during the year ended 31st March, 2025 

 

Particular 
 Key Management Personnel  Associate / Enterprise where 
 

(INR in lakhs) 
 

Control exists (INR in lakhs)    

Remuneration    - 

  17.37   

Balance outstanding at the year  
- 

 
- 

end – Receivable   

    
    

Balance outstanding at the year  167.72 (As on 31/03/2025)  
- 

end – Payable  85.59  (As on 31/03/2024)  
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Note 30: Fair Value 
 

 

The carrying value and fair value of financial instrument by categories as at 31st March, 2025, is as follows: 

 

c. Fair Value of financial assets and financial liabilities  
The carrying value and fair value of financial instrument by categories as at 31st March, 2025, is as follows:  

     (rupees in Lakhs) 
      

 Fair Value Fair value 
Amortised 

Total 
Total Fair 

Particular Hierarchy through Profit Carrying 
Cost Value  

Level and Loss Value    

Asset      

Cash and Cash Equivalents Level 3 - 43.14 43.14 43.14 

Other Bank Balances Level 3  9.14 9.14 9.14 

Trade Receivables Level 3  114.49 114.49 114.49 

Investment in Financial Assets Level 3  9.80 9.80 9.80 

Other Financial Assets Level 3  11.05 11.05 11.05 

Total   187.62 187.62 187.62 
      

Liabilities      
      

Trade Payables Level 3  6.05 6.05 6.05 

Other Financial Liabilities Level 3  - - - 

Total   6.05 6.05 6.05 

 

The carrying value and fair value of financial instrument by categories as at 31st March, 2024, is as follows: 
 
     (rupees in Lakhs) 
      

 Fair Value Fair value 
Amortised 

Total 
Total Fair 

Particular Hierarchy through Profit Carrying 
Cost Value  

Level and Loss Value    

Asset      

Cash and Cash Equivalents Level 3 - 4.07 4.07 4.07 

Other Bank Balances Level 3  9.14 9.14 9.14 

Trade Receivables Level 3  95.47 95.47 95.47 
Investment - Share Application Level 3  4.00 4.00 4.00 
Money Pending Allotment      

Other Financial Assets Level 3  8.00 8.00 8.00 

Total   120.68 120.68 120.68 
      

Liabilities      
      

Trade Payables Level 3  14.85 14.85 14.85 

Other Financial Liabilities Level 3  - - - 

Total   14.85 14.85 14.85  
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d. Fair Value of financial assets and financial liabilities 
 

The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value that 
are either observable or unobservable and consists of the following three levels: 

 

Leverl-1 Inputs are prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
 

Leverl-2 Inputs are other than prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (i.e. 
as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices) 

 

Level-3 Inputs are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair value is determined in whole 

or in part using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable 

current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data. 

 

e. Valuation techniques and key inputs 
 

Leverl-1 At present the company has no such financial assets or financial liabilities which are required 
to measure by this level of hierarchy. 

 
Leverl-2 At present the company has no such financial assets or financial liabilities which are required 
to measure by this level of hierarchy. 

 
Leverl-3 Investment in share application money, cost has been considered as an appropriate estimate of fair 
value because of a wide range of possible fair value measurements and cost represents the best estimate of 
fair value within that range. 

 

Note 31: Financial Risk Management Objective and Policies 
 

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables only. The main purpose of these 
financial liabilities is to finance the company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include 
investments at fair value, trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents. 
 

The Company is exposed to market risk and credit risk. The Company’s senior management monitors these risks and 

is supported by professional managers who advise on financial risks and assist in preparing the appropriate financial 

risk governance framework. It provides assurance to the senior management that the financial risk activities are 

governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in 

accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and approves policies for 

managing each of these risks which are summarized below: 
 

c) Market risk 
 

Market risks are the risk when the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate because 
of changes in market prices. 

 
d) Credit risk 
 

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or Customer 
Contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities 
(primarily trade receivables). The Company only deals with parties which has sound worthiness based on the 
internal assessment.  
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Note 32: Capital Management 

 

The Company’s objective for capital management is to maximise shareholder value, safeguard business 
continuity and support the growth. The Company determines the capital requirement based on annual operating 
plans and long-term and other strategic investment plans. The Company is not subject to any externally imposed 
capital requirements. 

 

Note 33:  
Revenue from Operations includes Unbilled Revenue from April 2024 to March 2025 amounting to Rs. 218.14 lakhs. 

 

Note 34:  
Total other current assets of Rs. 316.51 Lakhs Includes Unbilled revenue of Rs.297.82 Lakhs. 

 

Note 35: 
 
The company is yet to transfer unpaid dividend of an amount aggregating to Rs. 6.64 Lakhs relating to Financial Years 
2010-11 and 2011-12 from unpaid dividend account to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) 

 

Note 36: Additional Regulatory Information 
 

xi. The Company does not have any immovable properties. 

 
xii. The company does not have any intangible assets under development. 

 

xiii. No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the company as at March 31, 
2023 for holding any Benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 
1988) and rules made thereunder. 

 

xiv. The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of ₹5 crores, in aggregate, at any 

points of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets 
and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

 
xv. The Company does not have any transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of Companies 

Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956. 

 
xvi. There were no charges or satisfaction which were yet to be registered with Roc beyond the statutory period.  
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xvii. Ratio Analysis  
          (rupees in Lakhs) 
           

          Reason of 
Particular Numerator Denominator  2023-24  2022-23  Variance  Variance (If more 

          than 25%) 

           
          Improved due to 
          higher current 

Current ratio 
Current Assets Current Liabilities 

   
1.76 

   assets, mainly 

(in times) 
 2.85   61.93  

cash & equivalents        

          and lower current 
          liabilities. 
  

Average 
       Increase driven by 

Return on Equity Net Profit after        higher profitability 
Shareholder's    5.50%    

(in %) Taxes 
 17.63%   220.55  

with unchanged Equity      
         

equity base.           

Trade Receivables 
Net Credit Average Trade 

   

3.84 
   

Stable, indicating 
Turnover Ratio       

Sales Receivables 
 4.06   5.73  

efficient collection 
(in times)      

          

Trade Payables 
         Slight dip, 

Net Credit Average Trade      -  reflecting 
Turnover ratio    11.09   

Purchases Payables 
 10.44   5.86  

marginally higher (in times)      
         payables.           

Net Capital 
         Decline due to 
       -  higher capital 

Turnover ratio Net Sales Working Capital    2.00   

 1.26   37.00  

employed relative (in times)        
         

to turnover.           

          Rise attributable 

Net Profit Ratio Net Profit after 
        to improved 

Net Sales    11.70%    margins, cost 
(in %) Taxes 

 30.60%   161.54  

      efficiency, and           

          profitability. 

 Earnings         Growth led by 
Return on capital Before 

Capital Employed 
 

12.44 
 

4.80 
 

(159.17) 
 higher EBIT with 

employed (in %) Interest and     stable capital         

 taxes         employed. 

           
 

 

Note: Debt-Equity, Debt Service Coverage and Return on Investment (ROI) are not applicable to the company. 
 

 

xviii. (A) The company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium 
or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
(Intermediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary 
shall: 

 
Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or 
on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

 
(ii) Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.  

 

(B) The company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
(Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall:  
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(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by 
or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

 

(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 
 
 
 
xix. Undisclosed income: 

 
There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered or disclosed as 
income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) during the year. 

 
xx. The Company does not come under the requirements of section 135 of the Act. 

 

Note 37: PREVIOUS YEAR FIGURES 
 

Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified, where necessary to confirm to the year’s classification  

 

As per our report of annexed 

 

For NGST & Associates,  
Chartered Accountants,  
Firm Regn. No. 139159W 

 

Bhupendra S Gandhi  
Partner 
Membership No: 122296  
UDIN: 25122296BMHZWY7907 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Date: 27th May, 2025  
Place: Mumbai  

 
 
 

 

For EPIC ENERGY LIMITED  
 
 

 

Bharat Mehta Brian Dsouza  
Director Director 
DIN: 00271878 DIN: 02176486 
 

 

Priya Joshi Veena Morsawala  
Director Director  
DIN: 10590560 DIN: 01310075 
 

Harshal Gunde  
Director  

DIN: 00271878 Date: 27th May, 2025 

 Place: Mumbai 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 



                                                                                                                                                           ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 

 
 
 
 

 

Thank You 
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34th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
EPIC ENERGY LIMITED 

Registered Office: Office No.206, A- Wing, Gokul Arcade, Swami Nityanand Road, Vile Parle 
(East), Mumbai 400 057, Maharashtra 

 CIN: L67120MH1991PLC063103; Website: www.epicenergy.in  
Email: info@epicenergy.in;    

 
 

NOTICE is hereby given that the 34th Annual General Meeting of the Members of Epic 
Energy Limited will be held on Saturday, 27th September 2025 at 11:00 a.m. Through 
Video Conferencing via CDSL VC/VOAM facility, to transact the following business: 

 
ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

 
1. To receive, consider and adopt Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31st 

March, 2025 comprising of the Audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025 and 
statement of Profit & Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date 
together with Report of Directors’ and Auditors' thereon. 

 
2. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following 

resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with rules thereunder, Mrs. Veena Morsawala (DIN: 01310075), who retires 
by rotation and being eligible, offers herself for appointment, be and is hereby re-
appointed as Non-Executive Director of the Company. 
 

 
                3. To ratification for re-appointment of Statutory Auditor and to fix their remuneration 

and in this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), 
the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution. The auditors M/s. NGST & 
Associates, Chartered Accountants, (FRN:135159W) are showing willingness to re-
appoint as an Auditor of the Company: 

                    
                       

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, read with rules made there under M/s. 
NGST & Associates, Chartered Accountants, (FRN:135159W), be and are hereby re-
appointed as Statutory auditor of the company who shall hold the office as statutory 
auditor till the conclusion of the 38th Annual General Meeting of the Company on such 
remuneration and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses as may be mutually agreed 
between the Auditors and the Board.” 
 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 
 

4. To appoint M/s Vijay S .Tiwari &Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries (CP 
NO:12220)  as Secretarial Auditor of the Company. 
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To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution: 
 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 
24A of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, (including any statutory modification(s), 
amendment(s) thereto or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force) and other 
rules, guidelines and circulars issued in this regard, from time to time and pursuant to 
the recommendation of the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors of the 
Company, M/s. Vijay S .Tiwari & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, Mumbai 
(CP No. 12220 and Peer Review Certificate No.: 1679/2022) be and is hereby appointed 
as Secretarial Auditors of the Company to hold office for a term of 5 (five) consecutive 
years commencing from April 01, 2025 to March 31, 2030 at an annual audit fee as 
mentioned in the explanatory statement annexed hereto, with an authority to the Board 
of Directors to revise the terms and conditions of appointment, including any increase 
in remuneration, in such manner and to such extent as may be mutually agreed with the 
Secretarial Auditors. 
 
 

 
 

By Order of the Board 
   

Sandipkumar Gupta  
Company Secretary 

 
                                                                                                                                          Mumbai, Sep 02, 2025 
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NOTES 
 
1. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ('MCA') vide its General Circular No. 09/2024 dated 

September 19, 2024 and earlier circulars issued in this regard ('MCA Circulars') and 
Securities and Exchange Board of India ('SEBI') vide its Circular No. SEBI/ HO/CFD/CFD-
PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/133 dated October 3 , 2024 and earlier circulars issued in this regard 
('SEBI Circulars'), permitted the holding of the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) through 
Video Conferencing (“VC”) or Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”), without the physical 
presence of the members at a common venue. In compliance with the aforesaid MCA 
Circulars & SEBI Circulars, the AGM of the Company will be held through VC and physical 
attendance of the Members to the AGM venue is not required. The registered office of the 
Company shall be deemed to be the venue for the AGM. 
 

2. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act'), in 
respect of the Special Business given in the Notice of the AGM and the details under 
Regulation 36(3) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations) and Clause 1.2.5 of the 
Secretarial Standard on General Meeting (SS2) issued by the Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India is annexed hereto. 

 
3. Since the ensuing AGM is being held through VC/OAVM, physical attendance of Members 

has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the 
Members will not be available for the AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip 
are not annexed to this Notice. Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, the Route 
Map is not annexed in this Notice. 

 
4. In terms of the provisions of Section 152 of the Act, Mrs. Veena Morsawala, Director of the 

Company, retire by rotation at the Meeting and being eligible offers herself for re-
appointment. 

 
5. The relevant details, pursuant to Regulation 26(4) and 36(3) of the SEBI Listing 

Regulations and Secretarial Standards on General Meeting issued by the Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India, in respect of Directors seeking appointment / re-
appointment at this Meeting are provided in the “Annexure” to the Notice. 

 
6. Institutional / Corporate Shareholders (i.e. other than individuals / HUF, NRI, etc.) are 

required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of its Board or governing body 
resolution/authorization etc., authorizing its representative to attend the AGM through VC 
/ OAVM on its behalf and to vote through remote e-voting. The said 
resolution/authorization shall be sent to the Scrutinizers by email through its registered 
email address with a copy marked to the Company. 

 
7. SEBI vide its notification dated January 25, 2022 has amended Regulation 40 of the SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 Regulations and has 
mandated that all requests for transfer of securities including transmission and 
transposition requests shall be processed only in dematerialized form. In view of the above 
and to eliminate the risks associated with physical shares, Members are advised to 
maintain their shares in demat mode. 
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Members may please note that SEBI vide its Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_ 
RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/8 dated January 25, 2022 has mandated the listed companies to 
issue securities in dematerialized form only while processing service requests, viz., Issue of 
duplicate securities certificate; claim from unclaimed suspense account; renewal/exchange 
of securities certificate; endorsement; sub-division/splitting of securities certificate; 
consolidation of securities certificates/folios; transmission and transposition.  
 
Members are advised to not leave their demat account(s) dormant for long. Periodic 
statement of holdings should be obtained from the concerned Depository Participant and 
holdings should be verified from time to time.  
 
Further, SEBI vide its circular dated November 03, 2021 has also mandated that the 
shareholders holding shares in physical form are required to update their PAN, KYC details, 
bank details and nomination details with the RTA on or before October 01, 2023, failing 
which the securities held by such shareholder will be frozen by the RTA. The securities 
once frozen will revert to normal status only upon receipt of requisite KYC documents or 
upon dematerialization of the said securities. Shareholders holding shares in physical 
receipt of requisite KYC details to the bank account of the shareholder electronically. 
Further, SEBI vide its circular dated November 03, 2021 has also mandated that the 
shareholders holding shares in physical form are required to compulsorily link their PAN 
and Aadhaar. Accordingly, the physical folios in which PAN and Aadhaar are not linked will 
be frozen by the RTA. The securities which will be frozen will revert to normal status only 
upon receipt of requisite KYC documents or upon dematerialization of the said securities. 
 

8. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Register of the Company will remain closed 
from Sunday 21st September, 2025 To Saturday 27th September, 2025 (both days 
inclusive) as per Regulation 42 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
9. The Members are requested to:  

 
i) Intimate immediately any change in their address to Company’s Registrar and 

Share Transfer Agents M/s. Adroit Corporate Services Pvt.Ltd.., 17-21, Jafferbhoy 
Ind. Estate,1st Floor, Makhwana  Road, Marol Naka, Andheri (E), Mumbai 400059. 
Members holding shares in the electronic form are advised to inform change in 
address directly to their respective depository participants. 
  

10. To support the “Green Initiative for Paperless Communications” Members who have not 
yet registered their email ids are requested to register the same with their DPs in case the 
shares are held in electronic form and with Company’s RTA in case the shares are held in 
physical form. 
 

11. In case of joint holders, the Members whose name appears as the first holder in the order 
of names as per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote at the 
AGM. 
 

12. In compliance with the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars, Notice of the AGM inter-alia, 
indicating the process and manner of electronic voting (“e-voting”) along with the Annual 
Report 2024-25 is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose email 
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addresses are registered with the Company/Depositories unless any member has 
requested for a hard copy of the same. Members may note that the Notice and Annual 
Report 2024-25 will also be available on the Company’s website 
http://www.epicenergy.in, websites of the Stock Exchange i.e. BSE Limited of India Limited 
at www.bseindia.com. Members can attend and participate in the Annual General Meeting 
through VC/ OAVM facility only. In case any member is desirous of obtaining hard copy of 
the Annual Report for the financial year 2024-25 and Notice of the 34TH AGM of the 
Company, may send request to the Company’s email address at info@epicenergy.in 
mentioning DP ID and Client ID. 
 

13. Annual financial statements and related details are posted on the Company’s website and 
also kept for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company. A copy of the same will be 
provided to the members on request. 

 
14. Members attending the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of 

reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act. 
 

15. Non-Resident Indian (“NRI”) Members are requested to inform the Company or its RTA or 
to the concerned Depository Participants, as the case may be, immediately: 
 
a. the change in the residential status on return to India for permanent settlement, or 
b. the particulars of the NRE/NRO Account with a Bank in India, if not furnished earlier. 

 
16. The Company has engaged the services of the Central Depository Services (India) Limited 

(“CDSL”) for facilitating remote e-voting for the said AGM meeting to be held on Saturday, 
27th September, 2025. The Shareholders are requested to follow the instructions 
mentioned in Note below. 
 

17. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of a 
Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members 
holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit the PAN to their 
Depository Participant(s) with whom they are maintaining their demat account(s). 
 

18. The voting by Shareholders through the remote e-voting shall commence at 9.00 a.m. on 
Tuesday, 23rd September, 2025 and shall close at 5.00 p.m. on Friday 26th September, 2025. 
During this period, Members holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized 
form, as on Saturday, 20th August, 2025 i.e. cut-off date, may cast their vote electronically. 
The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. Those 
Members, who will be present in the Meeting through VC / OAVM facility and have not cast 
their vote on the Resolution through remote e-voting and are otherwise not barred from 
doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-voting system during the Meeting. 
 

19. The Shareholders of the Company can opt only one mode for voting i.e. remote e-voting or 
e-voting during the meeting. Once the vote on the resolution is cast by an equity 
shareholder, he or she will not be allowed to change it subsequently. 

 
20. The Shareholders of the Company attending the Meeting, who have not cast their vote 

through remote e-voting shall be entitled to exercise their vote during the Meeting by VC/ 
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OAVM. Equity shareholders who have cast their votes through remote e-voting may attend 
the Meeting but shall not be entitled to cast their vote during the Meeting. 

 
21. Voting rights shall be reckoned on the paid-up value of shares registered in the name of the 

Member / beneficial owner as on the cut-off date i.e. Saturday, 20th September, 2025. 
 

22. Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and become member of the Company 
after emailing of the notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date i. 20th September, 2025  
may obtain the login ID and password by sending a request at email ID 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or RTA email ID e-Voting info@adroitcorporate.com 

 
23. Any queries/ grievances in relation to the voting by e-voting may be addressed to the 

Company Secretary of the Company through email at info@epicenergy.in, or may be 
addressed to CDSL at evotingindia.com 
 

24. Mr. Vijaykumar Tiwari (Membership No. 33084, C.P. NO. 12220), has been appointed as the 
Scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote e-Voting process and casting vote through the e-Voting 
system during the meeting in a fair and transparent manner. The Scrutinizer shall after the 
conclusion of e-Voting at the 34th AGM, first download the votes cast at the 34th AGM and 
thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-Voting and shall make a consolidated 
Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, invalid votes, if any and 
whether the resolution has been carried or not, and such Report shall then be sent to the 
Chairman or a person authorized by him, who shall then countersign and declare the result 
of the voting forthwith. 
 
 

25. The Results declared along with the Report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the 
website of the Company at www.epicenergy.in immediately after the declaration of Results 
by the Chairman or a person authorized by him within two (2) working days from the 
conclusion of the meeting. The Results shall also be immediately forwarded to the BSE 
Limited. 
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THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER: - 
  

1. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of 
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and 
Regulation Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Act read with Rule 20 of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, Secretarial Standard on General 
Meetings (SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (“ICSI”) and 
Regulation 44 of Listing Regulations read with MCA Circulars, as amended, the Company is 
providing remote e-Voting facility to its members in respect of the business to be transacted 
at the 34th AGM and facility for those members participating in the 34th AGM to cast vote 
through e-Voting system during the 34th AGM. For this purpose, Adroit Corporate Services 
Pvt Ltd will be providing facility for voting through remote e-Voting, for participation in the 
34th AGM through VC/ OAVM facility, and e-Voting during the 34th AGM. 
 

2. The Members may join the 34th AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the 
scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned 
in the Notice. The facility of participation at the 34th AGM in the VC/OAVM will be made 
available to at least 1000 members on a first come first served basis. This will not include 
large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, 
Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit 
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee, Auditors, etc. who are allowed to attend the EGM/AGM without restriction on 
account of first come first served basis. 

 
3. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM/EGM through VC/OAVM will be counted 

for the purpose of ascertaining the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

4. Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, the facility to appoint a proxy 
to attend and cast votes for the members is not available for this AGM/EGM. However, in 
pursuance of Section 112 and Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, representatives of 
the members such as the President of India or the Governor of a State or body corporate can 
attend the AGM/EGM through VC/OAVM and cast their votes through e-voting. 
 

5. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 
2020, the Notice calling the AGM/EGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at 
https://epicenergy.in.The Notice can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock 
Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com.  The AGM/EGM Notice is also 
disseminated on the website of CDSL (the agency for providing the Remote e-voting facility 
and e-voting system during the AGM/EGM) i.e. www.evotingindia.com. 
 

6. The AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, and MCA 
Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, and MCA Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 
2020. 
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THE INTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDRES FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER: 
 

Step 1 : Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of individual    
shareholders holding shares in demat mode.  

 
Step 2 : Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in 

physical mode and non-individual shareholders in demat mode.  
 

(i) The voting period begins on at 9.00 a.m. on Tuesday, 23rd September, 2025 and shall close 

at 5.00 p.m. on Friday 26th September, 2025. During this period shareholders of the 

Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off 

date Saturday, 20th August, 2025 may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module 

shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. 

 

(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to 

vote at the meeting venue. 

 

(iii) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, 

under Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 listed entities are required to provide remote 

e-voting facility to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. However, it 

has been observed that the participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail 

shareholders is at a negligible level.  

 
Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to 
listed entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of 
multiple user IDs and passwords by the shareholders.  

 
In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it 

has been decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single 

login credential, through their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository 

Participants. Demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without having to 

register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but also 

enhancing ease and convenience of participating in e-voting process. 

 

Step 1 : Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of individual    
shareholders holding shares in demat mode.  

 

(iv) In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 

2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with 
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Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile 

number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 

Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual 
meetings for Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode is given 
below: 

 

Type of 
shareholders 

 Login Method 

 
Individual 
Shareholders 
holding 
securities in 
Demat mode 
with CDSL 

1) Users of who have opted for CDSL’sEasi / Easiest facility, can login 

through their existing user id and password. Option will be made 

available to reach the e-Voting page without any further 

authentication. The URLs for users to login to Easi / Easiest 

arehttps://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or 

www.cdslindia.com and click on the Login icon and select New System 

Myeasi Tab. 

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-

Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress 

as per the information provided by company. On clicking the evoting 

option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting 

service provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 

period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

Additionally, there is also links provided to access the system of all e-

Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting 

service providers’ website directly. 

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is 

available at cdsl website www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New 

System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option 

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing 

Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on  

www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user 

by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the 

Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to 

see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able 

to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers. 
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Individual 
Shareholders 
holding 
securities in 
demat mode 
with NSDL 

1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-

Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 

URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on 

a mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the 

“Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under 

‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your 

User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be 

able to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-

Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on 

company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be re-

directed to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote 

during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting 

during the meeting. 

2) If the user is not  registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is 

available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for 

IDeAS “Portal or click   at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 

following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 

Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is 

launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 

‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have 

to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number 

hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on 

the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to 

NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on 

company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be 

redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote 

during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting 

during the meeting 

Individual 
Shareholders 
(holding 
securities in 
demat mode) 
login through 
their 
Depository 
Participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account 
through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for 
e-Voting facility.  After successful login, you will be able to see e-
Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be 
redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on 
company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be 
redirected to e-Voting service provider’s website for casting your vote 
during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting 
during the meeting. 
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Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use 

Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at above mentioned website. 
 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical 

issues related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL 
 

Login type Helpdesk details 
Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 
1800 22 55 33.  

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at 
evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 
1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30   

 
Step 2 : Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical 

mode and non-individual shareholders in demat mode. 

 

 

(v) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Physical shareholders and 

shareholders other than individual holding in Demat form. 

 

1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com. 

 

2) Click on “Shareholders” module. 

 

3) Now enter your User ID  

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,  

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,  

c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter the Folio Number 

registered with the Company. 

 

4) Next, enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 

 

5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and 

voted on an earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.  
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6) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below: 

 

 For Shareholders holding shares in Demat Form other than individual  

and Physical Form 

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department 

(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders) 

• Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the 

Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the sequence 

number sent by Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA. 

Dividend 

Bank 

Details 

OR Date of 

Birth 

(DOB) 

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as 

recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order to login. 

• If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, 

please enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details 

field as mentioned in instruction (v). 

 

(vi) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab. 

 

(vii) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection 

screen. However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password 

Creation menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the 

new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders 

for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided 

that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to 

share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password 

confidential. 

 

(viii) For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting 

on the resolutions contained in this Notice. 

 

(ix) Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company Name> on which you choose to vote. 

 
(x) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the 

option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies 

that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution. 

 
(xi) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details. 

 
(xii) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A 

confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to 

change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote. 
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(xiii) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your 

vote. 

 
(xiv) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the 

Voting page. 

 
(xv) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the 

image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by 

the system. 

 
(xvi) Facility for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians –Remote Voting 

 

• Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are 

required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates” 

module. 

• A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be 

emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 

• After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login 

and password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they 

wish to vote on. 

• The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com 

and on approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.  

• A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have 

issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for 

the scrutinizer to verify the same. 

• Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board 
Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly 
authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at 
the email address viz; info@epicenergy.in, if they have voted from individual tab & not 
uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERSATTENDING THE AGM/EGM THROUGH VC/OAVM & E-
VOTING DURING MEETING ARE AS UNDER: 
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1. The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the day of the AGM/EGM is same as the 
instructions mentioned above for Remote e-voting. 
 

2. The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of Company will 
be displayed after successful login as per the instructions mentioned above for Remote e-
voting. 

3. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the 
meeting. However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM/EGM. 
 

4. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better 
experience. 

 
5. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed 

to avoid any disturbance during the meeting. 
6. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop 

connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their 
respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to 
mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 
 

7. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may 
register themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance at least 7 days prior 
to meeting i.e. by Saturday, 20th September 2025 mentioning their name, demat account 
number/folio number, email id, mobile number at (company email id). The shareholders 
who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have queries may send their queries in 
advance 3 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio 
number, email id, mobile number at info@epicenergy.in these queries will be replied to by 
the company suitably by email.  
 

8. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to 
express their views/ask questions during the meeting. 
 

9. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM/EGM through VC/OAVM facility and 
have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise 
not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system available during 
the EGM/AGM. 

 
10. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the 

EGM/AGM and if the same shareholders have not participated in the meeting through 
VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such shareholders shall be considered invalid as 
the facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the shareholders attending the 
meeting. 
 

 
 

 
PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL ADDRESSES ARE NOT REGISTERED 
WITH THE DEPOSITORIES:  
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1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of 
shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested 
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email 
to Company/RTA email id. 

 
2. For Demat shareholders -, please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective 
Depository Participant (DP)  
 

5. For Individual Demat shareholders – Please update your email id & mobile no. with 
your respective Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining 
virtual meetings through Depository. 

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-
Voting System, you can write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll 
free no 1800 22 55 33. 

(xvii) All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed 

to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 

25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel 

(East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call  on toll 

free no. 1800 22 55 33. 

 
EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 
(“THE ACT”) FORMING PART OF THE NOTICE 
 
The following explanatory statement sets out all material facts relating to the business mentioned 

under Item No. 4 of the accompanying Notice: 

 

ITEM NO. 4 

 

In accordance with Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (“the Act”), every listed 

company and certain prescribed class of companies are required to annex a Secretarial Audit 

Report issued by a Company Secretary in practice, with their Board's Report prepared under 

Section 134(3) of the Act. Further, SEBI vide its notification dated December 12, 2024, amended 

Regulation 24A of the Listing Regulations. The amended provisions read with the SEBI circular no. 

SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/CIR/P/2024/185 dated December 31,2024 inter-alia prescribes the 

term of appointment/ re-appointment, eligibility criteria, qualifications and disqualifications of the 

Secretarial Auditor of a listed entity. 
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It is pertinent to note that M/s. Vijay S .Tiwari & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries served 

as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the FY 2024-25 and in preceding years. While 

considering their appointment, the Board of Directors and the Audit Committee considered several 

factors, including the firm's familiarity with the Company's business and operations, technical 

expertise, professional competence, industry knowledge and ability to navigate a dynamic and 

regulated business environment. Based on this evaluation, M/s. Vijay S .Tiwari & Associates was 

found to be suitably qualified to conduct the Secretarial Audit of the Company effectively. 

 

Brief Profile of the Secretarial Auditor:  

 

M/s. Vijay S .Tiwari & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, Mumbai (CP No. 12220 and Peer 

Review Certificate No.: 1679/2022) is a leading firm of Practicing Company Secretaries with over 

one decades of rich and diverse professional experience. Renowned for its commitment to 

excellence, the Firm specializes in Secretarial Audits, Due Diligence, IPOs and provides a 

comprehensive range of advisory, representation and compliance services under Company Law, 

SEBI Regulations, FEMA Regulations, RBI Directions, Mergers & Acquisitions, amongst others. Over 

the years, firm has successfully catered to clients across a broad spectrum of industries including 

Banking, Financial Services, Information Technology, Textiles, Tourism, Real Estate, etc. Backed by 

a dedicated and highly skilled team of professionals, firm is committed to meeting the evolving 

expectations of the corporate sector, while upholding the highest standards of corporate 

governance and professional integrity. 

 

 

By Order of the Board 
   

Sandipkumar Gupta  
Company Secretary 

 
                                                                                                                                          Mumbai, Sep 02, 2025 
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